| 7S AN

PROCESSED

MAY 28 2004

THOMSO)|
FINANGIAL




Products featured in Blyth’s
2004 Annual Report include:

Cover:

CBK?® brand bamboo bench, bar tray, butterfly table
covering, copper beverage container

Colonial™ brand glass vase and permanent botanicals

Colonial Candle of Cape Cod® brand round votive
holder assortment, 15 hour votives

Colonial at HOME® brand Fresh Picked Raspberries™
jar candle, jar candle vase

Jeanmarie® brand decorative gift bags

Kaemingk® brand iced tea container, glass
serving bowls

Miles Kimball® brand hanging string lights with
paper lantern covers, insulated tumblers, bake
and serve casserole set, condiment set, apron and
decorative tissue wrap

PartyLite® brand Garden Lites hanging candle
holder/wine caddy, pedestal bowl, candle garden
tray and hurricane; Radiant Glow™ stemmed trio

Seasons of Cannon Falls™ brand green and
cream luncheon plates, nesting bowls, table runner,
napkins, napkin rings, gift bag and tissue

Sterno® brand chafing fuel with Smartcan™ heat
sensor technology

Back Cover:

CBK?® brand bamboo bench, butterfly table covering,
copper beverage container

Colonia™ brand glass vase and permanent botanicals
Colonial Candle of Cape Cod® brand candle gift set

Colonial at HOME® brand Fresh Picked Raspberries™
Jar candle

Florasense® brand floating rose and lily pad candles
Jeanmarie® brand decorative gift bags
Kaemingk® brand glass serving bowls

Miles Kimbalf® brand hanging string lights with
paper lantern covers, bake and serve casserole set,
condiment set and decorative tissue wrap

PartyLite® brand Garden Lites pedestal bow! and
candle garden tray; Radiant Glow™ stemmed trio
and Starry Night™ hurricanes

Seasons of Cannon Falls™ brand green and cream
nesting bowls, gift bag and tissue, flower stakes
and frog garden critters

Sterno® brand chafing fuel with Smartcan™ heat
sensor technology

Pages 6 & 7:

PartylLite® brand Garden Lites candlestand, 3 wick
and pillar candles; Spring Water™ collection candle
lamp and pillar holder

Exposures® brand desk and stool, Asian Silk
collection magazine file, pencil cup, desktop
platform and accessory tray, Italian Marquetry
Collection™ photo frame

Mifes Kimbalf® brand personalized pencils

Pages 8 & 9:
Seasons of Cannon Falls™ brand Patina collection

Pages 10 & 11:

Miles Kimball® brand personalized stoneware
crocks, ornaments, teacher tote, apple paper weight,
pad and pencils

Pages 12 & 13:

Sterno® brand chafing fuel with Smartcan™ heat
sensor technology, Ambria™ brand contemporary
lamps and Crisscross Chateau™ contemporary
petite lamps with Crystalyte® liquid fuel cartridges
and Ambria Petitelites™ sparkle gel candles
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Years Ended January 31, Increase
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data) 2003 2004 (Decrease)
Operating Results Restated"
Net Sales $1,288,583 $1,505,573 16.8%
Gross Profit 640,302 723,675 13.0
Operating Profit 155,617 153,077 (1.6)
Net Earnings 57,772 86,351 49.5
Diluted Net Earnings Per Common and

Common Equivalent Share $ 1.24 % 1.88 51.6%
Diluted Weighted Average. Number of

Common Shares QOutstanding ' 46,515 46,027
Financial Position
Total Assets $ 860,084 $1,127,963
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 168,596 229,726
Total Debt 176,493 293,886
Total Stockholders’ Equity 507,852 588,970

Market for the Company’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

The price range for the Company's Common Stock on the New York Stock Exchange as reported
by the New York Stock Exchange was as follows:

Fiscal 2003 (Ended 1/31/03) High Low
First Quarter $30.15 $20.85
Second Quarter $32.80 $25.83
Third Quarter $30.34 $23.06
Fourth Quarter $28.63 $23.91
Fiscal 2004 (Ended 1/31/04) High Low
First Quarter $26.63 $23.46
Second Quarter $30.38 $25.36
Third Quarter $28.82 $25.95
Fourth Quarter $33.65 $2793

1) The Company has restated its fiscal 2003 financial statements to increase the cumulative effect of accounting
change for the adoption of SFAS 142, *Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” See Note 2 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in Blyth's Form 10K for the year ended January 31, 2004.
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Dear Shareholder,

It was 10 years ago that Blyth made its initial public
stock offering on the New York Stock Exchange. Net sales
in the fiscal year prior to going public were approximately
$158 million. The Blyth family essentially consisted of a
domestic candle company with an embryonic foothold
in a few other countries. Blyth shareholders who acquired
their stock at the time of our May 18, 1994 IPO and have
reinvested their dividends have received a 16% compound
rate of return. Our compound annual growth rate of sales,
operating profit and net income since then are each
approximately 25%. We have paid nearly $42 million in
dividends and repurchased over 4.3 million shares of Blyth
stock for more than $105 million. Today, Blyth employs
more than 5,600 people in 17 countries. A ten-fold sales
increase in 10 years has prompted a lot of changes to
our organization—changes we have created and driven within
the marketplace, as well as those to which we have had
to respond. | believe that our evolution as a public company
has made us a desirable place to be for shareholders,
employees and customers alike.

Important accomplishments were made at Blyth during
fiscal year 2004, and | am pleased to report that record sales
and strong cash flow and earnings were among them. Most
of Blyth's existing businesses felt the effects of continued,
significant retailer caution for the better part of the year, and
organic sales growth was below plan. However, our overall
results were bolstered by effective execution of our
acquisition strategy, with three new additions to the Blyth
family of companies. Despite the challenges posed by the
marketplace, we remained focused on innovation, effective
supply chain management and the continued rationalization
and leveraging of our infrastructure, resulting in both
immediate and longer-term benefits. In summary, fiscal
2004 was another year of significant and positive change
within Blyth; change that is evident in our financial
results and that, | believe, has positioned us well to meet
our multi-year objectives.

Financial Performance, Fiscal Year 2004
Blyth's fiscal year 2004 financial results were strong despite
the overall weakness in the home expressions industry in

which we operate. The strength of our results is a reflection
of the successful execution of our growth strategy and our

ongoing efforts to ensure that our global supply chain is
consistent with the needs of our marketplace. Net Sales for
the fiscal year ended January 31, 2004 increased 17% to a
record $1,506 million. Operating Profit before restructuring
and impairment charges increased 12% to $177 million
and Net Earnings before such charges were $101 million.
Reflecting these charges, Operating Profit declined 2% and
Net Earnings were $86 million. Cash flow from operations, at
$173 million, was very strong again this year.

Towards fiscal year end, we announced a series of steps
that continue the rationalization of our business model,
primarily in our wholesale candle business, which began
several years ago. These steps reflect our response to rapid
changes in the marketplace, as well as our determination
that a hybrid supply chain strategy of both manufacturing
and sourcing is more efficient given these changes. While
healthy growth continues within our European businesses,
growth in the home fragrance category has moderated in
North America, and the ongoing and increasing pressures
of international competition necessitate increased efficiency
in our operations. Moreover, Blyth has also realized significant
productivity improvements in its manufacturing facilities in
recent years. The evaluation and rationalization of our infra-
structure and evolution of our hybrid strategy is of strategic
importance and is a major, continuing management focus.

During our fiscal fourth quarter, we wrote down the value
of equipment in our primary North American manufacturing
facilities as a result of the above mentioned factors, as well
as a continued, consumer-driven product shift from candle
forms such as pillars and tapers towards filled containers,
votives and tealights. We also recognized restructuring and
impairment charges in the fourth quarter in connection
with the consolidation of our Temecula, California potpourri
operations, the write down of certain other equipment
and severance payments to employees. In addition, we
recognized impairment charges related to our fiscal 1997
acquisition of the Canterbury® brand.

In July, our candle manufacturing facility in Monterrey,
Mexico was destroyed by fire—fortunately no one was




injured. After extensive review, we decided to focus our
North American candle production in our two largest state-
of-the-art US facilities and not rebuild in Monterrey. This

review also led to the decision to close our Hyannis,
Massachusetts plant, Blyth's smallest manufacturing facility,
which was located in a congested downtown Cape Cod
area that hampered the transportation of raw materials and
finished goods. We believe that all of these steps have
positioned Blyth even better to compete effectively in the
changing worldwide marketplace, and we will continue to
evaluate our business model as these markets evolve. We
invested $22 million in capital projects in fiscal year 2004
and an additional $149 million in cash for the acquisitions
of Miles Kimball, Kaemingk and Walter Drake. In addition

to our focus on growing sales, profit and cash flow, we are
working in other ways to enhance shareholder value as well,
such as consistently raising our semi-annual cash dividend
and continuing our share repurchase program. We raised
our dividend 18% in May to $.13 per share and another
15% in November to $.15 per share. Over 700,000 shares of
Blyth stock were repurchased for approximately $19 million.
And, we ended the year with $230 million of cash on our
balance sheet.

Building on our healthy financial condition and strong
balance sheet, we took advantage of historicaily low interest
rates this year by issuing $100 million of10-year senior
notes in October. The proceeds will be used for internal
reinvestment in our businesses, the funding of strategic
acquisitions, the repayment of certain short-term debt,
dividend payments, share repurchases, or, as has been our
historical norm, maximizing shareholder value by funding a
combination of these initiatives.

Corporate Goals
Each year, we evaluate ourselves against three corporate
financial goals:

= 10%-+ annual sales and earnings growth
= 12—14% operating margins
= 17%+ return on average equity

Despite the challenging economic environment we experi-
enced throughout most of the year, we met or exceeded all

of our financial goals prior to giving effect to restructuring
and impairment charges. Sales growth increased 17% in
fiscal 2004 on the strength of recently acquired companies.
Organic sales growth was harder to achieve during the
year, though the trend had improved by year-end for most
of our businesses, and results were up slightly compared

to the prior year. Operating margin before restructuring and
impairment charges was 12%. Finally, we achieved 18%
return on average equity before restructuring and impairment
charges, driven by solid earnings growth, improved fixed
asset and working capital management, share repurchases
and strategic acquisitions. Reflecting the effect of restruc-
turing and impairment charges, our operating margin was
10% and return on average shareholders’ equity was 16%.

Major Accomplishments

It was a busy year for Blyth, most notably in terms of our
unusually high level of acquisition activity. Annualized net
sales of our fiscal 2004 acquisitions are approximately
$290 million. These acquisitions total more than the sum of
their individual parts as they offer Blyth a more unified
approach to the home expressions industry in that we are now
reaching the consumer however she chooses to purchase
products for the home. Specifically, following several years
of searching for the right strategic fit, Blyth entered the
catalog and Internet channel with its Miles Kimball acquisition.
This channel has become increasingly attractive in recent
years given its growth as a percentage of retail sales, its
proximity to the consumer and opportunities for leverage with
Blyth's global sourcing capabilities, as well as the future
potential for collaboration among our businesses. At year-end,
for example, PartylLite independent sales consultants
were purchasing high quality stationery and personalized
paper supplies to support their businesses through Miles
Kimball at a lower cost than when previously purchased
outside the Company.

In January, Walter Drake joined the Blyth family of com-
panies, and we began incorporating its operations into
those of Miles Kimball since we expect that the differences
in their sales patterns will allow for improved capacity
utilization when merged. The catalog titles and associated
merchandising teams of both companies will be maintained




separately. Walter Drake's back-office, warehousing and
fulfillment functions are being integrated into Miles Kimball,
which we fully expect to result in savings beginning in the
second half of fiscal 2005.

In June, Blyth expanded its home expressions strategy
in Europe with the acquisition of premium seasonal
decorations designer and marketer Kaemingk. The strength
of Kaemingk's new product development and worldwide
sourcing capabilities support its highly efficient business
model and offer new procurement opportunities for other
Blyth companies.

Other accomplishments within Blyth include the expan-
sion of PartyLite's Web-based Extranet sales management
tool into Europe, beginning with Germany, PartylLite's
largest market outside of the US. By year-end, 20% of
PartyLite’s German show orders were placed via the
Extranet, resulting in improved service to customers and
wider availability of business-building and management
tools for PartyLite consultants. At Blyth HomeScents
International, in addition to the significant rationalization
steps discussed earlier, the North American management
team has streamlined its brand portfolio and focused
marketing resources on targeted brands with clearly defined
positioning within their distribution channels. For the Sterno
Group, financial results have remained under pressure
in a struggling travel and tourism industry. Nevertheless, joint
marketing initiatives within the foodservice industry produced
new revenue opportunities for the chafing fuel business.
Blyth's wholesale Creative Expressions businesses also had
a challenging year, though early indications appear to
support expectations for improved performance in fiscal
year 2005. The Seasons of Cannon Falls™ brand building
efforts marked another milestone this year with the restora-
tion of River House, a living showcase in Cannon Falls,
Minnesota where the brand comes to life, evolving through
the seasons. Looking ahead, with the critical mass we have
achieved in several channels in the home expressions
industry, we now have strategic growth opportunities in
promulgating collaborative efforts between our consumer
wholesale and catalog and Internet businesses.

As is the case every year, none of our many accom-
plishments would be possible without the commitment of
Blyth's worldwide senior management team and the talent
they bring and attract to our business. The exceptional
leaders that have grown our businesses remain Blyth's most
critical and often scarcest resource. | have included a
listing of senior management of each of Blyth's business
units, as well as the officers of the Company, on pages
14 and 15. The attraction, development and retention of top
industry talent are of critical importance to Blyth's Board
of Directors and me as we work to prepare our Company
for future opportunities.

Recent Developments

Following fiscal year-end, Blyth sold its decorative gift bag
business, Jeanmarie Creations, to Jeanmarie's senior
management. Since Blyth’s acquisition of Jeanmarie
Creations in 1995, sales have nearly doubled to over $20
million. While Jeanmarie offered access to an attractive
market opportunity, we recognize the importance of scale
in all of our business units. As additional paper-related
acquisitions did not appear likely, focusing on our larger
businesses with greater opportunity for leveraging our core
competencies became the best choice.

Many changes have taken place at Blyth in recent years
as we have continued to position the Company for broader
participation in the worldwide home expressions industry.
What has not changed is my commitment to maintaining
high expectations, uncompromised ethical principles and
the entrepreneurial spirit that helped make Blyth what
it is today. Blyth's senior management team and Board of
Directors share these values with me, and together we
work to ensure that they remain an integral part of our

organization’s culture.

Robert B. Goergen
Chairman of the Board

May 13, 2004
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ki

L
Y r" 7

7 i ‘/ {
N A s AT s s
Direct Selling
Wholesale

Away From Home

Catalog & Internet

Cash Flow from Operations (in Millions)







Direct Selling

Blyth entered the direct selling distribution channel in 1990 with its acquisition of
Colonial Candle of Cape Cod and, with it, a small division—less than $10 million
in sales—called PartyLite. Originally conceived as a way to liquidate excess and
obsolete inventory, PartylLite has grown following its acquisition by Blyth to represent nearly haif
of Blyth's $1.6 billion of annualized sales. PartyLite independent sales Consultants, who number
greater than 57,000 worldwide, sell premium fragranced candles and a wide range of related decorative
accessories to consumers through the home party plan method of direct selling. PartyLite operates

in all 50 states in the U.S., in Puerto Rico, the U.S. Virgin Islands, Canada, Mexico, Germany, the U.K,,
Austria, Switzerland, France, Finland and Australia.

Direct selling is a large, growing and profitable sales model that is not always well understood,
despite its worldwide prominence. More than $85 billion of goods are distributed through this channel
annually, and over 48 million people around the world earn at least part of their income as an
independent sales consultant. At 28% of worldwide industry revenue, the party plan model represents
a large and growing segment of direct sales.

PartylLite offers independent sales Consultants the opportunity to start their own business with
minimal financial investment. A starter kit can be earned in a few short weeks with the requisite
number of shows and sales. Informative and interactive parties are organized
by hostesses and hosts and feature a knowledgeable Partylite sales Consultant
who demonstrates the many features and benefits of PartyLite® brand products
in a comfortable home environment. Guests learn about the platinum quality
inherent in every PartylLite product and how to decorate their homes with fragrance,
color and style. The many benefits of PartyLite's generous hostess/host program
are also discussed and often prompt guests to book their own shows for which
they can receive free and discounted products.

PartyLite independent sales Consultants realize the benefits of
being in business for themselves without being in business by
themselves. Training, support and camaraderie are an integral part
of the‘ PartyLite Consuitant's experience, and their businesses are
supported with enhanced business building and order processing
tools via the PartyLite Extranet, the introduction of four new product
lines and catalogs annually and an industry-leading compensation
program. Some Consultants choose to pursue their PartyLite business
full-time and build their income through Leadership by sponsoring
and assisting other Consultants in building their own businesses,
for which they receive additional compensation based on the sales of their Unit. Thus, the annual
income of PartyLite Consultants can range from a few thousand dollars for the seasonal Consultant
up to $1 million or more for the top Senior Regional Vice President—the choice is theirs.

a
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A key marketing strategy for Blyth is reaching the consumer wherever she
chooses to make her purchases: from small, independent gift shops to
specialty retailers to mass merchandisers. Blyth serves this market, which
it estimates to be in excess of $100 billion at retail in North America and
Europe, with seasonal and home decorative products through focused

brand and channel strategies.

in North America and Europe, Blyth's home fragrance products are
marketed to retailers in the premium and specialty channel under the Colonial Candle of Cape Cod®
and Carolina® brands. Seasons of Cannon Falls™ brand holiday decorations, previously sold only
in North America, were introduced in Europe in 2003. Blyth also markets seasonal decorations
under the Kaemingk® brand in Europe, which became part of the Blyth family of
companies in June 2003. Home décor products, marketed under the CBK®
brand, round out the North American premium and specialty channel. Mass
market brands Florasense®, Gies®, Ambria®, Liljehoimens® and Holiday365™,
along with select private label programs, are marketed to Blyth's North American
and European customers.

innovation is a primary growth driver of the Company's consumer wholesale
brands. Within Blyth's home fragrance business, new accessories, fragrances,
colors, forms and technologies are developed and tested by Blyth
Research and Development in cooperation with business unit marketing
departments and key suppliers. Most new candle product concepts
are consumer panel-tested to ensure that they meet or exceed
competitive benchmarks. A diverse supply chain that includes
Company-owned manufacturing facilities as well as partnerships with
global suppliers ensures consistent and cost-effective production,
with Blyth Global Sourcing managing social compliance, product
quality standards and logistics.

Innovation also plays a key role in Blyth's home décor and seasonal
decorations businesses. Because all of these products are sourced,
collaboration between the Company's designers and suppliers
is paramount. Blyth's extensive global supply chain management
ensures quality and competitive pricing and leverages relationships
across Blyth's businesses and the suppliers interacting with them.

—_— Exclusive, licensed products such as CBK's Tracy Porter home décor

line or designs from Midwest's Wendy Addison collection offer
retailers additional marketing value while supporting Blyth's brand strategies. Brand showcases such
as the Seasons of Cannon Falls™ River House bring the creative spirit to life and offer retailers and

consumers decorating and gift ideas and inspiration.







Catalog & Internet

The availability of goods and services sold through
mail-order catalogs and the Internet has grown
rapidly in recent years, with the most recent data
noting that annual sales in this distribution channel
exceeded $73 billion in the United States. Dual-
income families, favorable demographic trends
and an increased willingness to use widespread,
convenient, on-line shopping tools indicate signifi-
cant opportunity in this growing channel.

In 2003, Blyth built on its multi-channel product marketing strategy
and entered the catalog and Internet channel with its acquisition of the
Miles Kimball Company. Products offered under the Miles Kimball®
brand include gifts, household convenience items and personalized
merchandise through its catalog and website, as well as photo albums,
frames and archiving products through the Exposures® brand catalog
and website. Both the Miles Kimball and Exposures brands also offer
holiday greeting cards. Expert personalization capabilities lend a special touch to cards or gifts and
complete the look of high quality photo albums and display merchandise such as picture frames.

The Walter Drake® catalog title joined the Blyth family of companies at the end of fiscal year 2004
and is now a division of the Miles Kimball Company. While the Walter Drake and Miles Kimball
catalogs offer similar merchandise, they have limited customer overlap and their sales patterns differ
significantly, allowing for the consolidation of customer service, warehousing and fulfillment operations.
Catalog paper procurement and postal services can now be leveraged between these two businesses,
and catalog printing, among other global sourcing functions, can be leveraged in conjunction with
other Blyth business units. Multiple strategic possibilities, including
growth through new or existing catalog titles, exist for Blyth with
its newly-formed catalog and Internet business.

Multiple technological applications benefit Blyth’s catalog and
% FRN ) " Internet presence and can be leveraged as this channel grows.
MISS BARR ) ) Sophisticated indexing systems ensure objective, measurable
\ ' performance of every product. Advanced e-commerce tools offer

TO TEACH a superior buying experience and streamlined shopping opportu-
| ls TO TOUEH ; ’ nities for customers. Customer purchase data, demographics
}l llEMpREVER i - and usage characteristics, managed for catalog and Internet
sales and customer targeting, are key factors for success and
are scalable with continued growth in this strategic channel.

Tonathas Found
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The year 1977 marked Blyth's entry into the Away From Home or
Foodservice business. Through Candle Corporation of America, Blyth
subsequently acquired Sterno® brand chafing fuel, which is principally
sold to the Away From Home market, as well as to consumers through mass
merchandisers, sporting, hardware and club stores.

A comprehensive line of products to address muitiple food and beverage
heating applications is offered under the Sterno brand. An unmatched heritage
of innovation and production focused on
end-user concerns related to safety, labor

and food quality demonstrate why Sterno
is the #1 brand in chafing fuel worldwide.

A full line of Ambria® tabletop lighting
products used in restaurants, hotels and the catering trade offers a
diverse selection of distinctive candle and fuel cartridge-based
lamp styles to bring a signature look to a wide variety of settings.
Convenient Ambria Crystalyte® brand liquid wax cartridges provide
the brightest and cleanest burn in the industry.

The Sterno Group's sophisticated, worldwide supply chain has

enabled it to partner with industry-leading foodservice distributors

and chains. The strength of this brand is recognized for innovation,

safety and quality, all of which has become increasingly important as the industry consolidates.
Supply chain excellence has been recognized
in 8 of the past 9 years with the Top 100
Vendor Award from foodservice distribution
leader Sysco. As dining out—and serving
more prepared foods when dining in—trends

increase, the opportunity to play a greater -
branded role to the foodservice industry as
well as to consumers offers growth potential
to Blyth's brands.
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BUSINESS UNIT MANAGEMERT

DIRECT SELLING GROUP

FRANK P. MINEO
President, PartyLite Worldwide

James Mannion, President
PartyLite North America

s Melanie Hayden, President
PartyLite Canada

Anne Butler, President

PartyLite International

= Martin Kéhier, General
Manager, PartyLite Germany

« Franz Stein, Group General
Manager, New & Emerging
Markets—Europe

ASIA PACIFIC

i

§fephen\/Kosmalski, President
Blyth HomeScents International
North América
Jbﬂn Damrgermann
Vite-President

AL .
Creative Ex?ressmns ;
~a Jeffrey Wilson, Pre”gide?"nt

WHOLESA&E GROUP

BRUCE g.—GRAIN
President

Jeffrey Cafrr, Managing_[/)lr\ecto‘r
Biyth HomeScents International,
Europe '

= Jérgen Dreyer, Managing

Director, The Gies;Group_~ Midwest, fnc. |
= Louise McMahon, [Genera\l\ y Rahdy Eller, President
ManageryThe Colony Group>~~( CBK Styles

o Jos van Tol, President 7 Walter Adams, Rresident
Kaemingk | L (The Sterno Group

N7

CATALOG AND
INTERNET GROUP

ROBERT B. GOERGEN, JR.
President

Michael Muoio, President
Miles Kimball Company




4 PartylLite®

brand Café Tealight House™
collection

4 Miles Kimbali®

brand geese with St. Patrick's
Day outfits

Fiorasense®p

brand Once & Again™ candle
in reusable ceramic container

CBK®p

brand Tracy Porter® collection

4§ Holiday365™
brand Polar Pals
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brand baby bunny tealight holde
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home fragrancer, votive candles, home !
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brand Santa bears
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DIRECTORS

SHAREHOLDER
INFORMATION

ROGER A. ANDERSON 13
Chairman
Promotion Products, Inc.

JOHN W. BURKHART 3
Chairman
Breezy Hill Enterprises, Inc.

PAMELA M. GOERGEN
Managing Director
The Ropart Group

ROBERT B. GOERGEN
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

of the Company

NEAL I. GOLDMAN 2
President

Goldman Capital
Management, Inc.

1 Member of the Audit Committee

2 Member of the Compensation Committee

PHILIP GREER 2.3
Managing Director
Greer Family Consulting
& Investments, LLC

CAROL ). HOCHMAN 2
President and Chief
Executive Officer
Danskin, Inc.

WILMA H. JORDAN
Chief Executive Officer
The Jordan, Edmiston Group

JOHN E. PRESCHLACK 2.3
Chairman and President
JEPCOR, Inc.

HOWARD E. ROSE'
Former Chief Financial
Officer of the Company

3 Member of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

The charter of each committee is available at www.blyth.com or by contacting Blyth's

corporate offices.

COMMON STOCK

Listed on the New York Stock Exchange

Trading Symbol: BTH
DIVIDEND POLICY

It is the policy of the Company normally to pay cash dividends upon its
Common Stock in equal semi-annual instaliments on or about the 15t day
of May and November of each year, subject to the declaration thereof by
the Board of Directors, in its sole discretion. The most recent semi-annual
dividend payment of $0.17 per share was made on May 14, 2004.

ANNUAL MEETING
OF SHAREHOLDERS

will be held on Thursday, June 24, 2004

at 9:00 aAm. Eastern Time at
Blyth, Inc.

One East Weaver Street
Greenwich, CT 06831

TRANSFER AGENT

EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.
PO Box 43010

Providence, RI 02940-3010
Phone: (781) 575-2723

Hearing Impaired: (781) 575-2692

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
300 Atlantic Street

Stamford, CT 06901

FOR SHAREHOLDER
INFORMATION, CONTACT:
Tyler P. Schuessler
Director

Corporate Offices

(203) 661-1926

CORPORATE OFFICES
Blyth, Inc.

One East Weaver Street
Greenwich, CT 06831-5118
Phone: (203) 661-1926

Fax: (203) 661-1969

E-mail: blyth@blyth.com
www.blyth.com
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Part1
Item 1. Business

(a) General Development of the
Business

Blyth, Inc. (together with its subsidiaries,
the “Company,” which may be referred
to as “we,” “us” or “our”) is a home
expressions company competing
primarily in the home décor, seasonal
decorations and gift industry.  The
Company  designs, markets and
distributes an extensive array of candles,
home fragrance products, decorative
accessories, seasonal decorations and
household convenience items, as well as
tabletop lighting and chafing fuel for the
Away From Home or foodservice trade.
Blyth manufactures most of its candles
and sources nearly all of its other
products. The Company’s sales and
operations take place primarily in the
United States, Canada and Europe, with
additional activity in Mexico, Australia
and the Far East.

Blyth became a publicly traded company
in 1994, at which time net sales were
approximately $157.5 million. Both
internal growth and acquisitions have
contributed to significant overall growth
since that time. Internal growth has been
generated by (a) increased sales of
existing home expressions products to
consumers and retailers, (b) the
introduction of new products and
product line extensions and (c)
geographic expansion. The Company
has also integrated ~ numerous
acquisitions and investments into its
operations since its formation in 1977.

Additional information is available on
our website, www.blyth.com. The

Company’s annual reports on Form 10-
K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q,
current reports on Form 8-K and any
amendments thereto filed or furnished
pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 are available on our website free
of charge as soon as reasonably
practicable following submission to the
SEC. Also available on the Company’s
website are its Corporate Governance
Guidelines, its Code of Conduct, and the
charters for its Audit Committee,
Compensation Committee and
Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee, each of which is available in
print to any shareholder who makes a
request to Blyth, Inc., One East Weaver
Street, Greenwich, CT 06831; Attention
Bruce D. Kreiger, Secretary.  The
information posted to www.blyth.com,
however, is not incorporated herein by
reference and is not a part of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

(b) Business Segments

The Company reports its financial results
in five business segments: the Direct
Selling segment, the Wholesale Home
Fragrance segment, the Wholesale
Creative Expressions segment, the
Catalog & Internet segment, and the All
Other segment. These segments
accounted for approximately 51%, 25%,
14%, 7% and 4% of consolidated net
sales, respectively, for the fiscal year
ended January 31, 2004." Financial
information relating to these business
segments for the years ended January 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002 appears in Note 18
of the Company’s consolidated financial

"Percentages do not add up to 100% due to
rounding.




statements and is incorporated herein by
reference.

Direct Selling Segment

In fiscal year 2004, this segment
represented approximately 51% of
Blyth’s total sales.  Products sold
globally in the Direct Selling segment
are marketed through a network of
independent sales consultants using the
party plan method of direct selling.
Products designed, manufactured or
sourced, marketed and distributed within
this segment include fragranced and non-
fragranced candles, bath products and a
broad range of related accessories.
These products are sold in North
America, Europe and Australia under the
brand name PartyLite®.

United States Market

Within the United States market,
candles, other home fragrance products,
bath products and related accessories are
sold directly to consumers through a
network of  independent sales
consultants. Independent  sales
consultants are compensated on the basis
of PartyLite® brand product sales at
parties organized by them and parties
organized by consultants recruited by
them. Over 36,000 independent sales
consultants located in the US were
selling PartyLite® brand products in the
US at fiscal 2004 year-end. Our
products are designed, packaged and
priced in a manner appropriate to the
premium nature of their quality and
exclusivity and distribution channel
through which they are sold.

International Market

Blyth continues to focus on becoming a
global home fragrance company in its

Direct Selling segment. In fiscal 2004,
products were sold internationally in this
segment directly to consumers by more
than 20,000 independent sales consultants
located outside the US, the exclusive
distributors of PartyLite® brand products.
These products were sold in the following
international markets during fiscal year
2004: Australia, Austria, Canada, Finland,
France, Germany, Mexico, Switzerland
and the United Kingdom.

We support our independent sales
consultants with inventory management
and control and satisfy delivery
requirements through on-line ordering,
which is available to all independent
sales consultants in the United States,
Canada and Germany.

Wholesale Home Fragrance Segment

In fiscal year 2004, this segment
represented approximately 25% of
Blyth’s total sales. Blyth is a global
wholesale home fragrance company.
Products designed, manufactured or
sourced, marketed and distributed within
this segment include fragranced and non-
fragranced candles, potpourri, seasonal
decorations, environmental fragrance
products such as air fresheners and
filters and a broad range of related
accessories. These products are sold in
multiple channels of distribution in
North America and Europe under brand
names that include Ambria®,
Colonial™', Colonial Candle of Cape
Cod®, Colonial at HOME®, Carolina®,
Florasense®, Gies®', Kaemingk®' and
Liljeholmens®. Our wholesale home
fragrance  products are  designed,
packaged and priced to satisfy the
varying demands of consumers within
each distribution channel.




United States Market

Products sold in the Wholesale Home
Fragrance segment in the United States
are marketed through the premium and
mass consumer wholesale channels.
Within these channels, we sell candles,
home fragrance products and related
accessories to independent gift shops,
specialty chains, department stores, food
and drug outlets and mass retailers
through independent sales
representatives, Company key account
managers and Company sales managers.
This sales force supports the Company’s
customers with comprehensive product
catalogs and samples, merchandising
programs and selective fixtures. The
independent  sales  representatives,
Company key account managers and
Company sales managers also receive
training on the marketing and proper use
of our products.

International Market

Products sold internationally in the
Wholesale Home Fragrance segment are
marketed to retailers in the premium and
mass consumer wholesale channels
through independent sales representatives
and Company sales managers. Customers
include European mass merchants, garden
centers, and department and gift stores.

In June 2003, Blyth acquired Kaemingk,
B.V., a European wholesaler of premium
seasonal decorations. Its products are
sold to more than 3,000 garden centers,
and department and gift stores in 20
European countries under the brand
name Kaemingk®'. Kaemingk’s
customer base and sourcing
requirements are similar to those of our
other Wholesale Home Fragrance
businesses, and one management team
handles oversight responsibility for all
businesses in this segment.

Blyth’s international wholesale
operations also include exports of
products from the United States and
various European countries to Canada,
Europe, Latin America and the Pacific
Rim. Exported products are sold
through Company sales managers and
independent sales representatives to
premium and mass retailers.  The
Company may expand its international
presence through the establishment of
additional non-US based marketing and
distribution operations.

The Company believes that competing in
multiple distribution channels offers
certain advantages.  Successful new
ideas and research can be shared among
and adapted by Blyth’s marketing
groups. Blyth’s competitive position in
these channels is enhanced by its ability
to respond quickly to changes in
consumer preferences and new product
trends. Moreover, the Company
effectively supports customers with
inventory management and control and
satisfies delivery requirements through
electronic ordering, which is available to
independent sales representatives and
sales managers in the premium
wholesale channel.

Wholesale
Segment

Creative  Expressions

In fiscal year 2004, this segment
represented approximately 14% of
Blyth’s total sales.  Blyth designs,
markets and distributes home décor
products and seasonal decorations within
this segment. These products are sold
through multiple distribution channels
under brand names that include CBK®,
Holiday365™ and Seasons of Cannon
Falls™.




Home décor products and seasonal
decorations are sold in the United States
to premium and mass retailers. Premium
everyday home décor products and gifts,
including decorative metal and wicker
accessories, picture frames, lamps and
textiles are designed for and marketed
and distributed to more than 25,000
premium independent retailers. Blyth
also designs, markets and distributes
seasonal decorations for the premium
and mass distribution channels. During
fiscal year 2004, the Impact Plastics
seasonal decorations business was
realigned with that of our other
Wholesale Creative Expressions
business, Midwest, in order to
concentrate these seasonal businesses
into one unit.

Catalog & Internet Segment

In fiscal year 2004, this segment
represented approximately 7% of Blyth’s
total sales. Blyth designs, markets and
distributes a wide range of household
convenience items, personalized gifts
and photo storage products within this
segment.  These products are sold
through the catalog and Internet
distribution channel under brand names
that include  Exposures®, Miles
Kimball®, Walter Drake® and The
Home Marketplace®.

Blyth acquired the Miles Kimball
Company, a catalog and Internet
marketer of household convenience
products, personalized gifts, photo
albums, frames and holiday cards, in
April 2003. In December 2003, the
Company acquired Jackson Acquisition
Company, LLC, doing business as
Walter Drake, which markets similar
products through the catalog and Internet
distribution channel. In fiscal year 2005,
we began consolidating the operations of

Walter Drake into those of Miles
Kimball in Oshkosh, Wisconsin as the
seasonality of the Miles Kimball
business is complemented by the
relatively less seasonal selling pattern of
Walter Drake, thereby enhancing
distribution center capacity utilization
throughout the year.

All Other Segment

In fiscal year 2004, this segment
represented approximately 4% of Blyth’s
total sales. Within this segment, we
manufacture and source chafing fuel and
tabletop illumination products sold under
brand names including Sterno®,
HandyFuel® and Ambria® for the Away
From Home or foodservice channel.
These products are sold primarily in the
United States, as well as in Canada,
Europe, Latin America and the Pacific

Rim  through independent  sales
representatives and foodservice
distributors.

United States Market

Products sold in the All Other segment
in the United States are marketed by the
Company to the foodservice industry.
Chafing fuel and tabletop lighting
products such as candles, liquid fuel
lamps and accessories are sold to
restaurants, caterers, hotels and other
institutional customers. Sales are
solicited by  independent  sales
representatives, independent foodservice
distributors and Company  sales
managers.

International Market

The Company also exports foodservice
products from the United States.
Exported products are sold through
Company  sales  managers  and




independent sales representatives to
retailers and foodservice distributors.

Product Brand Names

The key brand names under which our
Direct Selling segment products are sold
are:

PartyLite®
Lavish by PartyLite™

The key brand names under which our
Wholesale Home Fragrance segment
products are sold are:

Asp-Holmblad®"

Carolina®

Colonial™

Colonial Candle of Cape Cod®
Colonial at HOME®
Florasense® '

Gies®'

Kaemingk®'

Liljeholmens®

The key brand names under which our
Wholesale Creative Expressions
segment products are sold are:

CBK®

Holiday365™

JMC Impact™

Seasons of Cannon Falls™

The key brand names under which our
Catalog & Internet segment products are
sold are:

Exposures®

Miles Kimball®

The Home Marketplace®
Walter Drake®

The key brand names under which our
All Other segment products are sold are:

Ambria®
HandyFuel®
Sterno®

New Product Development

Concepts for new products and product
line extensions are directed to the
marketing departments of our business
units from within all areas of the
Company, as well as from the
Company’s independent sales
representatives and worldwide product
manufacturing partners. The new
product development process may
include technical research, consumer
market research, fragrance studies,
comparative analyses, the formulation of
engineering specifications, feasibility
studies, safety assessments, testing and
evaluation which can generally require
from 3 to 18 months to complete. Each
year, new products typically account for
at least 25% of our net sales in the first
full year following their introduction.

The Company’s focus on new products
and product line extensions specific to
each distribution channel and segment
has been an important element of its
efforts to become a leading home
expressions products company. The
continual introduction of new product
forms, shapes, fragrances, packaging and
presentation is intended to appeal to the
changing tastes of consumers and
retailers.

Manufacturing,
Distribution

Sourcing and

In all of the Company’s business
segments, management continuously
works to increase value and lower costs
through  increased  efficiency in
worldwide production, sourcing and
distribution practices, application of new



technologies and process control
systems, and consolidation and
rationalization of equipment and
facilities. Since our 1994 initial public
offering, we have invested over $255
million in new facilities and equipment
in order to lower manufacturing costs,
improve product quality and increase
manufacturing capacity significantly in
order to accommodate expected future
sales growth, as well as to improve the
speed to market of new product
introductions.  Management has also
closed several facilities and written
down the values of certain machinery
and equipment in recent years in
response to changing market conditions.

The manufacture of Blyth’s products
involves the use of highly automated
processes and technologies, as well as
certain hand crafting and finishing.
Many of the Company’s products in all
of its business segments are
manufactured by others based on Blyth’s
design  specifications, making the
Company’s  global  supply chain
approach critically important to its new
product development process, quality
control and cost  management.
Management has also built a network of
stand-alone highly automated
distribution facilities in its core markets.

Technological Advancements

The Company continues to see the
benefit of its substantial investment in
technological initiatives, particularly
Internet-based ordering technology. An
Internet-based order-entry and business
management system is available to all
PartyLite independent sales consultants
in the United States, Canada and
Germany. By fiscal year end, show
orders placed via the PartyLite Extranet
had increased to over 75% of total show

orders in the United States and over 85%
of total show orders in Canada. The
system became available to PartyLite
consultants in Germany during the third
quarter of fiscal 2004, and approximately
20% of German show orders were being
placed via the Extranet by year-end. The
Extranet’s automated features eliminate
errors common on hand-written paper
forms and speed orders through
processing and distribution, improving
customer service.  Furthermore, by
easing the administrative workload and
providing tools with which to track sales
and programs, the Extranet has helped
PartyLite independent sales consultants
build their businesses more efficiently.
The improved accuracy of the automated
system also results in administrative
savings for the Company.

By fiscal year end, Blyth's consumer
wholesale business in North America
introduced UCCnet support with which
the Company now supports automated
product information synchronization
with retailers in the mass channel. This
new technical capability enables us to
send immediate, up-to-date product
information to participating retailers to
ensure that they have current Blyth
product information to support their
supply chain. Today Blyth supports over
200 retail customers with various modes
and forms of electronic data interchange
(EDI).

Customers

Customers in the Direct Selling segment
are individual consumers served by
independent sales consultants.  Sales
within the Catalog & Internet segment
are also made directly to consumers.
Blyth’s Wholesale Home Fragrance
segment and Wholesale Creative
Expressions segment customers include




department and independent gift stores,
mass merchandisers, specialty chains
and food and drug stores. Within its All
Other segment, the Company sells to
institutional customers such as hotels,
restaurants and foodservice distributors.
No single customer accounts for 10% or
more of Blyth’s sales.

Competition

All of the Company’s business segments
are very competitive. Principle
competitive factors are new product
introductions, price, product quality,
delivery time and customer service. The
domestic and international markets are
very fragmented and served by numerous
suppliers in all of Blyth’s business
segments. Additional information about
ways in which the Company’s business

may be affected by increased
competition appears below under the
heading “Risk of Increased
Competition.”

Employees

As of January 31, 2004, the Company
had approximately 5,600 full-time
employees, of whom approximately 26%
are based outside of the United States.
Approximately 4,200 of the 5,600
employees are non-salaried. Blyth does
not have any unionized employees in the
United States. Approximately 50
employees of the Gies Group are
represented by the IG Chemie labor
union in the Company’s German facility
and have a General Agreement in place
with no termination period. A Wages
Agreement will be under negotiation for
renewal beginning in May 2004 and
currently may be terminated by the union
at the end of that month. Management
believes that relations with the
Company’s employees are good. Since
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its formation in 1977, Blyth has never
experienced a work stoppage.

Raw Materials

All of the raw materials used by Blyth
for its candles, home fragrance products
and chafing fuel, principally petroleum-
based wax, fragrance, glass containers
and corrugate, have historically been
available in adequate supply from
multiple sources. Additional
information about ways in which Blyth’s
business may be affected by shortages of
raw materials appears below under the
heading “Risk of Shortages of Raw
Materials.”

Trademarks and Patents

The Company owns and has pending
numerous trademark registrations and
applications in the United States Patent
and Trademark Office related to its
products. Blyth also registers certain
trademarks in other countries. While
management regards these trademarks
and patents as valuable assets to its
business, the Company is not dependent
on any single trademark or patent or
group thereof.

Environmental Law Compliance

Most of the Company’s manufacturing,
distribution and research operations are
affected by federal, state, local and
international environmental laws relating
to the discharge of materials or
otherwise to the protection of the
environment. Management has made
and intends to continue to make the
necessary expenditures to comply with
applicable environmental laws and does
not believe that such expenditures will
have a material effect on the Company’s



capital  expenditures,
competitive position.

earnings  or

Cautionary Factors That May Affect
Future Results

The disclosure and analysis in this
report and in Blyth’s 2004 Annual
Report to Shareholders contain forward-
looking statements that describe the
Company’s current expectations or
Jforecasts of future events. One can
usually identify these statements by the
Jact that they do not relate strictly to
historical or current facts. Forward-
looking statements often include words
such as “anticipate,”  “estimate,”
“expect,” “project,” “intend,” “plan,”
“believe” and other similar words or
terms in connection with any discussion
of future operating or financial
performance. These include statements
relating to future actions, performance
or results related to current or future
products or product approvals, sales
efforts, expenses, the outcome of
contingencies such as legal proceedings
and financial results. From time to time,
the Company may provide oral or
written forward-looking statements in
other public materials.

Any or all of the forward-looking
statements in this report, in our 2004
Annual Report to Shareholders and in
any other public statements made by
management may turn out to be wrong.
They may be affected by inaccurate
assumptions or known or unknown risks
or uncertainties. Many  factors
mentioned in this discussion, such as
competition  or  the  competitive
environment, are important to the
outcome of future results. Consequently,
no forward-looking statements can be
guaranteed, and actual results may vary
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materially  from  the

projections.

Company’s

Management undertakes no obligation to
update publicly any forward-looking
statement, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise.
However the public is advised to review
any future disclosures the Company
makes on related subjects in its quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports
on Form 8-K and annual reports on
Form 10-K to the SEC. The Company
also provides below the following
cautionary  discussion  of  risks,
uncertainties and potentially inaccurate
assumptions relevant to its business.
These and other factors could cause
actual results to differ materially from
expected and historical results and are
provided as permitted by the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1993.

m Risk of Inability to Maintain Growth
Rate

The  Company has  experienced
significant sales growth in past years.
While management expects continued
growth, Blyth’s future growth rate will
likely be less than its historical growth
rate. The Company expects faster sales
growth in its international market versus
its United States market, particularly in
the Direct Selling and Wholesale Home
Fragrance business segments. The
market for Blyth’s Away From Home or
foodservice products has also grown
historically, though at a slower rate, a
pattern that is expected to continue. In
recent years, our overall sales for the
Away From Home or foodservice
products were flat, reflecting a generally
weak economic environment during
these years. The Company’s ability to
increase sales depends on numerous
factors, including market acceptance of
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existing  products, the successful
introduction of new products, the ability
to recruit new independent sales
consultants, sourcing of raw materials
and  demand-driven  increases in
production and distribution capacity.
Business in all of Blyth’s segments is
driven by consumer preferences.
Accordingly, there can be no assurances
that the Company’s current or future
products will maintain or achieve market
acceptance. Blyth’s sales and earnings
results can be negatively impacted by the
worldwide  economic  environment;
particularly the Canadian, United States
and European economies. There can be
no assurances that the Company’s
financial results will not be materially
adversely affected by these factors in the
future.

The Company’s historical growth has
been due in part to acquisitions and
management continues to consider
additional strategic acquisitions. There
can be no assurances that management
will continue to identify suitable
acquisition candidates, consummate
acquisitions on terms favorable to the
Company, finance acquisitions or
successfully integrate acquired
operations.

® Risks Associated With International
Sales and Foreign-Sourced Products

Blyth’s international sales growth rate
has outpaced that of its United States
growth rate in recent years. Moreover,
the Company sources a portion of its
products in all of its business segments
from independent manufacturers in the
Pacific Rim, Europe and Mexico. For
these reasons, Blyth is subject to the
following  risks  associated  with
international manufacturing and sales:
fluctuations in currency exchange rates,
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economic or political instability,
international  public  heath  crises,
transportation costs and delays, difficulty
in maintaining quality control, restrictive
governmental actions, nationalizations,
the laws and policies of the United
States, Canada and certain European
countries affecting the importation of
goods (including duties, quotas and
taxes) and the trade and tax laws of other
nations.

# Ability to Respond to Increased

Product Demand

The Company’s ability to meet future
product demand in all of its business
segments will depend upon its success in
(1) bringing new production and
distribution capacity on line in a timely
manner, (2) improving its ability to
forecast product demand and fulfill
customer orders promptly, (3) improving
customer service-oriented management
information systems and (4) training,
motivating and  managing new
employees. The failure of any of the
above could result in a material adverse
effect on Blyth’s financial results.

m Risk of Shortages of Raw Materials

Certain raw materials could be in short
supply due to capacity, availability, a
change in requirements, weather or other
factors, including supply disruptions due
to production or transportation delays.
Such shortages have not had and are not
presently expected to have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s
operations. While the price of crude oil
is only one of several factors impacting
the price of petroleum wax, it is possible
that recent fluctuations in oil prices may
have a material adverse affect on the cost
of petroleum-based products used in the
manufacture or transportation of Blyth’s
products, particularly in the Direct




Selling and Wholesale Home Fragrance
business segments.

B Dependence on Key
Management Personnel

Corporate

Blyth’s success depends in part on the
contributions  of  key  corporate
management, including its Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer, Robert B.
Goergen. The Company does not have
employment contracts with any of its key
corporate management personnel except
Mr. Goergen, nor does it maintain any
key person life insurance policies. The
loss of any of the key corporate
management personnel could have a
material adverse effect on the Company.

® Risk of Increased Competition

As noted above under the heading
“Competition,” Blyth’s business is
highly competitive both in terms of
pricing and new product introductions.
The worldwide market for home.
expressions  products is  highly
fragmented with numerous suppliers
serving one or more of the distribution
channels served by the Company.
Because there are relatively low barriers
to entry in all of Blyth’s business
segments, the Company may face
increased  competition from  other
companies, some of which may have
substantially greater financial or other
resources than those available to Blyth.
Competition includes companies selling
candles manufactured at low cost outside
of the United States. Moreover, certain
competitors focus on a single geographic
or product market and attempt to gain or
maintain market share solely on the basis
of price.
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m Risks Associated with Terrorist
Attacks or Other Hostilities and the
International Political Climate

Geopolitical conflict, including acts of
war and terrorist attacks, have and may
in the future affect the US and global
economies and may increase other risk
factors faced by the Company.

B Risks Related to
Technology Systems

Information

Blyth’s information technology systems
are dependent on global communications
providers, telephone systems, hardware,
software and other aspects of Internet
infrastructure that have experienced
significant system failures and outages in
the past. Blyth’s systems are susceptible
to outages due to fire, floods, power loss,
telecommunications failures, break-ins
and similar events. Despite the
implementation of network security
measures, the Company’s systems are
vulnerable to computer viruses, break-
ins and similar disruptions from
unauthorized tampering with Company
systems. The occurrence of these or
other events could disrupt or damage
Blyth’s information technology systems
and inhibit internal operations, the
ability to provide customer service or the
ability of customers or sales personnel to
access the Company’s information
systems.

" Registered and sold outside the United States
only.




Item 2. Properties

The following table sets forth the location and approximate square footage of the
Company's major manufacturing and distribution facilities:

Location Use Business Segment
Aalten, Netherlands.................. Distribution Wholesale Home Fragrance 227,500
Amdell Park, Australia............. Distribution Direct Selling
Batavia, I1linois ......ccoovevvrnneee Manufacturing and  Direct Selling and Wholesale Home 486,000
Research & Fragrance
Development
Caldas da Rainha, Portugal ..... Manufacturing and ~ Wholesale Home Fragrance 230,000
: related distribution
Cannon Falls, Minnesota.......... Distribution Wholesale Creative Expressions
Carol Stream, Illinois ............... Distribution Direct Selling
Clara City, Minnesota .............. Manufacturing and ~ Wholesale Creative Expressions 54,000
related distribution
Colorado Springs, Colorado ... Manufacturing and  Catalog & Internet 211,200
related distribution
Cumbria, England' ................... Manufacturing and  Direct Selling and Wholesale Home 206,200
related distribution ~ Fragrance
Elkin, North Carolina.............. Manufacturing and ~ Wholesale Home Fragrance 690,000
related distribution
Glinde, Germany ..........ccoueeune. Manufacturing and ~ Wholesale Home Fragrance 172,000
related distribution
Maynard, Minnesota ............... Manufacturing and ~ Wholesale Creative Expressions 54,000
related distribution
Hyannis, Massachusetts......... Manufacturing Direct Selling and Wholesale Home 69,000
Fragrance
Memphis, Tennessee ............. Distribution Wholesale Home Fragrance 462,000
Monterrey, MeXico........coceueuene Distribution Wholesale Home Fragrance 45,000
Ontario, Canada........c.ccccurunun... Distribution Direct Selling 25,000
Oshkosh, Wisconsin................ Distribution Catalog & Internet 375,000
Oskarshamm, Sweden............. Manufacturing and ~ Wholesale Home Fragrance 123,000
related distribution
Plymouth, Massachusetts........ Distribution Direct Selling 59,000
Texarkana, Texas .....cocevvvvene Manufacturing and ~ All Other - 154,000 65,000
related distribution
Tilburg, Netherlands ............... Distribution Direct Selling 327,000
Tijuana, Mexico ....c.c.cerrvennene Manufacturing Wholesale Home Fragrance 200,800
Union City, Tennessee............ Distribution Wholesale Creative Expressions 360,000 60,000

The Company's executive offices, administrative offices and outlet stores are
generally located in leased space (except for certain offices located in owned space).
Most of the Company's properties are currently being utilized for their intended purpose
except as discussed in the footnotes below.

! Represents four separate facilities as follows: 60,200 square feet, 56,000 square feet and 70,000 square
feet used by Colony Gifts Corporation Limited; 90,000 square feet used by CCW Manufacturing Limited.
2 This facility was closed on January 31, 2004.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

The Company is involved in litigation arising in the ordinary course of its business.
In the opinion of the Company's management, existing litigation will not have a material
adverse effect on the Company's financial position or results of operations.

On June 2, 2003, the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Endar Corp., on the
one hand, and Ennio Racinelli, Darlene Racinelli and others, on the other hand, agreed in
open court to settle and resolve all matters involving or in any way relating to the
previously reported legal proceedings by and between them, by means of a written
settlement and release agreement, without any payment by any party. On August 25,
2003, the case was dismissed by the Riverside Superior Court.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
The Company's 2004 annual meeting of stockholders will be held on June 24, 2004.
No matter was submitted to a vote of security holders in the fourth quarter of the fiscal

year ended January 31, 2004.

PART 11

Item 5. Market for the Company’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters
and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Our Common Stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol
BTH. The price range for the Company’s Common Stock on the New York Stock
Exchange as reported by the New York Stock Exchange was as follows:

FISCAL 2003
(ENDED JANUARY 31, 2003)
HIGH LOW
First Quarter $30.15 $20.85
Second Quarter $32.80 $25.83
Third Quarter $30.34 $23.96
Fourth Quarter $28.63 $23.91
FISCAL 2004
(ENDED JANUARY 31, 2004)
HIGH LOW
First Quarter $26.63 $23.46
Second Quarter $30.38 $25.36
Third Quarter $28.82 $25.95
Fourth Quarter $33.65 $27.93

As of April 27, 2004, there were 1,983 registered holders of record of the Company’s
Common Stock.

On March 31, 2004, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a regular semi-
annual cash dividend in the amount of $0.17 per share of Common Stock payable in the
second quarter of fiscal year 2005. During fiscal years 2004 and 2003, the Company’s
Board of Directors declared dividends as follows: $0.13 per share of Common Stock

15




payable in the second quarter of fiscal year 2004; $0.15 per share of Common Stock
payable in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2004 and $0.11 per share of Common Stock
payable in each of the second and fourth quarters of fiscal year 2003.

The following table sets forth certain information concerning the repurchase of the
Company’s Common Stock made by the Company during the fourth quarter of the fiscal
year ended January 31, 2004.

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES'

(c) Total (d) Maximum
Number of Number (or
Shares Approximate Dollar
Purchased as Value) of Shares
(a) Total (b) Part of Publicly that May Yet Be
Number Average Announced Purchased Under
of Shares | Price Paid Plans or the Plans or
Period Purchased | per Share Programs Programs
Month #1
November 1, 2003 - 89,800 $29.55 4,345,100 1,654,900 shares
November 30, 2003
Month #2
December 1, 2003 - 0 0 4,345,100 1,654,900 shares
December 31, 2003
Month #3
January 1, 2004 - 0 0 4,345,100 1,654,900 shares
January 31, 2004
Total 89,800 $29.55 4,345,100 1,654,900 shares

' On September 10, 1998, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the Company’s share repurchase
program (the “Repurchase Program”) pursuant to which the Company can repurchase up to 1,000,000
shares of its issued and outstanding Common Stock in open market transactions. On June 8, 1999, the
Company’s Board of Directors amended the Repurchase Program and increased the number of shares of
Common Stock to be repurchased by 1,000,000 shares, from 1,000,000 to 2,000,000 shares. On March 30,
2000, the Company’s Board of Directors further amended the Repurchase Program and increased the
number of shares of Common Stock to be repurchased by 1,000,000 shares, from 2,000,000 to 3,000,000
shares. On December 14, 2000, the Company’s Board of Directors further amended the Repurchase
Program and increased the number of shares of Common Stock to be repurchased by 1,000,000 shares,
from 3,000,000 to 4,000,000 shares. On April 4, 2002, the Company’s Board of Directors further amended
the Repurchase Program and increased the number of shares of Common Stock to be repurchased by
2,000,000 shares, from 4,000,000 to 6,000,000 shares. The Repurchase Program does not have an
expiration date. The Company intends to make further purchases under the Repurchase Program.
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mb6.
Selected Consolidated Financial Data

t forth below are selected summary consolidated financial and operating data of the Company for fiscal years 2000 through
J4, which have been derived from the Company’s audited financial statements for those years except for the restatement of
scal year 2003 described in Note 5 below and Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The information presented
:low should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
perations™ and the Company’s consolidated financial statements, including the notes thereto, appearing elsewhere in this Annual
eport to Shareholders on Form 10-K.

Year ended January 31,
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
.n thousands, except per share and percent data) Restated )
;tatement of Earnings Data:
Net sales $ 1,135875 $ 1,178,813 $ 1,178,771 §$ 1,283,583 § 1,505,573
Gross profit ¥ 572,006 596,101 577,005 640,302 723,675
Operating profit 164,001 145,244 120,490 155,517 153,077
Interest expense 12,104 15,876 17,237 14,664 17,443
Earnings before income taxes, minority interest
and cumulative effect of accounting change @ 150,390 130,690 108,289 142,557 136,893
Earmings before minority interest and
cumulative effect of accounting change 92,847 80,715 68,006 89,525 86,516
Net earnings 92,389 79,562 68,006 57,772 86,351
Basic net earnings per common share
before cumulative effect of accounting change  $ 191 $ 1.69 § 145 § 1.94 8 1.89
Cumulative effect of accounting change © - (0.02) - (0.69) -
3 191 § 1.67 § 145 § 125 % 1.89
Diluted net earnings per common share
before cumulative effect of accounting change  $ 1.89 § 169 § 144 % 192 § 1.88
Cumulative effect of accounting change - (0.02) - (0.68) -
$ 1.89 § 1.66 % 1.44 $ 124§ 1.88
Cash dividends paid, per share $ - % 020 § 020 $ 022 § 0.28
Basic weighted average number
of common shares outstanding 48,471 47,629 47,056 46,256 45,771
Diluted weighted average number
of common shares outstanding 48,818 47,902 47,205 46,515 46,027
Operating Data:
Gross profit margin 50.4% 50.6% 48.9% 49.7% 48.1%
Operating profit margin 14.4% 12.3% 10.2% 12.1% 10.2%
Capital expenditures $ 47,740 $ 25322 § 11,901 $ 14322 § 21,963
Depreciation and amortization 28,107 33,383 36,246 30,212 35,954
Balance Sheet Data:
Working capital $ 191,257 § 224413 § 285771 § 324060 $§ 400,540
Total assets 714,536 770,974 804,781 860,084 1,127,963
Total debt 196,222 199,968 191,701 176,493 293,886
Total stockholders' equity 380,214 421,794 468,063 507,852 588,970

48] Statement of Earnings Data includes the results of operations for periods subsequent to the respective purchase acquisitions of the remaining 50% of Colony Gifi Corporation
Limited in May 1999, which was previously included as an equity investment, Midwest of Cannon Falls, Inc. acquired in April 2001, CBK, Lid., LLC (now CBK Styles, Inc)
acquired in May 2002, Miles Kimball Company acquired in April 2003, Kaemingk B.V. acquired in June 2003 and Walter Drake acquired in December 2003, none of which had a
material effect on the Company’s results of aperations in the period during which they occurred, or thereafter.

2) Fiscal 2001 pre-tax earnings include restructuring and impairment charges of approximately 87.7 million related to realignment of the Company’s European operations and US
consumer wholesale organization, decisions 10 exit certain product lines, and changes impacting its specialty retail business. Fiscal 2001 pre-tax earnings also include
approximately $9.0 million of unusual charges to cost of sales for adjustments to carrying values of inventory connected with these initiatives, as well as 82.3 million of unexpected
bad debt expenses associated with certain customer bankruptcy filings. Fiscal 2002 pre-tax earnings include restrucruring and impairment charges of approximately $14.1 million
related to closure of the Company’s 62" Street Chicago facility, other rationalization of the North American consumer wholesale business and certain changes in the European
sector. Fiscal 2002 pre-tax earnings also include approximately $6.3 million and $5.0 million in unusual charges to cost of sales for inveniory revaluations related to the US mass
market and other markeiplace conditions impacting realizable value of obsolete inventory. Fiscal 2003 pre-tax earnings include an impairment charge of $2.6 million as a result of
putting Wax Lyrical into receivership. Fiscal 2004 pre-tax earnings include restructuring and impairment charges of $23.8 million related to manufacturing equipment
impairment, closure of the Company’s Hyannis manufacturing facility, the discontinuance of the Canterbury® brand, and the closure of five of the Company's candle owlet stores.

3) The Company recorded a one-time cumulative effect of accounting change in January 2001 1o reflect the adoption of Staff’ Accounting Bulletin ("SAB ") 101, " Revenue Recognition
in Financial Statements.” The Company recorded a one-time cumulative effect of accounting change in February 2002 to reflect the adoption of SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets.” (See Note ! to the Consolidated Financial Statements, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies”’).

[C)] The Company made reclassifications to previously reported ret sales and gross profit information to reflect the adoption of Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 01-09. (See
Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies”).

(5) The Company has restated its fiscal 2003 financial statements to reflect an increase in the cumulative effect of accounting change related 10 the adoption of SFAS 142, “Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets.” See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Item 7.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The financial and business analysis below provides information that we believe is relevant to an assessment
understanding of our consolidated financial condition, changes in financial condition and results of operati
This financial and business analysis should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements
accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements set forth in Item 8. below.

OVERVIEW

For the past several years, we have reported financial information for two reporting segments, namely Candles
Home Fragrance and Creative Expressions. We have reevaluated our operating segments pursuant to Statement
Financial Accounting Standards No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Informatio
and determined to report financial information with respect to five reporting segments, namely Direct Selli
Wholesale Home Fragrance, Wholesale Creative Expressions, Catalog & Internet and All Other. This revision
segments had the related effect of requiring changes in the Company’s reporting units for purposes of goodw
impairment reviews under SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” retroactive to the February
2002 adoption date of SFAS 142. This resulted in the need to perform impairment reviews of several addition
reporting units as of February [, 2002 and each subsequent year-end balance sheet date, thereafter. The
impairment reviews indicated the need to record a $27 million goodwill impairment specifically in our Wholesa
Home Fragrance segment, which we have recorded as an increase in the cumulative effect of accounting change f
the adoption of SFAS 142 as of February 1, 2002. As a result, we have restated our 2003 financial statements
discussed in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, and such restatement is reflected throughout th
remainder of management’s discussion and analysis that is set forth below.

The Company’s fiscal year 2004 financial results were strong, despite the overall weakness in the hom
expressions industry in which we operate, and included record sales and strong cash flow and earnings. We believ
that the strength of our results is a reflection of the successful execution of our growth strategy and our ongoin:
efforts to ensure that our global supply chain is consistent with the needs of our marketplace. As discussed mor
fully below, net sales for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2004 increased 17% to a record $1,506 million.
Operating profits were $153 million, after pre-tax restructuring and impairment charges of $24 million, and net
earnings, net of the $15 million after-tax effect of such charges, were $86 million. Cash flow from operations, at
$173 million, was very strong again this year.

Towards fiscal year end, we announced a series of steps that continue the rationalization of our business model,
primarily in our wholesale candle business, which began several years ago. These steps reflect our response to
rapid changes in the marketplace, as well as our determination that a hybrid supply chain strategy of both
manufacturing and sourcing is more effective given these changes. While healthy growth continues within our
European businesses, growth in the home fragrance category has moderated in North America, and the ongoing and
increasing pressures of international competition necessitate increased efficiency in our operations. Moreover,
Blyth has also realized significant productivity improvements in its manufacturing facilities in recent years. The
evaluation and rationalization of our infrastructure and evolution of our hybrid strategy is of strategic importance
and is a major, continuing management focus.

During our fiscal 2004 fourth quarter, we disposed of and wrote off certain equipment in our primary North
American manufacturing facilities in response to the above mentioned factors, as well as in response to a
continued, consumer-driven product shift from candle forms such as pillars and tapers towards filled containers,
votives and tealights. We also recognized restructuring and impairment charges in the fourth quarter in connection
with the consolidation of our Temecula, California potpourri operations, and the write down of certain other
equipment and severance payments to employees. In addition, we recognized an impairment related to our fiscal
1997 acquisition of the Canterbury® brand.

In July 2003, our candle manufacturing facility in Monterrey, Mexico was destroyed by fire. After extensive
review, we decided to focus our North American candle production in our two largest state-of-the-art US facilities
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

WERVIEW (continued)

nd not rebuild in Monterrey. This review also led to the decision to close our Hyannis, Massachusetts plant,
3lyth’s smallest manufacturing facility, which was located in a congested downtown Cape Cod area that hampered
he transportation of raw materials and finished goods. Most of the charges associated with the Hyannis closure
vere recorded in the Direct Selling segment. The costs associated with the fire were recorded in the Wholesale
lome Fragrance segment and are expected to be recouped through insurance.

We believe that all of these steps have positioned Blyth to compete more effectively in the changing worldwide
marketplace, and we will continue to evaluate our business model as markets evolve.

We invested $22 million in capital projects in fiscal year 2004 and an additional $149 million in cash for the
acquisitions of Miles Kimball, Kaemingk and Walter Drake. Annualized net sales of our fiscal 2004 acquisitions
are approximately $290 million. We ended the year with $230 million of cash and cash equivalents on our balance
sheet.

Building on our healthy financial condition and strong balance sheet, we took advantage of historically low interest
rates this year by issuing $100 million of 10-year senior notes in October. The proceeds will be used for any or all
of internal reinvestment in our businesses, the funding of strategic acquisitions, the repayment of certain short-term
debt, dividend payments and share repurchases.

SEGMENTS

Blyth is a global competitor in the gift and decorative accessories market, which the Company calls the home
expressions industry. Within this category, the Company reports its financial results in five segments — the Direct
Selling segment, the Wholesale Home Fragrance segment, the Wholesale Creative Expressions segment, the
Catalog & Internet segment, and the All Other segment. Miles Kimball Company (“Miles Kimball™), acquired in
April 2003 and Walter Drake, acquired in December 2003, are included in the Catalog & Internet segment.
Kaemingk B.V. (“Kaemingk”), acquired in June 2003, is included in the Wholesale Home Fragrance segment.
Prior to January 31, 2004, the Company reported its financial results in two reporting segments, the Candles &
Home Fragrance segment and the Creative Expressions segment. The Company has reevaluated its operating
segments based on the application of FASB Statement No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and
Related Information,” and determined to report financial information with respect to five reporting segments in
fiscal 2004 and four in fiscal 2003 and 2002 (The increase in segments in fiscal 2004 was due to the acquisitions
that were consummated in fiscal 2004). The Company’s financial statement footnotes have been restated to reflect
the revised segments. In addition, due to the change in the Company’s reportable segments and the resulting
change in reporting units under SFAS 142, the Company has restated its fiscal 2003 financial statements to reflect
the recording of a $27.2 million goodwill impairment charge related to the Wholesale Home Fragrance segment as
of the February 1, 2002 adoption date of SFAS 142, The Company’s reportable and operating segments are based
on financial information regularly evaluated by the chief operating decision maker in determining resource
allocation and assessing performance. The Company has operations outside of the United States and sells products
in the Direct Selling and Wholesale Home Fragrance segments worldwide. The majority of sales in the Wholesale
Creative Expressions, Catalog & Internet and the All Other segments, are domestically based.

Within the Direct Selling segment, the Company designs, manufactures or sources and markets an extensive line of
products including candle accessories, scented candles, fragranced bath gels and body lotions and other fragranced
products. These products are sold direct to the consumer under the PartyLite® brand in North America, Europe
and Australia through a network of more than 56,000 independent sales consultants.

Within the Wholesale Home Fragrance segment, the Company designs, manufactures or sources and markets an

extensive line of products including candle accessories, scented candles, potpourri and other fragranced products.
In addition, in Europe, the Company designs and markets seasonal decorations to independent and specialty

19




Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

SEGMENTS (continued)

retailers. Products in this segment are sold worldwide to retailers in the premium and specialty wholesale chan
under the Ambria®, Carolina®, Colonial™', Colonial Candle of Cape Cod®, Colonial at HOME®, Kaemingk
Kate’s™ and Liljeholmens® brands and in the mass retail channel under the Ambria®, FilterMate®, Florasens
and Gies®' brands.

Within the Wholesale Creative Expressions segment, the Company designs, sources and markets a broad range
home décor products under the CBK® brand, seasonal decorations under the Holiday365™, JMC Impact™ a
Seasons of Cannon Falls™ brands, and until Jeanmarie was sold in April 2004, decorative gift bags under t
Jeanmarie® brand. These products are sold primarily in North America.

Within the Catalog & Internet segment, the Company designs, sources and markets a broad range of househo
convenience items, premium photo albums, frames, holiday cards and gifts under the Exposures®, Miles Kimball
and Walter Drake® brands. These products are sold primarily in North America.

Within the All Other segment, the Company designs, manufactures or sources and markets a variety of chafin
fuel, candles and tabletop lighting products to the Away From Home or foodservice trade under the brand name
Ambria®, HandyFuel® and Sterno®. These products are sold primarily in North America.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the percentage relationship to net sales and the percentag
increase of certain items included in the Company’s consolidated statements of earnings:

Percentage Increase (Decrease)
from Prior Period

Percentage of Net Sales Fiscal 2003 Fiscal 2004
Years Ended January 31 Compared Compared
Restated to Fiscal to Fiscal
2002 2003 2004 2002 2003
Net sales 100.0 100.0 100.0 93 16.8
Cost of goods sold 511 50.3 51.9 7.7 20.6
Gross profit 48.9 49.7 48.1 11.0 13.0
Selling 28.4 28.2 27.7 8.7 14.8
Administrative 8.7 9.2 8.6 14.9 9.0
Operating profit 10.2 12.1 10.2 29.1 (1.6)
Net earnings 5.8 4.5 5.7 (15.0) 49.5

Fiscal 2004 Compared to Fiscal 2003

Net sales increased $217.0 million, or 17%, from $1,288.6 million in fiscal 2003 to $1,505.6 million in fiscal 2004.
Approximately 16 percentage points of the 17% increase in net sales is attributable to the positive sales impact of
Miles Kimball, which Blyth acquired in April 2003, Kaemingk, which was acquired in June 2003, Walter Drake
acquired in December 2003, and the positive impact of approximately twelve weeks of acquisition-related sales
growth of CBK Styles, Inc., which Blyth acquired in May 2002. The loss of sales from Wax Lyrical, which was
closed in December 2002, had a negative impact on sales equal to approximately one percentage point. The
relative strength of foreign currencies versus the US dollar had a positive impact on fiscal 2004 sales growth equal
to approximately 4 percentage points. Management believes that a relatively weak holiday sales season in calendar
2002, geopolitical events including SARS and the outbreak of war in Iraq resulted in very cautious buying patterns
by retailers, which negatively impacted Blyth’s sales throughout fiscal 2004.

" Colonial, Gies and Kaemingk trademarks are registered and sold only outside the United States.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

scal 2004 Compared to Fiscal 2003 (continued)
2t Sales — Direct Selling Segment

et sales in the Direct Selling segment, represented by our PartyLite direct selling unit for candles, home fragrance
‘oducts and related accessories, increased $47.1 million, or 7%, from $717.4 million in fiscal 2003 to $764.5
iitlion in fiscal 2004. The relative strength of foreign currencies versus the US dollar had a positive impact on
ales in the direct selling segment equal to approximately 5 percentage points. In PartyLite’s European markets,
iscal 2004 sales increased approximately 33%. In local currencies, PartyLite’s European sales were 11% above
ie prior year, driven by sales growth in the developing markets of Austria, Switzerland, France and Finland. In
Jorth America, PartyLite’s US sales were approximately equal to the prior year, while PartyLite Canada reported a
1% increase versus the prior year. In local currency, PartyLite Canada’s sales declined 10% from the prior year.
We believe that PartyLite’s sales in the US and Canada were negatively impacted by cautious consumer spending
esulting from economic and geopolitical concerns.

Management has expected and continues to expect that growth trends within PartyLite’s major markets will vary
considerably over the long term. In the more penetrated US and Canadian markets, low to mid-single digit growth
is expected. Within Europe, established countries such as Germany and the UK may experience single-digit
growth, whereas newer markets typically experience double-digit or strong double-digit growth.

Net sales in the Direct Selling segment represented approximately 51% of total Blyth sales in fiscal 2004 compared
to 56% in fiscal 2003.

Net Sales — Wholesale Home Fragrance Segment

Net sales in the Wholesale Home Fragrance segment increased $63.3 million, or 20%, from $310.2 million in fiscal
2003 to $373.5 million in fiscal 2004. The primary cause of this increase was the acquisition of Kaemingk in June
2003, which had a positive effect of 23 percentage points. The loss of sales of Wax Lyrical, which was closed in
December 2002, had a negative impact on sales of approximately 5 percentage points. The strengthening of foreign
currency exchange rates versus the US dollar had a positive effect of 7 percentage points. Net sales in the
Wholesale Home Fragrance segment represented approximately 25% of total Blyth sales in fiscal 2004 compared
to 24% in fiscal 2003.

In Europe, the Wholesale Home Fragrance segment experienced a sales increase of approximately 55% in fiscal
2004 versus fiscal 2003. The acquisition of Kaemingk had a positive effect on sales of approximately 50
percentage points, and the closure of Wax Lyrical had a negative impact of approximately 11 percentage points on
sales. The strengthening of foreign currency exchange rates versus the US dollar had a positive effect of
approximately 15 percentage points. We believe that the increase in sales from pre-existing businesses was
partially attributable to improved sales management programs in the European mass channel the effect of which
was offset by a decline in the European premium channel, in which a consolidating retailer base was cautious in
ordering inventory due to economic and geopolitical concerns.

In North America, the Wholesale Home Fragrance segment experienced a sales decline of 9% versus the prior year.
This was principally due to decreased sales in the mass channel as management declined to participate this year in
certain holiday programs that had unacceptable profit margins. The growth of competitive direct import products
also had a negative impact on this segment’s North American mass channel sales. Segment sales in the premium
channel in fiscal 2004 were slightly below the prior year, partly due to management’s decision to discontinue
certain product lines in favor of a streamlined brand and SKU portfolio more appropriate to current channel and
customer sales trends, as well as from retailer economic cautiousness. In fiscal 2004, management focused its
efforts on marketing the premium Colonial Candle of Cape Cod® brand, and sales of that brand showed positive
results versus the prior year.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
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Fiscal 2004 Compared to Fiscal 2003 (continued)

Net Sales — Wholesale Creative Expressions Segment

Net sales in the Wholesale Creative Expressions segment were flat at approximately $204.0 million in both fi
2003 and fiscal 2004. The acquisition of CBK in May 2002 had a positive impact on sales equal to 10%. Sale
both the premium and mass channels were impacted by delayed and reduced ordering by retailers followin
relatively weak holiday sales period in calendar year 2002. Net sales in the Wholesale Creative Expressi
segment accounted for approximately 14% of Blyth’s total net sales in fiscal 2004 compared to 16% in fiscal 20

Net Sales — Catalog & Internet Segment

Net sales in the Catalog & Internet segment were $110.7 million in fiscal 2004 due entirely to the acquisitions
Miles Kimball and Walter Drake. Blyth sought to enter this distribution channel for several years, as it was t
primary strategic channel in which we did not yet have a sales presence. With the initial acquisition of Mil
Kimball and the addition of Walter Drake, the operations of which are being integrated into those of Mil

Kimball, Blyth is now operating in all of its desired channels and we believe we can now reach consumers howev
they choose to shop.

Net sales in the Catalog & Internet segment were modestly below our pre-acquisition assumptions due in part to
delayed pre-holiday catalog drop date, the revamping of Miles Kimball’s Exposures® brand and product line and
lower than expected response rate to new targeted customer lists. Net sales in the Catalog & Internet segme
accounted for approximately 7% of Blyth’s total net sales in fiscal 2004 compared to 0% in fiscal 2003.

Net Sales — All Other Segment

Net sales in the All Other segment, which is comprised of sales of foodservice products in the Away From Hom:
channel, were $52.9 million in fiscal 2004 a decrease of $4.1 million or 7%, when compared to $57.0 million i
fiscal 2003. This was consistent with overall sluggishness experienced in the US travel and hospitality market
during fiscal year 2004, as well as additional competition from imported products. Net sales in the All Other
segment accounted for approximately 4% of Blyth’s total net sales in both fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003.

Blyth’s consolidated gross profit increased $83.4 million, or 13%, from $640.3 million in fiscal 2003 to $723.7
million in fiscal 2004. The gross profit margin, however, declined from 49.7% in fiscal 2003 to 48.1% in fiscal
2004 principally due to the addition of Kaemingk, which has a lower gross margin than Blyth’s overall company
average, as well as the sales mix among and within Blyth’s various businesses.

Blyth’s consolidated selling expense increased $54.0 million, or 15%, from $363.8 million in fiscal 2003 to $417.8
million in fiscal 2004. Most of the increase in selling expense is a result of the expenses relating to the previously
discussed acquisitions. Selling expense as a percentage of net sales decreased from 28.2% in fiscal 2003 to 27.7%
in fiscal 2004. This decrease in selling expense, as a percentage of net sales, was primarily a result of the impact of

the business models of recently acquired companies, which have lower selling expenses than the overall Company
average.

Blyth’s consolidated administrative expenses increased $10.7 million, or 9%, from $118.3 million in fiscal 2003 to
$129.0 million in fiscal 2004. Most of such increase in administrative expenses relates to administrative expenses
incurred in connection with acquisitions made in fiscal 2004. As a percentage of net sales, administrative expenses
decreased from 9.2% in fiscal 2003 to 8.6% in fiscal 2004, which decrease is due to the fact that the Company’s

corporate resources have grown at a significantly lower rate than have the Company’s sales which have grown with
acquisitions.
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1 fiscal 2004, the Company recorded pre-tax restructuring and impairment charges of approximately $23.8 million.
f the $23.8 million charge, $6.7 million related to the Direct Selling segment and the closure of the Company’s
lyannis, Massachusetts candle manufacturing facility, $16.7 million related to the Wholesale Home Fragrance
egment and $0.4 million related to the Wholesale Creative Expressions segment. The total charge of $23.8
nillion was reported as a component of operating expenses, which reduced operating profit margin by 1.6
ercentage points, compared to a pre-tax charge of $2.6 million recorded in fiscal 2003 related to placing Wax
yrical into administrative receivership, which reduced operating profit margin by 0.2 percentage points (See Note
» to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

Blyth’s consolidated operating profit declined $2.4 million from $155.5 in fiscal 2003 to $153.1 million in fiscal
2004 principally due to fiscal 2004 restructuring and impairment charges of $23.8 million. Restructuring and
impairment charges of $2.6 million were recorded in fiscal 2003.

Operating Profit/Loss - Direct Selling Segment

Operating profit in the Direct Selling segment decreased $7.4 million, or 5%, from $149.7 million in fiscal 2003 to
$142.3 million in fiscal 2004. The pre-tax restructuring and impairment charges of $6.7 million in fiscal 2004
negatively impacted operating profit in this segment. Additional promotional and sales incentive expenses, as well
as higher shipping costs, also negatively impacted this segment’s operating profit. Operating profit in the Direct
Selling segment represented approximately 92% of total Company operating profit in fiscal 2004 compared to 96%
in fiscal 2003.

Operating Profit/Loss — Wholesale Home Fragrance Segment

Operating loss in the Wholesale Home Fragrance segment improved from a loss of $24.9 million in fiscal 2003 to a
loss of $10.7 million in fiscal 2004. Pre-tax restructuring and impairment charges of $16.7 million in fiscal year
2004 versus $2.6 million in fiscal 2003 negatively impacted this segment’s operating results. Of the total segment
charges in fiscal 2004, $7.9 million (pre-tax) related to the write down of certain candle manufacturing equipment
due to significant productivity increases in recent years, as well as a product shift from candle forms such as pillars
and tapers towards filled containers, votives and tealights. The moderation of growth in the home fragrance
category has also resulted in industry-wide excess capacity and thus impacted the carrying value of certain
equipment. Of the total segment charges, $4.6 million (pre-tax) related primarily to severance and personnel costs
associated with the North American restructuring in this segment, including the consolidation of our Temecula,
California potpourri operations and the closure of five candle outlet stores. Of the total segment charges, $4.2
million related to the discontinuation of the Canterbury® brand, one of several consumer wholesale brands
acquired over the past decade. The Company is focusing its sales and marketing resources on fewer brands. In
addition, fiscal 2004 operating profit was negatively impacted by $1.9 million of expenses related to the fire that
destroyed our candle factory in Monterrey, Mexico. Management expects to recoup these expenses through
insurance in fiscal 2005.

Operating Profit/Loss — Wholesale Creative Expressions Segment

Operating profit in the Wholesale Creative Expressions segment decreased 34% from $26.0 million in fiscal 2003
to $17.2 million in fiscal 2004. The pre-tax restructuring and impairment charges of $0.4 million in fiscal 2004
negatively impacted operating profit in this segment. Moreover, sales volume shortfalls resulting from significant
retailer caution throughout 2004 translated into operating profit shortfalls. These factors were partially offset by
the full year effect of CBK, which was acquired in May 2002, which had a positive impact on operating profit.
Operating profit in the Wholesale Creative Expressions segment represented approximately 11% of total Company
operating profit in fiscal 2004 compared to 17% in fiscal 2003.
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Operating Profit/Loss — Catalog & Internet Segment

Operating profit in the Catalog & Internet segment was $5.2 million in 2004 due entirely to the fiscal 20
acquisitions of Miles Kimball and Walter Drake. Operating profit in the Catalog & Internet segment represen
approximately 3% of total Company operating profit in fiscal 2004.

Operating Profit/Loss — All Other Segment

Operating profit in the All Other segment declined from a profit of $4.7 million in fiscal 2003 to a loss of $0
million in fiscal 2004. Sales volume shortfalls resulting from overall industry sluggishness and a resulting decrea
in factory overhead absorption were responsible for most of the decline in this segment’s operating profj
Increased direct import competition also had a negative impact on this segment’s operating profit. The All Oth
segment represented 0% of total Company operating profit in fiscal 2004 compared to 3% in fiscal 2003.

Interest expense increased $2.7 million, or 18%, from $14.7 million in fiscal 2003 to $17.4 million in fiscal 200
mostly due to higher interest costs related to the $100 million of 5.5% Senior Notes issued in October 2003. [
addition, interest expense was impacted by the additions of Miles Kimball and Kaemingk.

Interest income and other decreased $0.4 million, from $1.7 million in fiscal 2003 to $1.3 million in fiscal 2004
This decrease was primarily due to lower interest rates on short-term investments, as well as foreign currenc
charges.

Income tax expense decreased $2.6 million, or 5%, from $53.0 million in fiscal 2003 to $50.4 million in fiscal
2004. The decrease in income tax expense is attributable to the decrease in pre-tax earnings as a result of the
restructuring and impairment charges previously discussed. The effective income tax rate was 36.8% for fiscal
2004 compared to 37.2% in fiscal 2003. This decrease in tax rate is a result of a larger amount of income being
generated in jurisdictions with lower tax rates.

As a result of the foregoing, net earnings increased $28.6 million, or 49.5%, from $57.8 million in fiscal 2003 to
$86.4 million in fiscal 2004. Net earnings before the cumulative effect of change in accounting principle decreased
$3.1 million, or 3%, from $89.5 million in fiscal 2003 to $86.4 million in fiscal 2004. In the first quarter of fiscal
2003, the Company recorded an after-tax impairment charge of $4.5 million to reduce the carrying value of the
goodwill related to the acquisition of the Sterno® brand in 1997. The impairment of the Sterno Group’s goodwill
was recorded as a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle. In addition, due to the change in the
Company’s reportable segments and the resulting change in reporting units under SFAS 142, the Company has
restated its fiscal 2003 financial statements to reflect the recording of an additional $27.2 million goodwill
impairment charge related to the Wholesale Home Fragrance segment as of the February 1, 2002 adoption date of
SFAS 142. This impairment reduced the carrying value of the goodwill related to the 1999 acquisition of the Gies
Group by $20.9 million and reduced the carrying value of the goodwill related to the 1999 acquisition of the
Colony Group by $6.3 million. These impairment charges reduced the goodwill in the Wholesale Home Fragrance
segment to zero at February 1, 2002. The impairments of the Gies Group and Colony Group goodwill, which were
not deductible for tax purposes, are now also recorded as a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle.

Basic earnings per share were $1.89 for fiscal 2004 compared to $1.25 for the same period the prior year. The
previously discussed restructuring and impairment charges in fiscal 2004 and 2003 and the cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle in fiscal 2003 reduced earnings per share by approximately $0.31 in fiscal 2004 and
$0.74 in fiscal 2003. Diluted earnings per share, based upon the potential dilution that could occur if options to
issue common stock were exercised, were $1.88 for fiscal 2004 compared to $1.24 for the same period the prior
year.
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Net sales increased $109.8 million, or 9.3%, from $1,178.8 million in fiscal 2002 to $1,288.6 million in fiscal
2003. The positive sales impact of CBK, Ltd., LLC, which Blyth acquired in May 2002 (“CBK”), and the positive
impact of approximately ten weeks of acquisition-related sales growth of Midwest of Cannon Falls, Inc., which
Blyth acquired in April 2001 (“Midwest”), fiscal year 2003 accounted for approximately 5.9 percentage points of
the increase. We believe that several key factors affected fiscal year 2003 sales. First, sales of our PartyLite
direct selling business were positively impacted by the introduction of strong new products and redesigned
catalogs, as well as improved training and recruiting materials and growth of PartyLite’s total active independent
consultant base. Second, the continued economic sluggishness, which has impacted North America and Europe in
particular, has resulted in continued caution by independent, specialty and mass retailers in increasing inventory
commitments. Geopolitical concerns exacerbated this trend and impacted consumer spending in the fourth
quarter, which is the Company’s largest quarter for sales and profits. Third, the relative strength of European
currencies versus the US dollar had a positive impact on fiscal 2003 sales growth equal to one full percentage
point. Finally, the Sterno Group, Blyth’s Away From Home business serving the foodservice industry,
experienced significant recovery from the negative effects of the slowdown in the travel and hospitality industries
following the tragic events of September 11, 2001.

Net Sales — Direct Selling Segment

Net sales in the Direct Selling segment increased $51.4 million, or 8%, from $666.0 million in fiscal 2002 to
$717.4 million in fiscal 2003. PartyLite, our direct selling unit, experienced a sales increase in North America of
approximately 4% in fiscal 2003 compared to the prior year, while sales in PartyLite’s European markets
increased approximately 24% in fiscal 2003 compared to the prior year. We believe that PartyLite’s growth was
fueled by the introduction of strong new products and redesigned catalogs, as well as improved training and
recruiting materials, which we believe improved the rate of attraction and retention of new independent sales
consultants versus the prior year. We also believe that sales growth was tempered somewhat by a slowdown in
consumer spending resulting from economic and geopolitical concerns, particularly in the fourth quarter, which is
PartyLite’s largest quarter for sales. Net sales in the Direct Selling segment represented 56% of total sales in
fiscal 2003 compared to 57% in fiscal 2002.

Net Sales — Wholesale Home Fragrance Segment

The Wholesale Home Fragrance segment experienced a total sales decline of $12.1 million, or 4%, from $322.3
million in fiscal 2002 to $310.2 million in fiscal 2003. In the North American channels of distribution, sales
declined 6% versus prior year. While we believe that overall weak economic conditions negatively impacted this
segment’s North American sales, we believe that some of the fiscal 2003 sales decline was related to relatively
weak new product introductions and execution in the premium channel. Mass channel customer bankruptcies and
the absence of sales to certain mass channel customers due to bankruptcy filings last year also negatively
impacted this segment’s North American sales. Also, during fiscal year 2003, the North American premium and
mass channel businesses were integrated, and new management represented four of the five most senior positions.
While we believe the long-term benefits of this integration will be positive, the disruption to the business during
the integration period was notable. Net sales in the Wholesale Home Fragrance segment represented
approximately 24% of total Blyth sales in fiscal 2003 compared to 27% in fiscal 2002.

In the European channels of distribution sales increased approximately 4% in fiscal 2003 versus fiscal 2002. The
European premium and mass channels both reported sales increases versus the prior year, partially offset by a
decline of sales in the Wax Lyrical retail channel. The strength of European currencies versus the US dollar had
a favorable impact of approximately 5% on reported results. In local currencies, sales of the premium channel
consumer wholesale business increased modestly versus the prior year, with strong new product introductions
being well received by retailers.
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Net Sales — Wholesale Home Fragrance Segment (continued)

The Colonial at HOME® brand, introduced in Europe at the end of fiscal year 2002, was well received in its fir;
full year of sales, and distribution was expanded beyond the UK market. Sales in local currency for the mas
channel consumer wholesale business were flat versus the prior year. Germany was the largest market for thi
segment’s European mass channel business, and sales results were indicative of the significant economic challenge
facing that country. The introduction of new fragranced products continued to result in positive sales growth in th
mass channel in fiscal 2003, but sales of fragranced products still accounted for less than 16% of total Europea
mass channel sales.

In December 2002, following the end of the 2002 holiday season, the Company placed its UK-based specialty retai
chain Wax Lyrical Limited (“Wax Lyrical”) into administrative receivership. Wax Lyrical had 35 retail stores and
annualized net sales of approximately $16 million. The Company made its initial investment in Wax Lyrical in
1998, acquired majority interest in February 2000 and owned nearly all of its outstanding shares. During that time,
Wax Lyrical had been unable to achieve sustained profitability, generating operating losses of approximately $2 — 3
million annually, largely due to the fact that distribution of candles and related accessories had become increasingly
more mainstream in the UK, with major retail chains and specialty retailers offering a wide variety of competitive
products. We recorded an after-tax impairment charge of approximately $2.1 million in the fourth quarter of fiscal
year 2003 related to placing Wax Lyrical into administrative receivership. Net sales in the Wholesale Home
Fragrance segment represented approximately 24% of total Blyth sales in fiscal 2003 compared to 27% in fiscal
2002.

Net Sales — Wholesale Creative Expressions Segment

Net sales in the Wholesale Creative Expressions segment increased $68.0 million, or 50.0%, from $136.0 million in
fiscal 2002 to $204.0 million in fiscal 2003. This increase was primarily due to the inclusion of sales from CBK,
which was acquired in May 2002. Sales of CBK and the acquisition-related growth from Midwest, which was
acquired in April 2001, accounted for most of the increase in segment sales in fiscal year 2003 as premium channel
sales growth at Midwest was offset by declines in JMC Impact, Inc.’s (“JMC Impact”) mass channel sales. We
believe that JMC Impact’s sales decline was due in large part to business lost due to customer bankruptcies and
retailer consolidation, as well as to increased import competition in this channel. Net sales in the Wholesale
Creative Expressions segment accounted for approximately 16% of Blyth’s total net sales in fiscal 2003 compared
to 12% in fiscal 2002.

Net Sales — All Other Segment

Sales of foodservice products in the All Other segment, increased approximately 5% in fiscal 2003 compared to
fiscal 2002. This business unit experienced a strong recovery after the sharp sales decline that accompanied the
downturn in the travel and hospitality industries that followed the September 11, 2001 tragedy. Net sales in the All
Other segment represented approximately 4% of total Blyth sales in fiscal 2003 compared to 5% in fiscal 2002.

Gross profit increased $63.3 million, or 11.0%, from $577.0 million in fiscal 2002 to $640.3 million in fiscal 2003.
Gross profit margin increased from 48.9% for fiscal 2002 to 49.7% for fiscal 2003. The key factors that we believe
positively impacted the gross profit margin were a shift in sales mix among our business units and a decrease versus
the prior year in sales of obsolete inventory. Partially offsetting these positive margin impacts was the effect of
margin compression experienced in the North American mass channel of both the Wholesale Home Fragrance and
Wholesale Creative Expressions segments, as well as the European consumer wholesale mass channel, which
impacted the Wholesale Home Fragrance segment.
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clling expense increased $29.1 million, or 8.7%, from $334.7 million in fiscal 2002 to $363.8 million in fiscal
003. The increase in selling expense was primarily due to the mix shift towards direct selling channel sales, for
vhich selling expenses are relatively higher, the addition of CBK and the full year impact of Midwest. Selling
Xxpense as a percentage of net sales decreased from 28.4% in fiscal 2002 to 28.2% in fiscal 2003. This decrease in
.elling expense, as a percent of sales, was a result of sales increasing at a faster rate than the selling expenses
1ecessary to support such sales increases.

Administrative expenses increased $15.3 million, or 14.9%, from $103.0 million in fiscal 2002 to $118.3 million in
fiscal 2003. Approximately 5.1 percentage points of this increase was attributable to the administrative expenses
of CBK, acquired in May 2002 while the Company’s continued investment in research and development and
technology also played a role. In fiscal year 2002, administrative expenses were lower as the senior management
of Blyth and many of the Company’s business unit managers did not receive bonuses.

The Company recorded a pre-tax impairment charge of approximately $2.6 million, as a result of putting Wax
Lyrical into administrative receivership, reported as a component of operating expenses in fiscal 2003, which
reduced the operating profit margin by 0.2%, compared to charges of $14.1 million recorded in fiscal 2002, which
reduced operating profit margin by 1.2%.

There was no goodwill amortization recorded in fiscal 2003 compared to $4.7 million in fiscal 2002. This decrease
was a result of the Company’s adoption of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, which calls for
among other things the cessation of goodwill amortization (See Note | to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

Operating Profit/(Loss) — Direct Selling Segment

Operating profit in the Direct Selling segment increased $10.6 million, or 7.6%, from $139.1 million in fiscal 2002
to $149.7 million in fiscal 2003. The increase in operating profit was due to the same factors that affected net
sales. Operating profit in the Direct Selling segment represented approximately 96% of total Company operating
profit in fiscal 2003 compared to 115% in fiscal 2002.

Operating Profit/(Loss) — Wholesale Home Fragrance Segment

The Wholesale Home Fragrance segment experienced an approximately $10.2 million smaller operating loss, from
a $35.1 million loss in fiscal 2002 to a $24.9 million operating loss in fiscal 2003. This improvement was due to
substantially fewer restructuring and impairment charges in fiscal 2003 versus fiscal 2002. Specifically, operating
profit in this segment was impacted by the $2.6 million pre-tax impairment charge recorded as a result of putting
Wax Lyrical into administrative receivership in fiscal 2003 compared to $12.6 million of fiscal 2002 restructuring
and impairment charges.

Operating Profit/(Loss) — Wholesale Creative Expressions Segment

Operating profit in the Wholesale Creative Expressions segment increased $10.3 million, or 65.6%, from $15.7
million in fiscal 2002 to $26.0 million in fiscal 2003. Operating profit in the Wholesale Creative Expressions
segment represented approximately 17% of total Company operating profit in fiscal 2003 compared to 13% in
fiscal 2002. The key factor affecting operating profit in this segment was the acquisition of CBK in May 2002.
Additional factors included organic growth experienced in the premium consumer wholesale channel of this
segment, which was offset by declines in the mass consumer wholesale channel of this segment, as well as overall
economic weakness in the US wholesale marketplace.
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Operating Profit/(Loss) — All Other Segment

Operating profit in the All Other segment increased $3.9 million from $0.8 million in fiscal 2002 to $4.7 million
fiscal 2003. The increase in operating profit was due to the same factors that affected net sales. Operating profit
the All Other segment represented approximately 3% of total Company operating profit in fiscal 2003 compared
less than 1% in fiscal 2002.

Interest expense decreased $2.5 million, or 14.5%, from $17.2 million in fiscal 2002 to $14.7 million in fiscal 200
The lower interest expense was primarily a result of an interest rate swap entered into in March 2002, whi
accounted for approximately $1.4 million of such decrease and a lower level of borrowings during fiscal 2003.

Interest income and other decreased $3.3 million, from $5.0 million in fiscal 2002 to $1.7 million in fiscal 200
This decrease was primarily due to gains on sales of long-term investments of $3.8 million that occurred in fisc
2002.

Income tax expense increased $12.7 million, or 31.5%, from $40.3 million in fiscal 2002 to $53.0 million in fisca
2003. The increase in income tax expense was attributable to the increase in pre-tax earnings. The effectiv
income tax rate was 37.2% for fiscal 2003, the same as fiscal 2002.

As a result of the foregoing, net earnings before the cumulative effect of change in accounting principle increase
$21.5 million, or 31.6%, from $68.0 million in fiscal 2002 to $89.5 million in fiscal 2003. In the first quarter o
fiscal 2003 the Company recorded an after tax impairment charge of $4.5 million to reduce the carrying value o
the goodwill related to the acquisition of the Sterno® brand in 1997. The impairment of the Sterno Group’s
goodwill was recorded as a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle. In addition, due to the change in
the Company’s reportable segments and the resulting change in reporting units under SFAS 142; the Company has
restated its fiscal 2003 financial statements to reflect the recording of an additional goodwill impairment charge of
$27.2 million related to the Wholesale Home Fragrance segment as of the February 1, 2002 adoption date of SFAS
142. This impairment reduced the carrying value of the goodwill related to the 1999 acquisition of the Gies Group
by $20.9 million and reduced the carrying value of the goodwill related to the 1999 acquisition of the Colony
Group by $6.3 million. These impairment charges reduced the goodwill in the Wholesale Home Fragrance segment
to zero at February 1, 2002. The impairments of the Gies Group and Colony Group goodwill, which were not
deductible for tax purposes, are now also recorded as a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle. Net
earnings after the cumulative effect of change in accounting principle decreased $10.2 million, or 15%, from $68.0
million in fiscal 2002 to $57.8 million in fiscal 2003.

Basic earnings per share based upon the weighted average number of shares outstanding were $1.25 for fiscal 2003
compared to $1.45 for the same period the prior year. Diluted earnings per share, based upon the potential dilution
that could occur if options to issue common stock were exercised, were $1.24 for fiscal 2003 compared to $1.44 for
the same period the prior year.

Seasonality

Approximately 39% of the Company’s net sales occurred in the first and second fiscal quarters of 2004 down from
42% in fiscal 2003, with the larger balance experienced in the third and fourth fiscal quarters, generaily due to
consumer buying patterns. The increase in the percentage of shipments in the second half of the fiscal year is
primarily due to the timing of the acquisitions made during fiscal 2004 and the seasonality of the newly acquired
businesses. The Company’s net sales are strongest in the third and fourth fiscal quarters due to increased
shipments to meet year-end holiday season demand for the Company’s products.
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ash and cash equivalents increased $61.1 million, or 36% from $168.6 million at January 31, 2003 to $229.7

illion at January 31, 2004 primarily due to increased earnings before non-cash restructuring and impairment

arges, proceeds from debt issuance, reduced inventory levels and increased accounts payable and accrued
kpenses. Inventory increased $20.7 million from $187.9 million at January 31, 2003 to $208.6 million at January

1, 2004. All of such increase in inventory related to the inventory of acquired businesses, while the inventory of

ie Company relating to existing businesses at January 31, 2004 decreased by $4.8 million. This decrease in
aventory is due to a company-wide focus on inventory control and reduction. Accounts receivable increased $21.6
nillion from $82.9 million at the end of fiscal 2003 to $104.5 million at the end of fiscal 2004. Approximately
:15.9 million of such increase relates to the accounts receivable from acquired businesses. Accounts receivable for
xisting businesses increased approximately $5.7 million primarily due to the increased sales in our European mass
~hannel in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004. The overall level of accounts receivable at January 31, 2004 was
consistent with the Company’s historical pattern whereby accounts receivable are at or near the low point of the
fiscal year due to the high level of seasonal sales and accounts receivable with dating terms that become due in the
fourth fiscal quarter. Accounts payable and accrued expenses increased $36.3 million from $139.5 million at the
end of fiscal 2003 to $175.8 million at the end of fiscal 2004. Approximately $19 million of such increase related
to accounts payable and accrued expenses for fiscal 2004 acquired businesses. The increase is also due to higher
interest accruals due to increased debt, accrued severance costs and accrued selling costs related to higher sales and
earnings in the fourth quarter.

Capital expenditures for property, plant and equipment were approximately $22.0 million in fiscal 2004 up from
$14.3 million in fiscal 2003. This increase is primarily due to spending for information technology and upgrades to
machinery and equipment in existing facilities. The Company anticipates total capital spending of approximately
$25 million for fiscal 2005, which will be used primarily for upgrades to machinery and equipment in existing
manufacturing and distribution facilities, information technology and research and development related equipment.

The Company has grown in part through acquisitions and, as part of its growth strategy, the Company expects to
continue from time to time in the ordinary course of its business to evaluate and pursue acquisition opportunities as
appropriate. Our recent growth has been primarily acquisition related and in the future acquisitions may continue
to contribute more to the Company’s overall sales growth rate than historically. We expect our future growth in the
Direct Selling and the Wholesale Home Fragrance segments, to be primarily organic, with the possibility of
selective acquisitions. In the Wholesale Creative Expressions, Catalog & Internet and All Other segments a
significant portion of future growth may come through acquisitions. We continue to pursue strategic acquisitions
primarily in the following areas: home décor products, seasonal decorative accessories, and Foodservice products.
The Company acquired the Miles Kimball Company, Kaemingk B.V. and Walter Drake during fiscal 2004 as
further described in Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, “Business Acquisitions.”

The Company has a $200 million unsecured revolving credit facility, which matures on August 5, 2005 (the “Credit
Facility”). The Company has the ability to increase the Credit Facility, under certain circumstances, by an
additional $50 million. The Credit Facility may be used for general corporate purposes, which includes funding for
strategic acquisitions and seasonal working capital needs. The Credit Facility contains, among other provisions,
requirements for maintaining certain financial ratios including, among others, a minimum level of net worth and a
maximum level of leverage. The Credit Facility also imposes limitations on, among other things, certain payments,
the imposition of liens on our assets, indebtedness that may be incurred by our subsidiaries, investments we may
make and sales of our assets. At January 31, 2004, the Company was in compliance with such covenants.
Amounts outstanding under the Credit Facility bear interest, at the Company’s option, at either the JPMorgan
Chase Bank’s prime rate (4.0% at January 31, 2004) or at the Eurocurrency rate plus a credit spread ranging from
0.525% to 1.5%, calculated on the basis of a combination of the Company’s senior unsecured long-term debt rating
and the Company’s usage of the Credit Facility. On January 31, 2004, $3.2 million letters of credit were
outstanding under the Credit Facility.
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As of January 31, 2004, the Company had a total of $15.0 million available under an uncommitted bank lin
credit with LaSalle Bank National Association, which matures in June 2004. Amounts outstanding under the
of credit bear interest at short-term fixed rates. No amounts were outstanding under the uncommitted line of cr:
at January 31, 2004.

At January 31, 2004, the Company had a total of $10.0 million available under an uncommitted line of credit
Bank of America to be used for letters of credit. At January 31, 2004, approximately $0.1 million of letters of cr
were outstanding under this credit line.

As of December 31, 2003, The Gies Group ("Gies") had available lines of credit of approximately $44.3 million
which approximately $3.3 million was outstanding. The amounts outstanding under the lines of credit bear inter:
at a weighted average rate of 3.1% at December 31, 2003. The lines of credit are renewed annually.

As of December 31, 2003, Kaemingk had available lines of credit of approximately $34.6 million with ING Ba
N.V. The lines of credit are collateralized by certain real estate and equipment owned by Kaemingk. At Decemb
31, 2003, approximately $2.2 million was outstanding at a weighted average interest rate of 2.75%.

Colony Gift Corporation Limited (“Colony”) has a $21.4 million short-term revolving credit facility with Barcla
Bank, which matures in June 2004. As of December 31, 2003, Colony had borrowings under the credit facility o
approximately $8.1 million, at a weighted average interest rate of 4.6%.

At January 31, 2004, Miles Kimball had approximately $10.4 million of long-term debt outstanding under a real estat
mortgage note payable to John Hancock Life Insurance Company, which matures June 1, 2020. Under the terms of th
note, payments of principal and interest are required monthly at a fixed interest rate of 7.89%.

At December 31, 2003, Kaemingk had approximately $8.6 million of long-term debt outstanding under six loans
with ING Bank N.V. at a weighted average interest rate of 5.8%. The bank loans have maturity dates ranging from
2005 through 2020. The loans are collateralized by certain real estate and equipment owned by Kaemingk.

In July 1995, the Company privately placed $25.0 million aggregate principal amount of 7.54% Senior Notes due
2005. As of January 31, 2004, $7.1 million of principal remained outstanding. Such senior notes contain, among
other provisions, requirements for maintaining certain financial ratios and net worth. At January 31, 2004, the
Company was in compliance with such provisions. Payment on the notes commenced in June 1999 and annual
installments of principal and interest are required to be paid through June 2005.

In May 1999, the Company filed a shelf registration statement for issuance of up to $250.0 million in debt
securities with the Securities and Exchange Commission. On September 24, 1999, the Company issued $150.0
million of 7.90% Senior Notes due October 1, 2009 at a discount of approximately $1.4 million, which is being
amortized over the life of the notes. Such notes contain, among other provisions, restrictions on liens on principal
property or stock issued to collateralize debt. At January 31, 2004, the Company was in compliance with such
provisions. Interest is payable semi-annually on April 1 and October 1. On October 20, 2003, the Company issued
$100.0 million, 5.50% Senior Notes due on November 1, 2013 at a discount of approximately $0.2 million, which
is being amortized over the life of the notes. Such notes contain provisions and restrictions similar to those in the
7.90% Senior Notes. At January 31, 2004, the Company was in compliance with such covenants. Interest on the
notes began accruing on October 23, 2003 and will be payable semiannually in arrears on May 1 and November 1
of each year, commencing May 1, 2004. The notes may be redeemed in whole or in part at any time at a specified
redemption price. The proceeds of the debt issuance are used for general corporate purposes, which may include
repayment of certain debt, acquisitions and working capital needs.

At January 31, 2004, CBK had $4.6 million of long-term debt outstanding under an Industrial Revénue Bond
(“IRB”), which matures on January 1, 2025. The bond is backed by an irrevocable letter of credit issued by La
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1le Bank National Association. The loan is collateralized by certain of CBK’s assets. The amount outstanding
wder the IRB bears interest at short-term floating rates, which equaled a weighted average interest rate of 1.2% at
nuary 31, 2004.

he estimated fair value of the Company’s $280.3 million and $169.1 million total long-term debt (including
arrent portion) at January 31, 2004 and 2003 was approximately $290.4 million and $191.6 million, respectively.
he fair value is determined by quoted market prices, where available, and from analyses performed by investment
ankers using current interest rates considering credit ratings and the remaining terms to maturity.

‘he following table summarizes the maturity dates of the contractual obligations of the Company as of January 31,
2004:

Payments Due by Period

In thousands)
Less than More than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 year 1-3 Years 3 -5 Years 5 Years
Interest $ 153,740 § 21,263 % 41,360 § 40,964 § 50,153
Capital Leases 336 163 173 - -
Purchase Obligations 40,861 40,861 - - -
Long-Term Debt 280,265 4,522 5,250 1,654 268,839
Operating Leases 65,612 18,421 25,819 11,542 9.830
Lines of Credit 13,621 13,621 - - -
Total Contractual Obligations $ 554,435 § 98,851 § 72,602 $ 54,160 § 328,822

(1) Purchase obligations consist of open purchase orders for inventory.
The Company does not utilize derivatives for trading purposes.

The Company leases certain office and warehouse space used in its businesses in the Wholesale Creative
Expressions segment from related parties. Under the terms of the leases, the Company is responsible for all real
estate taxes, maintenance and insurance costs. The lease rates were determined based on market rates for
comparable property at the time of entering into the contract.

Net cash provided by operating activities amounted to $173 million in fiscal 2004 compared to $172 million in
fiscal 2003, an increase of $1 million. Although fiscal 2004 net earnings were approximately $29 million higher
than the prior year, for purposes of determining net cash from operating activities, non-cash after tax goodwill
impairment charges of $32 million in fiscal 2003 were added back to cash flows from operations whereas, in fiscal
2004, non-cash restructuring and impairment charges of $20 million were added back to cash flows from
operations. Other items that contributed to cash flows from operations were an inventory reduction of $25 million
and increases in accounts payable and accrued expenses of $10 million, offset by an increase in accounts receivable
due to the timing of sales in our European markets including the accounts receivable of Kaemingk acquired in June
2003. Fourth quarter cash flow from operations was particularly strong, providing cash in the amount of
approximately $200 million, which was primarily attributable to strong seasonal and acquisition related sales and
earnings, accounts receivable collections of $95 million, and an inventory reduction of $52 million. Cash used in
investing activities amounted to $168 million in fiscal 2004 versus a use of $69 million in fiscal 2003. This use
was related to the acquisitions in fiscal 2004 of Miles Kimball, Kaemingk and Walter Drake and capital spending
of $22 million. Cash provided by financing activities amounted to $61 million in fiscal 2004 compared to a use of
$68 million in fiscal 2003. The primary source of cash from financing was the proceeds from the issuance of $100
million of senior notes by the Company in October 2003 partially offset by repayments of long-term debt of $11
million, purchases of treasury stock of $19 million and payment of dividends of $13 million. There were additional
borrowings of $30 million under our Credit Facility during fiscal 2004 that were repaid prior to year-end.
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The Company’s Board of Directors has authorized the Company to repurchase up to 6,000,000 shares of co
stock under the share repurchase program. The Company repurchases shares to offset grants of restricted stock
shares issued upon exercise of stock options and to decrease shares outstanding. During fiscal 2004, a tota
701,000 shares were repurchased for a total cost of approximately $18.8 million. As of January 31, 2004,
Company had cumulatively purchased on the open market 4,345,100 common shares for a total cost
approximately $105.4 million. The acquired shares are held as common stock in treasury at cost.

On March 31, 2004, the Company announced that it has declared a cash dividend of $0.17 per share of
Company’s common stock for the six months ended January 31, 2004. The dividend, authorized at the Compan
March 31, 2004 Board of Directors meeting, will be payable to shareholders of record as of April 30, 2004, a|
will be paid on May 14, 2004.

The Company’s primary capital requirements are for working capital to fund the levels of inventory and accou
receivable necessary to sustain the Company’s sales growth, and for capital expenditures and acquisitions. T
Company believes that cash on hand, cash from operations and available borrowings under the current Cre
Facility and lines of credit will be sufficient to fund its operating requirements, capital expenditures, sto
repurchase program, dividends, long-term debt repayments and all other obligations for the foreseeable future.

We do not maintain any off balance sheet arrangements, transactions, obligations or other relationships wit
unconsolidated entities that would be expected to a have a material current or future effect upon our financi
statements.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our Consolidate
Financial Statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in th
United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities. On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those related to bad debts, inventories,
income taxes, restructuring and impairments and contingencies and litigation. We base our estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or
conditions.

Financial Reporting Release No. 60 requires all companies to include a discussion of critical accounting policies or
methods used in the preparation of financial statements. Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, included
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, includes a summary of the significant accounting policies and
methods used in the preparation of our Consolidated Financial Statements. The following is a brief discussion of
the more significant accounting policies and methods used by us.

Revenue recognition ~ Revenues consist of sales to customers, net of returns and allowances. The Company
recognizes revenue upon delivery, when both title and risk of loss are transferred to the customer.

Generally, sales orders are received via signed customer purchase orders with stated fixed prices based on published
price lists. The Company records estimated reductions to revenue for customer programs, which may include special
pricing agreements for specific customers, volume incentives and other promotions. Should market conditions
decline, the Company may increase customer incentives with respect to future sales. The Company also records
estimated reductions to revenue, based primarily on historical experience, for customer returns and chargebacks that
may arise as a result of shipping errors, product damage in transit or for other reasons that can only become known
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1bsequent to recognizing the revenue. If the amount of actual customer returns and chargebacks were to increase
ignificantly from the estimated amount, revisions to the estimated allowance would be required.

n some instances, the Company receives payment in advance of product shipments. Such advance payments occur
rrimarily in our direct selling and direct marketing channels and are recorded as deferred revenue. Upon delivery
°f product shipments for which advance payment has been made, the related deferred revenue is reclassified to
evenue.

Most of the Company’s sales made on credit are made to an established list of customers. Although the
collectibility of sales made on credit is reasonably assured, the Company has established an allowance for doubtful
accounts for its trade and note receivables. The allowance is determined based on the Company’s evaluation of
specific customers’ ability to pay, aging of receivables, historical experience and the current economic
environment. While the Company believes it has appropriately considered known or expected outcomes, its
customers’ ability to pay their obligations, including those to the Company, could be adversely affected by
declining sales at retail resulting from such factors as contraction in the economy or a general decline in consumer
spending.

Some of the Company’s business units offer seasonal dating programs pursuant to which customers that qualify for
such programs are offered extended payment terms for seasonal product shipments. As with other customers,
customer orders pursuant to such seasonal dating programs are generally received in the form of a written purchase
order signed by an authorized representative of the customer. Sales made pursuant to seasonal dating programs are
recorded as revenue only upon delivery either to the customer or to an agent of the customer depending on the
freight terms for the particular shipment and consistent with the concept of “risk of loss.” The sales price for the
Company’s products sold pursuant to such seasonal dating programs is fixed prior to the time of shipment to the
customer. Customers do not have the right to return product except for rights to return that the Company believes
are typical of our industry for such reasons as damaged goods, shipping errors or similar occurrences. The
Company is not required to repurchase products from its customers, nor does the Company have any regular
practice of doing so. The Company believes that it is reasonably assured of payment for products sold pursuant to
such seasonal dating programs based on its historical experience with the established list of customers eligible for
such programs. In addition, the Company minimizes its exposure to bad debts by utilizing established credit limits
for each customer. If, however, product sales by our customers during the seasonal selling period should fall
significantly below expectations, such customers’ financial condition could be adversely affected, increasing the
risk of not collecting these seasonal dating receivables and, possibly, resulting in additional bad debt charges. The
Company does not make any sales under consignment or similar arrangements.

Inventory valuation — Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined by the first-in, first-
out method. The Company writes down its inventory for estimated obsolescence or unmarketable inventory by an
amount equal to the difference between the cost of inventory and the estimated market value based upon
assumptions about future demand, market conditions, customer planograms and sales forecasts. If market
acceptance of our existing products or the successful introduction of new products should significantly decrease,
additional inventory write-downs could be required. Potential additional inventory write-downs could result from
unanticipated additional quantities of obsolete finished goods and raw materials, and/or from lower disposition
values offered by the parties who normally purchase surplus inventories. At January 31, 2004 the Company had
obsolete inventory reserves totaling approximately $23.0 million.

Restructuring and impairment charges — In response to changing market conditions and competition, the

Company’s management regularly updates its business model and market strategies, including the evaluation of
facilities, personnel and products. Future adverse changes in economic and market conditions could result in
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additional organizational changes and possibly additional restructuring and impairment charges. In fiscal 20
2003 and 2002, the Company recorded charges related to asset impairments, product line discontinuan
severance payments to employees, lease write-offs, bad debt write-offs and inventory write-downs. (See Note 5
the Consolidated Financial Statements). The Company recorded restructuring and impairment charges in fis
2004 totaling $23.8 million. The most significant charges recorded in fiscal 2004 included an asset impairm
loss of $8.4 million for long-lived assets disposed of and an impairment loss of $2.3 million for long-lived assets
be held and used in the Company’s primary North American manufacturing facilities, a $4.2 million impairm.
charge related to the Canterbury® brand acquired in 1997 and a $3.9 million impairment on facilities a
equipment and employee severance related to the closing of our Hyannis manufacturing facility. As a result of t
asset impairments and employee terminations the Company expects to realize future annual savings in cost
goods sold in excess of $1.0 million. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, the Company recorded a pre-t
impairment charge of $2.6 million as a result of putting Wax Lyrical, its UK retail business, in administrati
receivership. Historically, the Company has reviewed long-lived assets, including property, plant and equipme
and goodwill and other intangibles for impairment periodically and whenever events or changes in circumstance
indicated that the carrying amount of such an asset might not be recoverable. Management determines whethe]
there has been a permanent impairment on fixed assets held for use in the business by comparing anticipate
undiscounted future cash flow from the use and eventual disposition of the asset or asset group, to the carryin
value of the asset. The amount of any resulting impairment is calculated by comparing the carrying value to th:
fair value, which may be estimated using the present value of the same cash flows. Long-lived assets that meet th
definition of held for sale are valued at the lower of carrying amount or net realizable value.

Goodwill and other indefinite lived intangibles - In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets.” Prior to February 1, 2002, excess of costs of acquisitions over fair value of identifiable
net assets acquired less liabilities assumed (“goodwill”) was being amortized on a straight-line basis over estimated
lives ranging from 15-40 years. Amortization of goodwill ceased on February 1, 2002, upon adoption of the new
goodwill rules under SFAS 142. Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill and any other intangibles deemed to have
indefinite lives are no longer subject to amortization; however, goodwill is subject to an assessment for impairment
using a two-step fair value-based test and such other intangibles are also subject to impairment reviews, which must
be performed at least annually, or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate that goodwill or other
indefinite lived intangibles might be impaired. The Company performs its annual assessment of impairment in the
fourth fiscal quarter. For goodwill the first step compares the fair value of a reporting unit to its carrying amount,
including goodwill. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the second step is performed.
The second step compares the carrying amount of the goodwill to the fair value of the goodwill. If fair value is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is reported as a reduction to the asset and a charge to operating
expense, except at the transition date, when the loss was reflected as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle.

As of January 31, 2002, Blyth’s Consolidated Balance Sheets reflected approximately $108.1 million in goodwill
net of accumulated amortization, including $27.2 million related to the Wholesale Home Fragrance segment
businesses, $42.2 million related to the All Other segment and $38.7 million related to the Wholesale Creative
Expressions segment businesses. The Company adopted SFAS 142 effective February 1, 2002. In accordance with
the new standard, Blyth ceased amortization of goodwill and performed an assessment for impairment of its
goodwill. As a result of the impairment review, Blyth reduced the carrying value of the goodwill related to its 1997
acquisition of the Sterno® brand by $7.4 million, which is included in the All Other segment. In addition, a recent
revision of its operating and reporting segments by the Company (See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements), required changes in the Company’s reporting units for purposes of goodwill impairment reviews under
SFAS 142, retroactive to the February 1, 2002 adoption date of SFAS 142. This resulted in the need to perform
impairment reviews of several additional reporting units as of February 1, 2002 and each subsequent year-end
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ralance sheet date thereafter. These impairment reviews have indicated the need to record additional impairment
‘harges as of the February 1, 2002 adoption of SFAS 142, specifically to write-off $20.9 million in goodwill
associated with the 1999 acquisition of the Gies Group and $6.3 million in goodwill associated with the 1999
acquisition of the Colony Group. Both of these businesses are components of the Wholesale Home Fragrance
Segment, and the impairment charges reduced goodwill in that segment to zero at February 1, 2002. The fair values
of the Sterno Group, the Gies Group and the Colony Group were determined through independent valuations
utilizing market-comparable analysis, as well as discounted cash flow models reflecting the expected range of
‘future cash flow outcomes over the life of the models. These cash flows were discounted to February 1, 2002 using
-arisk-adjusted discount rate. The impairment of the Sterno Group’s goodwill, which was recorded as a cumulative
effect of a change in accounting principle, had the effect of reducing net income by $4.5 million (after tax) or $0.10
per share. The impairments of the Gies Group and Colony Group goodwill, which were not deductible for tax
purposes, were, via restatement of the fiscal 2003 financial statements, also recorded as a cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle, and had the effect of reducing net income by $27.2 million or $0.58 per share. The
carrying amount of goodwill on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet increased approximately $5.4 million,
from $108.1 million at January 31, 2002 to $113.5 million at January 31, 2003. The change in goodwill was the
result of the acquisition of CBK (See Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements), which increased goodwill
by approximately $40.0 million, offset by the previously discussed impairment charges, which decreased goodwill
by $34.6 million.

As of January 31, 2003, the $113.5 million in goodwill was comprised of $34.8 million related to the All Other
segment and $78.7 million related to the Wholesale Creative Expressions segment businesses. The carrying amount
of goodwill on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet increased approximately $90.6 million, from $113.5
million at January 31, 2003 to $204.1 million at January 31, 2004. The change in goodwill was primarily the result
of the acquisitions of Miles Kimball, Kaemingk and Walter Drake (See Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements), which increased goodwill by approximately $45.6 million, $17.6 million and $25.4 million,
respectively, together with an increase in goodwill resulting from a foreign currency translation adjustment of
approximately $2.0 million. Of the $204.1 million of goodwill on the balance sheet as of January 31, 2004, $34.8
million is related to the All Other segment, $19.6 million is related to the Wholesale Home Fragrance segment,
$78.7 million is related to the Wholesale Creative Expressions segment and $71.0 million is related to the Catalog
& Internet segment.

Accounting for income taxes - As part of the process of preparing our consolidated financial statements, we are
required to estimate our actual current tax exposure (state, federal and foreign), together with assessing permanent
and temporary differences resulting from differing bases and treatment of items for tax and accounting purposes,
such as the carrying value of intangibles, deductibility of expenses, depreciation of property and equipment, and
valuation of inventories. Temporary differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are included
within our consolidated balance sheets. We must then assess the likelihood that our deferred tax assets will be
recovered from future taxable income. Actual results could differ from this assessment if sufficient taxable income
is not generated in future periods. To the extent we determine the need to establish a valuation allowance or
increase such allowance in a period, we must include an expense within the tax provision in the accompanying
consolidated statement of operations. The management of the corporation, along with third-party advisers,
periodically estimates the probable tax obligations of the corporation using historical experience in tax jurisdictions
and informed judgments. There are inherent uncertainties related to the interpretation of tax regulations in the
jurisdictions in which the corporation transacts business. The judgments and estimates made at a point in time may
change based on the outcome of tax audits, as well as changes to or further interpretations of regulations. If such
changes take place, there is a risk that the tax rate may increase or decrease in any period.
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In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activitie
This standard addresses financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal activities a
nullifies EITF Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Co
to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs incurred in a Restructuring).” This standard has been adopted by t
Company for exit and disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Financial Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclos
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others,” which elaborates on t
disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements about its obligations und
certain guarantees that it has issued. It also clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize, at the inception of
guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. The initial recognitio
and initial measurement provisions of this interpretation are applicable on a prospective basis to guarantees issue
or modified after December 31, 2002 and the disclosure requirements in this interpretation are effective fo
financial statements of interim or annual periods ending after December 15, 2002. The implementation of thi
interpretation did not have an impact on our financial statements.

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Financial Interpretation No. 46 (FIN
46), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” FIN 46 clarifies the application of Accounting Research Bulletin
No. 51, “Consolidated Financial Statements.” FIN 46 requires consolidation of entities in which the Company
absorbs a majority of the entity’s expected losses, receives a majority of the entity’s expected residual returns, or
both, as a result of ownership, contractual or other financial interests in the entity. Previously, entities were
consolidated only when the Company had a controlling financial interest through ownership of a majority voting
interest in an entity. The interpretation was immediately applicable to variable interest entities (“VIEs”) created
after January 31, 2003, and to VIEs in which an enterprise obtains an interest after that date. As originally issued,
it applied in the fiscal year or interim period beginning after June 15, 2003, for VIEs in which an enterprise
acquired a variable interest prior to February 1, 2003. In December 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46R, which defers
the effective date for FIN 46 to the first interim or annual period ending after December 15, 2003 for VIEs created
before February 1, 2003. The implementation of this standard has not had and is not expected to have a material
impact on our financial statements.

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities.” This statement amends and clarifies financial accounting and reporting for derivative
instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts (collectively referred to as
derivatives) and for hedging activities under FASB Statement No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities.” This standard is effective for derivative contracts entered into or modified after June 30,
2003. The implementation of this standard had no impact on our financial statements.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of
Both Liabilities and Equity.” As originally issued, SFAS 150 is effective for mandatorily redeemable financial
instruments of public entities entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and for all other instruments for interim
periods beginning after June 15, 2003. In November 2003, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. 150-3,
“Effective Date, Disclosures, and Transition for Mandatorily Redeemable Financial Instruments of Certain Nonpublic
Entities and Certain Mandatorily Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests under FASB Statement No. 1507, which defers
indefinitely the classification and measurement provisions for certain mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interests
associated with finite-lived subsidiaries pending further FASB action. For other mandatorily redeemable
noncontrolling interests that were issued before November 5, 2003, only the measurement provisions of SFAS 150 are
deferred indefinitely, both for the parent in consolidated financial statements and for the subsidiary that issued the
instruments that result in the mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interest, pending further FASB action. The
original implementation of SFAS 150 had no impact on our financial statements and we do not expect the deferral
provisions of FSP FAS 150-3 to have a significant impact on our financial statements.
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Forward-looking and Cautionary Statements

Certain statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K may constitute forward-looking statements
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements involve a number of
risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause actual results to differ materially, as discussed more fully
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and in the Company’s previous filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.
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Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market Risk

The Company has operations outside of the United States and sells its products worldwide. The Company’s activiti
expose it to a variety of market risks, including the effects of changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchan
rates, commodity prices and transportation interruptions. These financial exposures are actively monitored and, whe
considered appropriate, managed by the Company.

Interest Rate Risk

As of January 31, 2004 the Company is subject to interest rate risk on approximately $18.2 million of variable rat
debt. Each 1-percentage point increase in the interest rate would impact pre-tax earnings by approximately $0.
million if applied to the total.

On July 10, 2003, the Company terminated the interest rate swap agreement in relation to $50.0 million of our
outstanding 7.90% Senior Notes, which mature on October 1, 2009. This termination resulted in a deferred gain of
approximately $5.0 million, which will be amortized over the remaining term of the Notes.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Company uses forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the impact of foreign currency fluctuations on
certain committed capital expenditures, certain inventory purchases, Canadian intercompany payables and certain
intercompany loans. The Company does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

With regard to commitments for machinery and equipment in foreign currencies, upon payment of each
commitment the underlying forward contract is closed and the corresponding gain or loss is included in the
measurement of the cost of the acquired asset. With regard to forward exchange contracts used to hedge Canadian
intercompany payables and foreign purchases of inventory, gain or loss on such hedges is recognized in earnings in
the period in which the underlying hedged transaction is settled. Gains or losses on foreign currency forward
contracts related to intercompany loans are recognized currently through income and generally offset the
transaction gains or losses in the foreign currency cash flows that they are intended to hedge. If a hedging
instrument is sold or terminated prior to maturity, gains and losses are deferred until the hedged item is settled.
However, if the hedged item is no longer likely to occur, the resultant gain or loss on the terminated hedge is
recognized in earnings. For consolidated financial statement presentation, net cash flows from such hedges are
classified in the categories of the cash flow with the items being hedged. Approximately $820,000 of hedge losses
are included in accumulated OCI at January 31, 2004, and are expected to be transferred into earnings within the
next twelve months.

The following table provides information about the Company’s foreign exchange forward contracts at January 31,
2004.

US Dollar Average Estimated

(In thousands, except average contract rate) Notional Amount Contract Rate Fair Value
Canadian Dollar $ 8,889 1.35 § (154)
Euro 32,182 1.20 (1,244)
Pound Sterling 6,546 1.64 (707)
$ 47,617 $  (2,105)

The foreign exchange contracts outstanding as of January 31, 2004 had maturity dates ranging from February 2004
through July 2004.
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teport of Independent Auditors
‘o the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Blyth, Inc:

n our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of earnings,
siockholders’ equity and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Blyth, Inc. and
Subsidiaries (the “Company”) at January 31, 2004 and January 31, 2003, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended January 31, 2004 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for
goodwill and intangible assets in fiscal 2003. As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Company changed its method of accounting for derivative instruments and hedging activities in fiscal 2002.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has restated its segment disclosures
for the years ended January 31, 2003 and January 31, 2002 to reflect a revision in its reportable segments.
Additionally, as also discussed in Note 2, the Company has restated its consolidated financial statements for the
year ended January 31, 2003 to reflect an increase in the cumulative effect of the change in accounting relating to
the adoption of SFAS 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

Stamford, Connecticut
April 26, 2004
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Item 8.
BLYTH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets

January 31, (In thousands, except share and per share data) 2003 2004
ASSETS Restated (Note 2)
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 168,596 % 229,726
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful receivables
$4,093 in 2003 and $4,470 in 2004 82,913 104,502
Inventories 187,935 208,581
Prepaid and other 23,044 40,302
Assets held for sale 690 9,437
Deferred income taxes 14,297 14,191
Total current assets 477,475 606,739
Property, plant and equipment, at cost:
Land and buildings 133,364 160,920
Leasehold improvements 15,620 20,601
Machinery and equipment 201,958 182,472
Office furniture, data processing equipment and software 68,984 106,426
Construction in progress 3,269 1,039
423,195 471,458
Less accumulated depreciation 178,397 210,961
244,798 260,497
Other assets:
Investments 3,564 3,510
Excess of cost over fair value of assets acquired 113,534 204,093
Other intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization of $1,500 in 2004 ' 4,219 41,600
Deposits and other assets 16,494 11,524
137,811 260,727
Total assets $ 860,084 $ 1,127,963

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Bank lines of credit $ 7,377 $ 13,621
Current maturities of long-term debt 4,037 4,522
Accounts payable 58,571 78,407
Accrued expenses 80,953 97,395
Liability associated with assets held for sale - 508
Income taxes 2,477 11,746

Total current liabilities 153,415 206,199
Deferred income taxes 20,810 33,773
Long-term debt, less current maturities 165,079 275,743
Other liabilities 12,928 23,278

Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock - authorized 10,000,000 shares of $0.01
par value; no shares issued - -
Common stock - authorized 100,000,000 shares of $0.02 par value; issued

49,703,682 shares in 2003 and 49,975,502 in 2004 994 999
Additional contributed capital 101,567 107,965
Retained earnings 496,627 570,171
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (4,751) 15,224
Treasury stock, at cost, 3,644,100 shares in 2003 and 4,345,100 shares in 2004 (86,585) (105,389)

Total stockholders’ equity 507,852 588,970
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 860,084 § 1,127,963

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Earnings

ear ended January 31, (In thousands, except per share data) 2002 2003 2004
Restated (Note 2)
let sales $  1L178,771 § 1,288,583 $ 1,505,573
“ost of goods sold 601,766 648,281 781,898
Gross profit 577,005 640,302 723,675
selling 334,715 363,835 417,768
‘dministrative 103,014 118,329 129,021
Amortization of goodwill N 4,702 - -
lestructuring and impairment charges 14,084 2,621 23,809
456,515 484,785 570,598
_ Operating profit 120,490 155,517 153,077
Other expense (income):
Interest expense 17,237 14,664 17,443
Interest income and other (5,014) (1,737) (1,330)
Equity in earnings of investees (22) 33 71
12,201 12,960 16,184
Eamings before income taxes, minority interest and cumulative effect
of change in accounting principle 108,289 142,557 136,893
Income tax expense 40,283 53,032 50,377
Earnings before minority interest and cumulative effect
of change in accounting principle 68,006 89,525 86,516
Minority Interest - - 165
Earnings before cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle 68,006 89,525 86,351
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of taxes
of $2,887 in 2003 - (31,753) -
Net earnings $ 68,006 $ 57,772 $ 86,351
Basic:
Net earnings per common share before cumulative
effect of change in accounting principle $ 145 § 194 § 1.89
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle - (0.69) -
$ 145 § 125§ 1.89
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 47,056 46,256 45,771
Diluted:
Net earnings per common share before cumulative
effect of change in accounting principle $ 144 % 192§ 1.88
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle - (0.68) -
$ 144 $ 124 § 1.88
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 47,205 46,515 46,027

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BLYTH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity

(In thousands, except share and per share data)

Accumulated

Additional other

Common stock contributed Retained Treasury stock comprehensive
Shares Amount capital earnings  Shares Amount _ income (loss)

Balance at January 31, 2001 49,431,576 $ 989 $ 969128 390447 (2,356,800)%  (56,959) $ (9,595) $
Net earnings for the year 68,006
Foreign currency translation
adjustments (6,003)
Reclassification adjustment for '
gains included in net income
(net of tax of $737) (1,244)
Unrealized loss on certain
investments (net of tax of $94) (159)
Net gain on cash flow hedging
instruments (net of tax of $63) 107
Comprehensive income
Common stock issued in
connection with long-term
incentive plan 78,200 1 584
Tax benefit from stock options 383
Dividends paid ($0.20 per share) (9,415)
Treasury stock purchases (274,100) (5,991)

Balance at January 31, 2002 49,509,776 990 97,879 449,038  (2,630,900) (62,950) (16,894)
Net earnings for the year - Restated (Note 2) 57,772
Foreign currency translation

adjustments - Restated (Note 2) 12,470
Unrealized loss on certain

investments (net of tax of $33) (56)
Net loss on cash flow hedging

instruments (net of tax of $160) 271)

Comprehensive income - Restated (Note 2)

Common stock issued in connection

with long-term incentive plan 193,906 4 3,367
Tax benefit from stock options 321
Dividends paid ($0.22 per share) (10,183)
Treasury stock purchases (1,013,200 (23,635

Balance at
January 31, 2003 - Restated (Note 2) 49,703,682 994 101,567 496,627  (3,644,100) (86,585) 4,751)
Net earnings for the year 86,351
Foreign currency translation
adjustments 21,120
Unrealized loss on certain
investments (net of tax of $189) (32%)
Net loss on cash flow hedging
instruments (net of tax of $477) (820)
Comprehensive income
Common stock issued in connection
with long-term incentive plan 271,820 5 5,840
Tax benefit from stock options 558
Dividends paid ($0.28 per share) (12,807)
Treasury stock purchases (701,000)  (18,804)

Balance at January 31, 2004 49,975,502 $ 999 $ 107,965 8% 570,171 (4,345,100) $ (105,389) $ 15,224 %

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BLYTH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

"ear ended January 31, (In thousands) 2002 2003 2004
>ash flows from operating activities: Restated (Note 2)
Net earnings h) 68,006 § 57,772 § 86,351
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax - 31,753 -
Depreciation and amortization 36,246 30,212 35,954
Loss on disposition of fixed assets - - 2,739
Tax benefit from stock options 383 321 558
Deferred income taxes (2,640) 4,711 (584)
Equity in earnings of investees (22) 33 71
Minority interest - - 165
Restructuring and impairment charges 9,292 2,621 20,229
Gain on sale of long-term investments (1,981) - 497
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of
effect of business acquisitions:
Accounts receivable (3,828) 14,896 (12,935)
Inventories 35,592 (1,109) 24,718
Prepaid and other 2,174 1,452 (2,422)
Deposits and other assets (3,266) 913 5,611
Accounts payable 751 8,407 3,236
Accrued expenses 1,961 11,970 6,937
Other liabilities 1,701 9,356 2,093
Income taxes {10,960) (1,121) 833
Total adjustments 65,403 114,415 86,706
Net cash provided by operating activities 133,409 172,187 173,057
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (11,901) (14,322) (21,963)
Purchases of long-term investments - - 1,377)
Proceeds from sale of long-term investments 11,734 26 1,874
Cash impact of Wax Lyrical receivership - (3,253) 1,902
Purchase of businesses, net of cash acquired (61,735) (51,658) (148,584)
Net cash used in investing activities (61,902) (69,207) (168,148)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 585 3,371 5,845
Purchases of treasury stock (5,991) (23,635) (18,804)
Borrowings from bank line of credit 61,634 71,961 67,833
Repayments on bank line of credit (75,685) (90,655) (70,931)
Borrowings on long-term debt 4,791 517 130,506
Repayments on long-term debt - (19,872) (40,663)
Dividends paid (9,415) (10,183) (12,807)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (24,081) (68,496) 60,979
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash : (5,105) (1,245) (4,758)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 42,321 33,239 61,130
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 93,036 135,357 168,596
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 135,357 $ 168,596 $ 229,726
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest h) 17,237 § 15,355 § 10,800
Income taxes, net of refunds 43,635 47,741 47,460

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BLYTH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the accompanying consolida
financial statements follows:

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Blyth, Inc. and its direct and indirect subsidiarie
(the “Company”). The company consolidates entities in which it owns or controls more than 50% of the voti
shares. The unowned portion is reflected as minority interest. Investments in companies that are not consolidat
are reported using the equity method and are recorded in other assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.
significant inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. In January 2003, t
FASB issued Interpretation No. 46, "Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an Interpretation of Accounti
Research Bulletin No. 51" (FIN 46). FIN 46 requires that factors in addition to the voting interest in an entity
considered in determining whether an entity should be consolidated. In preparing these financial statements, th
company was required to apply the provisions of FIN 46.

Certain of the Company’s subsidiaries operate on a 52 or 53-week fiscal year ending on the Saturday nearest to
January 31. European operations maintain a calendar year accounting period, which is consolidated with the
Company’s fiscal period.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Areas of the
financial statements involving significant estimates include inventory reserves, bad debt reserves, chargeback
reserves, impairment charges, taxes, and other accrued liabilities.

Credit Concentration

The Company's credit sales are principally to department and gift stores, mass merchandisers and distributors,
which purchase the Company's products for resale. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its
customers and generally does not require collateral. The Company makes provisions for estimated credit losses.

Foreign Currency Translation

The Company’s international subsidiaries use their local currency as their functional currency. Therefore, all
balance sheet accounts of international subsidiaries are translated into US dollars at the year-end rate of exchange,
and statement of earnings items are translated at the weighted average exchange rates for the period. Resulting
translation adjustments are included in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). Gains and losses on
foreign currency transactions, which are included in income, were not material.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made in prior years’ financial statements to conform to classifications used in
the current year.

Investments

The Company makes investments from time to time in the ordinary course of its business that may include selected
assets and product lines, long-term investments and/or joint ventures that either complement or expand its existing
business. The equity method of accounting is used to account for investments in common stock in which the
Company has the ability to exercise significant influence over the operating and financial policies of the investee.
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BLYTH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

‘ote 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Yerivatives and Other Financial Instruments

ihe Company applies the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 133 (SFAS 133),
‘Accounting for Derivative and Hedging Activities" and its corresponding amendment under SFAS 138. These
siatements establish the accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments and hedging activities and
require that all derivative instruments be recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. The Company uses forward
foreign exchange contracts to hedge the impact of foreign currency fluctuations on certain committed capital
expenditures, certain inventory purchases, Canadian intercompany payables and certain intercompany loans. The
_Company does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

‘With regard to commitments for machinery and equipment in foreign currencies, upon payment of each
‘commitment the underlying forward contract is closed and the corresponding gain or loss is included in the
‘measurement of the cost of the acquired asset. With regard to forward exchange contracts used to hedge Canadian
intercompany payables and foreign purchases of inventory, gain or loss on such hedges is recognized in earnings in
the period in which the underlying hedged transaction is settled. Gains or losses on foreign currency forward
contracts related to intercompany loans are recognized currently through income and generally offset the
transaction gains or losses in the foreign currency cash flows which they are intended to hedge. If a hedging
instrument is sold or terminated prior to maturity, gains and losses are deferred until the hedged item is settled.
However, if the hedged item is no longer likely to occur, the resultant gain or loss on the terminated hedge is
recognized in earnings. For consolidated financial statement presentation, net cash flows from such hedges are
classified in the categories of the cash flow with the items being hedged. Approximately $820,000 of hedge losses
are included in accumulated OCI at January 31, 2004, and are expected to be transferred into earnings within the
next twelve months.

On July 10, 2003, the Company terminated the interest rate swap agreement in relation to $50.0 million of our
outstanding 7.90% Senior Notes, which mature on October 1, 2009. This termination resulted in a deferred gain of
approximately $5.0 million, which will be amortized over the remaining term of the Notes.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company's financial instruments include accounts receivable, accounts payable, short-term and long-term debt.
Management believes the carrying value of these items approximates their estimated fair values, except for long-
term debt, as discussed in Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Cash Equivalents

- The Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or
less to be cash equivalents. ‘

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined by the first-in, first-out method. The
elements of cost are primarily material, labor and overhead.

Shipping and Handling

The Company classifies shipping and handling fees billed to customers in revenue, and shipping and handling costs
are classified as cost of goods sold.
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BLYTH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation a
amortization are provided principally by use of the straight-line method for financial reporting purpos
Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lives of the respective leases or the service lives of t
improvements, whichever is shorter. The Company records gains and losses from the sale of property, plant a
equipment in interest income and other.

The principal estimated lives used in determining depreciation and amortization are as follows:

Buildings 27 to 40 years
Leasehold improvements 5 to 10 years
Machinery and equipment 510 12 years
Office furniture, data processing equipment and software 3to 7 years

Excess of Cost Over Fair Value of Assets Acquired

Prior to February 1, 2002, excess of costs of acquisitions over fair value of identifiable net assets acquired les
liabilities assumed (“goodwill”) was being amortized on a straight-line basis over estimated lives ranging from 15
40 years. Amortization of goodwill ceased on February 1, 2002, upon adoption of the new goodwill rules under
SFAS 142.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” Under SFAS No. 142,
goodwill and any other intangibles deemed to have indefinite lives are no longer subject to amortization; however,
goodwill is subject to an assessment for impairment using a two-step fair value-based test and such other
intangibles are also subject to impairment reviews, which must be performed at least annually, or more frequently
if events or circumstances indicate that goodwill or other indefinite lived intangibles might be impaired. The
Company performs its annual assessment of impairment in the fourth fiscal quarter. For goodwill the first step
compares the fair value of a reporting unit to its carrying amount, including goodwill. If the carrying amount of the
reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the second step is performed. The second step compares the carrying amount
of the goodwill to the fair value of the goodwill. If fair value is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss
is reported as a reduction to the asset and a charge to operating expense, except at the transition date, when the loss
was reflected as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle.

As of January 31, 2002, Blyth’s Consolidated Balance Sheets reflected approximately $108.1 million in goodwill
net of accumulated amortization, including $27.2 million related to the Wholesale Home Fragrance segment
businesses, $42.2 million related to the All Other segment and $38.7 million related to the Wholesale Creative
Expressions segment businesses. The Company adopted SFAS 142, effective February 1, 2002. In accordance with
the new standard, Blyth ceased amortization of goodwill and performed an assessment for impairment of its
goodwill. As a result of the impairment review, Blyth reduced the carrying value of the goodwill related to its 1997
acquisition of the Sterno® brand by $7.4 million, which is included in the All Other segment. In addition, a recent
revision of its operating and reporting segments by the Company (See Note 2), required changes in the Company’s
reporting units for purposes of goodwill impairment reviews under SFAS 142, retroactive to the February 1, 2002
adoption date of SFAS 142. This resulted in the need to perform impairment reviews of several additional
reporting units as of February 1, 2002 and each subsequent year-end balance sheet date thereafter. These
impairment reviews have indicated the need to record additional impairment charges as of the February 1, 2002
adoption of SFAS 142, specifically to write-off $20.9 million in goodwill associated with the 1999 acquisition of
the Gies Group and $6.3 million in goodwill associated with the 1999 acquisition of the Colony Group. Both of
these businesses are components of the Wholesale Home Fragrance Segment, and the impairment charges reduced
goodwill in that segment to zero at February 1, 2002, The fair values of the Sterno Group, the Gies Group and the
Colony Group were determined through independent valuations utilizing market-comparable analysis, as well as
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vote 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

ixcess of Cost Over Fair Value of Assets Acquired (continued)

discounted cash flow models reflecting the expected range of future cash flow outcomes over the life of the models.
I'hese cash flows were discounted to February 1, 2002 using a risk-adjusted discount rate. The impairment of the
Sterno Group’s goodwill, which was recorded as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, had the
effect of reducing net income by $4.5 million (after tax) or $0.10 per share. The impairments of the Gies Group
and Colony Group goodwill, which were not deductible for tax purposes, were, via restatement of the fiscal 2003
financial statements, also recorded as a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, and had the effect of
reducing net income by $27.2 million or $0.58 per share. The carrying amount of goodwill on the Company’s
Consolidated Balance Sheet increased approximately $5.4 million, from $108.1 million at January 31, 2002 to
$113.5 million at January 31, 2003. The change in goodwill was the result of the acquisition of CBK (See Note 4
to the Consolidated Financial Statements), which increased goodwill by approximately $40.0 million, offset by the
previously discussed impairment charges, which decreased goodwill by $34.6 million.

As of January 31, 2003, the $113.5 million in goodwill was comprised of $34.8 million related to the All Other
segment and $78.7 million related to the Wholesale Creative Expressions segment businesses. The carrying amount
of goodwill on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet increased approximately $90.6 million, from $113.5
million at January 31, 2003 to $204.1 million at January 31, 2004. The change in goodwill was primarily the result
of the acquisitions of Miles Kimball, Kaemingk and Walter Drake (See Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements), which increased goodwill by approximately $45.6 million, $17.6 million and $25.4 million,
respectively, together with an increase in goodwill resulting from a foreign currency translation adjustment of
approximately $2.0 million. Of the $204.1 million of goodwill on the balance sheet as of January 31, 2004, $34.8
million is related to the All Other segment, $19.6 million is related to the Wholesale Home Fragrance segment,
$78.7 million is related to the Wholesale Creative Expressions segment and $71.0 million is related to the Catalog
& Internet segment.
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Excess of Cost Over Fair Value of Assets Acquired (continued)

The following table sets forth Blyth’s net income and earnings per share adjusted to exclude fiscal 20
amortization expense related to goodwill and certain other intangibles that are no longer being amortized and
reflect the cumulative effect of change in accounting principle related to the adoption of SFAS 142 recorded
fiscal 2003.

Year ended January 31, (In thousands, except per share data) 2002 2003
Reported earnings before cumulative effect of change Restated (Note 2)
in accounting principle $ 68,006 % 89,525 % 86,351
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, -
net of taxes of $2,887 in 2003 - (31,753)
Reported net income 68,006 57,772 86,351
Goodwill amortization, net of taxes of
$1,749 in 2002 2,953 -
Adjusted net income $ 70,959 § 57,772 § 86,351
Basic earnings per common share:
Reported earnings before cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle $ 145 § 1.94 $
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, ‘
net of taxes - (0.69)
Reported net income 1.45 1.25
Goodwill amortization, net of taxes 0.06 -
Adjusted earnings per share $ 1.51 $ 125 %

Diluted earnings per common share:
Reported earnings before cumulative effect of change

in accounting principle $ 1.44 % 1.92 §
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle,

net of taxes - (0.68)
Reported net income 1.44 1.24
Goodwill amortization, net of taxes 0.06 -
Adjusted earnings per share $ 1.50 § 124 §
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otel.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

iipairment of Long-Lived Assets

Je review long-lived assets, including property, plant and equipment for impairment whenever events or changes
1 circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such an asset may not be recoverable. Management will
etermine whether there has been a permanent impairment on such assets held for use in the business by comparing
nticipated undiscounted future cash flows from the use and eventual disposition of the asset or asset group to the
-arrying value of the asset. The amount of any resulting impairment will be calculated by comparing the carrying
value to the fair value, which may be estimated using the present value of the same cash flows. Long-lived assets
‘hat meet the definition of held for sale are valued at the lower of carrying amount or net realizable value.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income (loss) includes net income (loss) and other comprehensive income (loss).  Other
comprehensive income (loss) is classified separately into foreign currency items, unrealized gains and losses on
certain investments in debt and equity securities and the net gains and losses on cash flow hedging instruments. The
Company reports, by major components and as a single total, the change in comprehensive income (loss) during the
period as part of the Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity.

The following table presents the components of the Company’s accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net

of tax, for the years ended January 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004:

Foreign Unrealized Net
currency Gain (loss) gain (loss)
translation on certain on cash flow
(In thousands) adjustments investments hedges Total
Balance at January 31, 2001 § {10,839) 1,244 - 8§ (9,595)
Foreign currency
translation adjustments (6,003) (6,003)
Reclassification adjustment for gains
included in net income (net of tax $737) (1,244) (1,244)
Unrealized loss on certain
investments (net of tax $94) (159) (159)
Net gain on cash flow
hedging instruments (net of tax $63) 107 107
Balance at January 31, 2002 (16,842) (159) 107 (16,894)
Foreign currency
translation adjustments - Restated (Note 2) 12,470 12,470
Unrealized loss on certain
investments (net of tax $33) (56) (56)
Net loss on cash flow
hedging instruments (net of tax $160) (271) (271)
Balance at January 31, 2003 - Restated (Note 2) (4,372) (215) (164) (4,751)
Foreign currency
translation adjustments 21,120 21,120
Unrealized loss on certain
investments (net of tax $189) (325) (325)
Net loss on cash flow
hedging instruments (net of tax $477) (820) (820)
Balance at January 31, 2004 $ 16,748 $ (540) (984) $ 15,224
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Note 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Income Taxes

Income tax expense is based on pre-tax financial accounting income. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

recognized for the expected tax consequences of temporary differences between the tax basis of assets z
liabilities and their reported amounts. The management of the corporation, along with third-party advis
periodically estimates the probable tax obligations of the corporation using historical experience in tax jurisdicti
and informed judgments. There are inherent uncertainties related to the interpretation of tax regulations in
jurisdictions in which the corporation transacts business. The judgments and estimates made at a point in time m
change based on the outcome of tax audits, as well as changes to or further interpretations of regulations. If su
changes take place, there is a risk that the tax rate may increase or decrease in any period.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue recognition — Revenues consist of sales to customers, net of returns and allowances. The Compa
recognizes revenue upon delivery, when both title and risk of loss are transferred to the customer.:

Generally, sales orders are received via signed customer purchase orders with stated fixed prices based o
published price lists. The Company records estimated reductions to revenue for customer programs, which ma
include special pricing agreements for specific customers, volume incentives and other promotions. Should marke
conditions decline, the Company may increase customer incentives with respect to future sales. The Company als
records estimated reductions to revenue, based primarily on historical experience, for customer returns an
chargebacks that may arise as a result of shipping errors, product damage in transit or for other reasons that can
only become known subsequent to recognizing the revenue. If the amount of actual customer returns and
chargebacks were to increase significantly from the estimated amount, revisions to the estimated allowance would
be required.

In some instances, the Company receives payment in advance of product shipments. Such advance payments occur
primarily in our direct selling and direct marketing channels and are recorded as deferred revenue. Upon delivery
of product shipments for which advance payment has been made, the related deferred revenue is reclassified to
revenue.

Most of the Company’s sales made on credit are made to an established list of customers. Although the
collectibility of sales made on credit is reasonably assured, the Company has established an allowance for doubtful
accounts for its trade and note receivables. The allowance is determined based on the Company’s evaluation of
specific customers’ ability to pay, aging of receivables, historical experience and the current economic
environment. While the Company believes it has appropriately considered known or expected outcomes, its
customers’ ability to pay their obligations, including those to the Company, could be adversely affected by
declining sales at retail resulting from such factors as contraction in the economy or a general decline in consumer
spending.

Some of the Company’s business units offer seasonal dating programs pursuant to which customers that qualify for
such programs are offered extended payment terms for seasonal product shipments. As with other customers,
customer orders pursuant to such seasonal dating programs are generally received in the form of a written purchase
order signed by an authorized representative of the customer. Sales made pursuant to seasonal dating programs are
recorded as revenue only upon delivery either to the customer or to an agent of the customer depending on the
freight terms for the particular shipment and consistent with the concept of “risk of loss.” The sales price for the
Company’s products sold pursuant to such seasonal dating programs is fixed prior to the time of shipment to the
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te 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

~venue Recognition (continued)

ustomer. Customers do not have the right to return product except for rights to return that the Company believes

e typical of our industry for such reasons as damaged goods, shipping errors or similar occurrences. The
ompany is not required to repurchase products from its customers, nor does the Company have any regular
ractice of doing so. The Company believes that it is reasonably assured of payment for products sold pursuant to
ach seasonal dating programs based on its historical experience with the established list of customers eligible for
uch programs. In addition, the Company minimizes its exposure to bad debts by utilizing established credit limits
or each customer. If, however, product sales by our customers during the seasonal selling period should fall
ignificantly below expectations, such customers’ financial condition could be adversely affected, increasing the
isk of not collecting these seasonal dating receivables and, possibly, resulting in additional bad debt charges. The
“ompany does not make any sales under consignment or similar arrangements.

Earnings per Common and Common Equivalent Share

Earnings per common and common equivalent share are computed based upon the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period, which includes outstanding options for common stock, when dilutive.

Employee Stock Option Plans

The Company has elected to adopt the disclosure only provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure,” and continues to

_follow Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” and

~related interpretations in accounting for stock options granted to its employees and directors under the intrinsic
value method. Accordingly, no compensation expense is recorded for the stock options issued to employees unless
the option price is below market at the measurement date. The Company does not at this time issue stock options
below market value; therefore no compensation expense has been recorded in the financial statements. Had
compensation expense for the Company’s stock options been determined in accordance with the fair value method
in SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” and SFAS No. 148, the Company’s reported net
income and earnings per share would have been adjusted to the pro forma amounts indicated below:

Year ended January 31, (In thousands, except per share data) 2002 2003 2004
Net earnings: Restated (Note 2)
As reported $ 68,006 $ 57,772 § 86,351
Stock-based employee compensation expense
determined under SFAS No. 123 for all awards,
net of related tax 931 2,202 2,428
Pro forma $ 67,075 % 55,570 § 83,923
Net earnings per common share:
As reported:
Basic $ 145 3 125 § 1.89
Diluted 1.44 1.24 1.88
Pro forma:
Basic $ 143 $ 1.20 § 1.83
Diluted 1.41 1.16 1.77
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Notel.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Employee Stock Option Plans (continued)

The fair value of each option is estimated on the date of grant, using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model
the following weighted-average assumptions:

2002 2003 2004
Expected volatility 41.40% 43.26% 41.48%
Risk free interest rates 4,72% 4.48% 2.73%

Expected lives 7 5 5
Expected dividend yield 0.87% 0.74% 0.87%

Classification of Sales Incentives

In November 2001, the Emerging Issues Task Force issued EITF Issue No. 01-09, “Accounting for Considerati
Given by a Vendor to a Customer/Reseller,” which addresses the accounting for consideration given by a vendor
a customer, including both a reseller of the vendor’s products and an entity that purchases the vendor’s produc
from a reseller. EITF 01-09 also codifies and reconciles related guidance issued by the EITF including EITF Issu
No. 00-25, “Vendor Income Statement Characterization of Consideration Paid to a Reseller of the Vendor’
Products”, and EITF Issue No. 00-14, “Accounting for Certain Sales Incentives.” Effective February 1, 2002, th
company adopted EITF 01-09, EITF 00-14 and EITF 00-25. These statements require that the Company classi
certain sales incentives as a reduction of net sales rather than selling expenses. Prior year amounts wer
reclassified to conform with the new presentation.

Advertising and Catalog Costs

The Company expenses the costs of advertising as incurred, except the costs for direct-response advertising, which
are capitalized and amortized over the expected period of future benefits.

Direct-response advertising relates to the Company’s Miles Kimball and Walter Drake businesses and consists
primarily of the costs to produce direct-mail order catalogs that include order forms for the Company’s products.
The capitalized production costs are amortized for each specific catalog mailing over the period following catalog
distribution in proportion to revenues (orders) received, compared to total estimated revenues for that particular
catalog mailing. The amortization period is generally from three to six months and does not exceed twelve months.
Deferred direct-response advertising costs of $7.4 million and $0 were reported as assets at January 31, 2004 and
January 31, 2003, respectively.

In certain of the Company’s wholesale businesses, catalog production costs are capitalized and expensed as the
catalogs are distributed, generally over less than a twelve month period. The Consolidated Balance Sheets reflect
$0.5 million and $0.6 million of these costs at January 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Note 2. Restatement

Prior to January 31, 2004, the Company reported its financial results in two reporting segments, the Candles &
Home Fragrance segment and the Creative Expressions segment. The Company has reevaluated its operating
segments based on the application of FASB Statement No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and
Related Information” (“SFAS 131”), and determined that the appropriate number of reportable segments should
have been five during fiscal 2004 and four during fiscal 2003 and 2002 (The increase in segments in fiscal 2004
was due to the acquisitions that were consummated in fiscal 2004). See Note 18 for further details. This revision
of segments had the related effect of requiring changes in the Company’s reporting units for purposes of goodwill
impairment reviews under SFAS 142, retroactive to the February 1, 2002 adoption date of SFAS 142, This
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ote 2.  Restatement (continued)

;sulted in the need to perform impairment reviews of several additional reporting units as of February 1, 2002 and
ich subsequent year-end balance sheet date, thereafter. These impairment reviews have indicated the need to
-cord additional impairment charges as of the February 1, 2002 adoption of SFAS 142, specifically to write-off
20.9 million in goodwill associated with the 1999 acquisition of the Gies Group and $6.3 million in goodwill
ssociated with the 1999 acquisition of the Colony Group. Both of these businesses are components of the
Vholesale Home Fragrance Segment. The Company’s fiscal 2003 financial statements have been restated to
eflect the recording of these $27.2 million in goodwill impairment charges as part of the cumulative effect of
idopting SFAS 142 as of February 1, 2002. There was no income tax impact for these impairment charges.

A summary of the effects of the restatement on the Company's financial statements is as follows:
As of January 31, 2003
As Previously

(In thousands) Reported (a) As Restated

Balance sheet:
Excess of cost over fair value of assets acquired $ 145,146 $ 113,534 3
Total non-current assets 169,423 137,811
Total assets 891,696 860,084
Retained earnings 523,865 496,627
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (377 (4,751) )
Total stockholders' equity 539,464 507,852
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity 891,696 860,084

Year ended January 31, 2003
As Previously

Reported As Restated

Statement of Earnings:
Earnings before cumulative effect of

accounting change $ 89,525 $ 89,525
Cumulative effect of accounting change (4,515 (31,753)
Net earnings $ 85,010 $ 57,772
Basic earnings per share:

Before cumulative effect of accounting change $ 1.94 $ 1.94

Cumulative effect of accounting change (0.10) (0.69)

$ 1.84 $ 1.25
Diluted earnings per share:
Before cumulative effect of accounting change $ 1.93 $ 1.92
Cumulative effect of accounting change (0.10) (0.68)
$ 1.83 $ 1.24
Statement of Stockholders' Equity
Foreign currency translation adjustments 3 16,844‘ $ 12,470
Comprehensive income 101,527 69,915

Statement of Cash Flows:
Total adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net
cash from operations $ 87,177 $ 114,415

(a) Reflects certain other reclassifications to conform with current year presentation.
(b) Reflects the reversal of 84,374 of foreign currency translation adjustments on the Gies and Colony goodwill being written off.
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Note3.  New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activiti
This standard addresses financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal activities
nullifies EITF Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other C
to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs incurred in a Restructuring).” This standard has been adopted by
Company for exit and disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Financial Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclos
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others,” which elaborates on t
disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements about its obligations un
certain guarantees that it has issued. It also clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize, at the inception o
guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. The initial recogniti
and initial measurement provisions of this interpretation are applicable on a prospective basis to guarantees issu
or modified after December 31, 2002 and the disclosure requirements in this interpretation are effective f
financial statements of interim or annual periods ending after December 15, 2002. The implementation of th
interpretation did not have an impact on our financial statements.

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Financial Interpretation No. 46 (F
46), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” FIN 46 clarifies the application of Accounting Research Buileti
No. 51, “Consolidated Financial Statements.” FIN 46 requires consolidation of entities in which the Compan
absorbs a majority of the entity’s expected losses, receives a majority of the entity’s expected residual returns, o
both, as a result of ownership, contractual or other financial interests in the entity. Previously, entities wer.
consolidated only when the Company had a controlling financial interest through ownership of a majority votin
interest in an entity. The interpretation was immediately applicable to variable interest entities (“VIEs™) created
after January 31, 2003, and to VIEs in which an enterprise obtains an interest after that date. As originally issued,
it applied in the fiscal year or interim period beginning after June 15, 2003, for VIEs in which an enterprise
acquired a variable interest prior to February 1, 2003. In December 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46R, which defers
the effective date for FIN 46 to the first interim or annual period ending after December 15, 2003 for VIEs created
before February 1, 2003. The implementation of this standard has not had and is not expected to have a material
impact on our financial statements.

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities.” This statement amends and clarifies financial accounting and reporting for derivative
instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts (collectively referred to as
derivatives) and for hedging activities under FASB Statement No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities.” This standard is effective for derivative contracts entered into or modified after June 30,
2003. The implementation of this standard had no impact on our financial statements.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics
of Both Liabilities and Equity.” As originally issued, SFAS 150 is effective for mandatorily redeemable financial
instruments of public entities entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and for all other instruments for interim
periods beginning after June 15, 2003. In November 2003, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. 150-3,
“Effective Date, Disclosures, and Transition for Mandatorily Redeemable Financial Instruments of Certain
Nonpublic Entities and Certain Mandatorily Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests under FASB Statement No.
1507, which defers indefinitely the classification and measurement provisions for certain mandatorily redeemable
noncontrolling interests associated with finite-lived subsidiaries pending further FASB action. For other
mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interests that were issued before November 5, 2003, only the measurement
provisions of SFAS 150 are deferred indefinitely, both for the parent in consolidated financial statements and for
the subsidiary that issued the instruments that result in the mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interest, pending
further FASB action. The original implementation of SFAS 150 had no impact on our financial statements and we
do not expect the deferral provisions of FSP FAS 150-3 to have a significant impact on our financial statements.
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‘ote4.  Business Acquisitions

)n April 11, 2001, the Company acquired 100% of Midwest of Cannon Falls, Inc. (“Midwest”), a leading
Vholesale Creative Expressions company in the seasonal decorative products and giftware industry for
pproximately $61.0 million in cash. The excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair value of the net
:ssets acquired approximated $25.4 million. Midwest is included in the Wholesale Creative Expressions segment.
I'he Consolidated Financial Statements include the results of operations of Midwest since the date of acquisition.

On May 10, 2002, the Company purchased all of the interests in CBK, Ltd., LLC (“CBK”), now known as CBK
Styles, Inc., a designer and marketer of premium everyday home décor, for approximately $51.5 million in cash.
The excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair value of the net assets acquired approximated $40.0
million, which will be deductible for income tax purposes over 15 years. CBK is also included in the Wholesale
Creative Expressions segment. The Consolidated Financial Statements include the results of operations of CBK
since the date of acquisition.

On April 1, 2003, the Company acquired 100% of the Miles Kimball Company (“MK”), a direct marketer of
giftware, home décor and household convenience items, premium photo albums, frames and holiday cards under
the Miles Kimball® and Exposures® catalog titles for approximately $66.2 million in cash. The acquisition of
“MK” aligns with the Company’s growth strategy, which includes selected acquisitions. The excess of the
purchase price over the estimated fair value of the net assets acquired approximated $45.6 million, which will not
be deductible for income tax purposes. The other intangibles acquired consist of $16.1 million of trade names and
trademarks, which are deemed to have an indefinite life and will not be amortized, plus $9.0 million of customer
lists, which will be amortized on an accelerated basis over 12 years. Amortization expense recorded in fiscal 2004
totaled $1.4 million. Estimated amortization expense for the next 5 fiscal years is as follows: $1.5 million, $1.5
~ million, $1.2 million, $0.9 million and $0.9 million. The results of operations of MK are included in the
Consolidated Statements of Earnings of the Company since April 2, 2003. For segment reporting purposes, MK is
included in the Catalog & Internet segment.

The following provides an allocation of the purchase price of Miles Kimball (in thousands):

Cash Purchase Price S 66,219
Less: Assets acquired
Accounts receivable 1,124
Inventories _ 9,983
Property, plant and equipment 17,959
Intangible assets 25,100
Other 1,706
Total assets acquired 55,872
Plus: Liabilities assumed
Accounts payable 3,610
Accrued expenses 1,351
Deferred income taxes 11,155
Debt 10,729
Other 8,412
Total liabilities assumed 35,257
Unallocated purchase price (goodwill) $ 45,604
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Note 4.  Business Acquisitions (continued)

On June 20, 2003, the Company acquired a 100% interest in Kaemingk B.V. (“Kaemingk”), a designer
marketer of a wide range of premium seasonal decorations. Kaemingk’s product lines feature Christmas déc
including ornaments, lighting, trim, glassware, candles and plush animals, as well as spring and summer decorati
accents. The acquisition of Kaemingk aligns with the Company’s growth strategy, which includes select
acquisitions. The cash purchase price was approximately $36.2 million less cash acquired of $7.7 million resulti
in net cash paid of $28.5 million. Approximately $30.6 million of the cash purchase price was borrowed under t
Company’s $200 million unsecured revolving credit facility. The Company also assumed Kaemingk’s long-te
debt of approximately $14.4 million. The excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair value of the n
assets acquired approximated $17.6 million, which will not be deductible for income tax purposes. During t
quarter ended October 31, 2003, an adjustment was recorded to reflect the final appraised value of the acquir
property, plant and equipment. In addition to the fixed purchase price, there is contingent consideration payable i
the form of a three-year earn out provision based on a pre-defined formula related to a multiple of earnings befo
interest and income taxes. The results of operations of Kaemingk are included in the Consolidated Statements
Earnings of the Company since June 21, 2003. For segment reporting purposes, Kaemingk is included in th
Wholesale Home Fragrance segment.

The following provides an allocation of the purchase price of Kaemingk (in thousands):
Cash Purchase Price $ 36,237

Less: Assets acquired

Cash and cash equivalents 7,681
Accounts receivable 2,106
Inventories 25,514
Property, plant and equipment 14,647
Other 606
Total assets acquired 50,554
Plus: Liabilities assumed
Bank lines of credit 9,335
Accounts payable 2,479
Accrued expenses 1,760
Deferred income taxes 2,786
Debt 14,364
Other 1,143
Total liabilities assumed 31,867
Unallocated purchase price (goodwill) $ 17,550
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On December 22, 2003, the Company acquired 100% of Walter Drake (“WD”), a direct marketer of value-priced
household products including household gifts, gadgets and convenience products, personalized merchandise, home
décor and holiday cards under the Walter Drake and The Home Marketplace catalog titles, for approximately $53.8
million. The acquisition of WD aligns with the Company’s growth strategy, which includes selected acquisitions.
The excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair value of the net assets acquired approximated $25.4
‘million, which will be deductible for income tax purposes. The other intangibles acquired consist of approximately
$12.0 million of trade names and trademarks, which are deemed to have an indefinite life and will not be
amortized, plus approximately $6.0 million of customer lists, which will be amortized on an accelerated basis over
10 years. Estimated amortization expense for the next 5 fiscal years is as follows: $0.9 million, $0.9 millien, $0.9
million, $0.6 million and $0.6 million. The results of operations of WD are included in the Consolidated
Statements of Earnings of the Company since December 23, 2003. For segment reporting purposes, WD is
~included in the Catalog & Internet segment.

The following provides a preliminary allocation of the purchase price of Walter Drake (in thousands):
Cash Purchase Price _ $ 53,809

Less: Assets acquired

Accounts Receivable 539
Inventories 6,010
Prepaid and other 5,743
Property, plant and equipment 4,667
Intangible assets 18,000
Total assests acquired 34,959
Plus: Liabilities assumed
Cash overdraft 580
Accounts Payable 3,442
Accrued expenses 2,382
Other : 189
Total liabilities assumed 6,593
Unallocated purchase price (goodwill) $ 25,443
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Note 4.  Business Acquisitions (continued)

The following unaudited pro forma summary financial information summarizes the estimated combined results
operations of the Company and CBK, Miles Kimball, Kaemingk and Walter Drake assuming that the acquisitio
of CBK, Miles Kimball, Kaemingk and Walter Drake had taken place on February 1, 2002. The unaudited p
forma combined results of operations were prepared on the basis of information provided to the Company by t
former management of CBK, Miles Kimball, Kaemingk and Walter Drake and no representation is made by t
Company with respect to the accuracy of such information. The pro forma combined results of operations refle
adjustments for interest income, additional depreciation based on the fair market value of CBK’s, Miles Kimball’
and Walter Drake’s property, plant and equipment, amortization of identifiable intangibles of Miles Kimball an
Walter Drake and income tax expense. '

Year ended January 31, (In thousands except per share data) (Unaudited) 2003 2004
Restated (Note 2)
Net sales $ 1,583,759 $ 1,604,833
Earnings before cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle 98,786 83,932
Net earnings 67,033 83,932
Basic:

Earnings per common share before the

cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle $ 214 § 1.83
Net earnings per common share 1.45 1.83
Diluted:

Earnings per common share before the
cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle $ 2.12° % 1.82

Net earnings per common share 1.44 1.82

The unaudited pro forma combined results of operations are not necessarily indicative of, and do not purport to
represent, what the Company’s results of operations or financial condition actually would have been had the
acquisitions been made as of February 1, 2002.

Note 5.  Restructuring and Impairment Charges

The Company recorded restructuring and impairment charges of $23.8 million pre-tax during fiscal 2004 of which
$23.0 was recorded in the fourth quarter and $0.8 million was recorded in the third quarter. These charges were
primarily a result of ongoing efforts by the Company to rationalize and align its Wholesale Home Fragrance
segment operations with the changing marketplace and global supply chain requirements. The following
summarizes the components of these charges:

The Company recognized pre-tax impairment losses of $8.4 million for long-lived assets disposed of and $2.3
million for long-lived assets to be held and used, during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004 on certain equipment in
the Company’s primary North American manufacturing facilities. The Company anticipates cost savings in the
form of reduced depreciation expense related to the assets disposed of somewhat offset by increased depreciation
due to reductions in remaining useful lives of assets held and used. The asset disposals resulted from significant
productivity increases in recent vears, as well as product shift from candle forms such as pillars and tapers towards
filled containers, votives and tealights.
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“ote 5. Restructuring and Impairment Charges (continued)

I'he Company also recorded an impairment charge of $4.2 million pre-tax related to the Canterbury® brand
scquired in fiscal 1997. Within its home fragrance business, the Company acquired several consumer wholesale
srands over the past decade and is focusing its sales and marketing resources to fewer brands. In the fourth quarter
of fiscal 2004 the Company decided to discontinue the Canterbury® brand.

During the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2004 the Company recorded asset impairments of facilities and
equipment totaling $3.4 million pre-tax and severance payments to employees of $0.5 million pre-tax related to the
closure of its Hyannis, manufacturing facility. In conjunction with the closing, the Company eliminated 43 jobs,
comprised of manufacturing and management positions. This manufacturing facility, which was the Company’s
smallest, is located in a busy downtown area of Cape Cod, making transportation of raw materials and finished
products to and from the location challenging. Operations are being consolidated into Blyth’s manufacturing
facility in Batavia, Illinois.

During the fourth quarter, the Company recorded additional pre-tax charges of $5.0 million. These charges consist
of $2.1 million related to severance costs primarily associated with the restructuring of Blyth HomeScents
International — North America and the consolidation of the Company’s Temecula, California potpourri operations,
$0.9 million of lease termination costs associated with the closure of five of the Company’s candle outlet stores,
and $2.0 million of fixed asset write-downs primarily associated with the aforementioned changes. As a result of
these restructuring activities, the Company eliminated 40 jobs, comprised of administrative and management
positions.

In total, approximately 15% or $3.6 million of the $23.8 million in charges were cash charges.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, the Company recorded an impairment charge of $2.6 million pre-tax as a
result of putting Wax Lyrical, our UK specialty retailer, into administrative receivership. Wax Lyrical had cash
balances of approximately $3.3 million, which were required to be turned over to the receiver. Wax Lyrical has
been included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company since fiscal 2001 during which time Wax
Lyrical had annual revenues of approximately $16 - 18 million and incurred annual operating losses of
approximately $2 - 3 million.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company recorded restructuring and impairment charges of
approximately $14.1 million pre-tax. The following summarizes the components of these charges:

The Company recorded a charge of approximately $7.3 million pre-tax related to the closure of the Company’s
62nd Street Chicago facility effected to address overall manufacturing over-capacity. This charge includes asset
impairments of facilities and equipment totaling $6.7 million and severance payments to employees of $0.6 million.

Charges of $5.2 million pre-tax were recorded relating primarily to other rationalization within Blyth’s North
American consumer wholesale businesses and included severance payments following several changes in
management of $2.0 million, lease write-offs of $1.6 million and asset impairments of $1.6 million.

The remainder of the fourth quarter charges of approximately $1.6 million, were associated with the Company’s
European activities, including an asset impairment charge of $1.0 million on property held for sale at one of our
Gies Group units and redundancy payments made to employees and lease exit costs at our Colony Group in the
UK.

Fiscal 2002 results also include $5.0 million in cost of sales charges in the fourth quarter, reflecting the impact of
marketplace conditions on the realizable value of obsolete inventory.

In addition to the fourth quarter charges the Company recorded a $6.3 million pre-tax unusual charge to cost of

sales in the second quarter of fiscal 2002 relating to the revaluation of US mass market inventory, due in large part
to Wal-Mart’s change to a private label candle program.
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The following is a tabular rollforward of the restructuring charges described above that were recorded on
balance sheet of the Company:

Lease Severance
(In thousands) Obligations Costs Total
Balance at January 31, 2002 $ 1,463 § 1,753 § 3,216
Payments made against 2002 charges (533) (1,753) (2,286)
Reversal of over accrual to income of 2002 charges
following agreement of sublease (52%5) - (52%)
Balance at January 31, 2003 405 - 405
Payments made against 2003 charges (405) - (405)
Fiscal 2004 charges 967 2,615 3,582
Payments made against 2004 charges (62) (220) (282)
Balance at January 31, 2004 $ 905 $ 2395 % 3,300

Note 6. Assets Held for Sale

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company decided to divest of one of its business units in the
Wholesale Creative Expressions segment through a sale to the business unit’s senior management. Therefore the
assets of this business unit are classified as assets held for sale in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet as of
January 31, 2004. The assets held for sale related to this business divestiture are comprised principally of accounts
receivable of $3 million, inventory of $3 million and property, plant and equipment of $2 million. The operating
results related to this business unit were immaterial to the consolidated operating results of the Company. On April
6, 2004 the Company sold the business to the unit’s management and associated investors for $10 million in cash.

There is an additional $1 million classified as assets held for sale in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of January
31, 2004 related to the Hyannis, MA manufacturing facility as discussed in Note 5.

The amount classified as assets held for sale in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of January 31, 2003 related to
property located in Thomasville, GA, which was sold during fiscal 2004 at an amount approximately equal to the
asset’s carrying value.

Note 7. Inventories

The major components of inventories are as follows:

January 31, (In thousands) 2003 2004
Raw materials $ 33,950 $ 25,104
Work in process 2,509 915
Finished goods 151,476 182,562

$ 187,935 $ 208,581

Note 8.  Prepaid and Other

Prepaid and other consists of the following:

January 31, (In thousands) 2003 2004
Taxes $ 8,508 $ 15,194
Catalogs 588 7,928
Other 13,948 17,180

$ 23,044 $ 40,302
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ite9.  Accrued Expenses

ccrued expenses consist of the following:

nuary 31, (In thousands) 2003 2004
ompensation and certain benefits $ 23,124 § 21,146
eferred revenue 15,562 13,095
romotional expenses 19,903 23,307
‘axes, other than income 9,953 10,019

nterest payable 3,539 13,207
lestructuring charges 405 3,300
.nsurance payable 964 2,921
Other 7.503 10,400

3 80,953 § 97,395

Note 10. Bank Lines of Credit

As of January 31, 2004, the Company had a total of $15.0 million available under an uncommitted bank line of
credit with LaSalle Bank National Association, which matures in June 2004. Amounts outstanding under the line
of credit bear interest at short-term fixed rates. No amounts were outstanding under the uncommitted line of credit
at January 31, 2004. :

At January 31, 2004, the Company had a total of $10.0 million available under an uncommitted line of credit with
Bank of America to be used for letters of credit. At January 31, 2004, approximately $0.1 million of letters of
credit were outstanding under this credit line.

As of December 31, 2003, The Gies Group ("Gies") had available lines of credit of approximately $44.3 million of
which approximately $3.3 million was outstanding. The amounts outstanding under the lines of credit bear interest
at a weighted average rate of 3.1% at December 31, 2003. The lines of credit are renewed annually.

Colony Gift Corporation Limited (“Colony”) has a $21.4 million short-term revolving credit facility with Barclays
Bank, which matures in June 2004. As of December 31, 2003, Colony had borrowings under the credit facility of
approximately $8.1 million, at a weighted average interest rate of 4.6%.

As of December 31, 2003, Kaemingk had available lines of credit of approximately $34.6 million maturing in

November 2004. The lines of credit are collateralized by certain real estate and equipment owned by Kaemingk.
At December 31, 2003, approximately $2.2 million was outstanding at a weighted average interest rate of 2.75%.
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Long-term debt consists of the following:

January 31, (In thousands) 2003 2004

7.54% Senior Notes $ 10,714 % 7,143
7.90% Senior Notes 149,267 149,358

5.50% Senior Notes - 99,792

Other 9,135 23,972
169,116 280,265

Less current maturities (4,037) (4,522)°

$ 165,079 § 275,743 .

In July 1995, the Company privately placed $25.0 million aggregate principal amount of 7.54% Senior Notes d
2005. As of January 31, 2004, $7.1 million of principal remained outstanding. Such senior notes contain, amo
other provisions, requirements for maintaining certain financial ratios and net worth. At January 31, 2004, t
Company was in compliance with such provisions. Payment on the notes commenced in June 1999 and annu.
installments of principal and interest are required to be paid through June 2005.

In May 1999, the Company filed a shelf registration statement for issuance of up to $250.0 million in de
securities with the Securities and Exchange Commission. On September 24, 1999, the Company issued $150.
million of 7.90% Senior Notes due October 1, 2009 at a discount of approximately $1.4 million, which is bein
amortized over the life of the notes. Such notes contain, among other provisions, restrictions on liens on principa
property or stock issued to collateralize debt. At January 31, 2004, the Company was in compliance with suc
provisions. Interest is payable semi-annually on April 1 and October 1. On October 20, 2003, the Company issued
$100.0 million, 5.50% Senior Notes due on November 1, 2013 at a discount of approximately $0.2 million, which
is being amortized over the life of the notes. Such notes contain provisions and restrictions similar to those in the
7.90% Senior Notes. At January 31, 2004, the Company was in compliance with such covenants. Interest on the
notes will accrue from October 23, 2003 and will be payable semiannually in arrears on May 1 and November 1 of
each year, commencing May 1, 2004. The notes may be redeemed in whole or in part at any time at a specified
redemption price. The proceeds of the debt issuance will be used for general corporate purposes, which may
include repayment of certain debt.

The Company has a $200 million unsecured revolving credit facility, which matures on August 5, 2005 (the “Credit
Facility”). The Company has the ability to increase the Credit Facility, under certain circumstances, by an
additional $50 million. The Credit Facility may be used for general corporate purposes, which includes funding for
strategic acquisitions and seasonal working capital needs. The Credit Facility contains, among other provisions,
requirements for maintaining certain financial ratios including, among others, a minimum level of net worth and a
maximum level of leverage. The Credit Facility also imposes limitations on, among other things, certain payments,
the imposition of liens on our assets, indebtedness that may be incurred by our subsidiaries, investments we may
make and sales of our assets. At January 31, 2004, the Company was in compliance with such covenants.
Amounts outstanding under the Credit Facility bear interest, at the Company’s option, at JPMorgan Chase Bank’s
prime rate (4.0% at January 31, 2004) or at the Eurocurrency rate plus a credit spread ranging from 0.525% to
1.5%, calculated on the basis of a combination of the Company’s senior unsecured long-term debt rating and the
Company’s usage of the Credit Facility. On January 31, 2004, $3.2 million letters of credit were outstanding under
the Credit Facility.

At January 31, 2004, Miles Kimball had approximately $10.4 million of long-term debt outstanding under a real
estate mortgage note payable to John Hancock Life Insurance Company, which matures June 1, 2020. Under the
terms of the note, payments of principal and interest are required monthly at a fixed interest rate of 7.89%.

At December 31, 2003, Kaemingk had approximately $8.6 million of long-term debt outstanding under six loans

with ING Bank N.V. at a weighted average interest rate of 5.8%. The bank loans have maturity dates ranging from
2005 through 2020. The loans are collateralized by certain real estate and equipment owned by Kaemingk.
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ie11.  Long-Term Debt (continued)

January 31, 2004, CBK had $4.6 million of long-term debt outstanding under an Industrial Revenue Bond
RB™), which matures on January 1, 2025. The bond is backed by an irrevocable letter of credit issued by La
lle Bank National Association. The loan is collateralized by certain of CBK’s assets. The amount outstanding
der the IRB bears interest at short-term floating rates, which equaled a weighted average interest rate of 1.2% at

iuary 31, 2004.

aturities under debt obligations for the fiscal years ending January 31 are as follows (In thousands):

105 $ 4,522

106 4,468

07 782

J08 806

009 848

‘hereafter : 268,839
$ 280,265

['he estimated fair value of the Company’s $280.3 million and $169.1 million total long-term debt (including
current portion) at January 31, 2004 and 2003 was approximately $290.4 million and $191.6 million, respectively.
The fair value is determined by quoted market prices, where available, and from analyses performed by investment

bankers using current interest rates considering credit ratings and the remaining terms to maturity.
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Note 12. Employee Benefit Plans

Substantially all employees of Miles Kimball are covered by the Miles Kimball Company Retirement Plan
Plan). This non-contributory, defined benefit retirement plan provides benefits based on years of service
employee compensation for specified periods. When the Company acquired Miles Kimball on April 1, 20
decision was made to cease the accrual of benefits for all Plan participants, except to the extent that a be
‘accrual is required to comply with Section 416 of the Internal Revenue Code. The Plan was frozen effective
31, 2003. All vested benefits that have been accrued as of May 31, 2003 will continue to be held for particip
under the terms of the Plan.

The following provides a reconciliation of the benefit obligation, plan assets and funded status of the Plan:

(In thousands)

Benefit Obligation

Benefit Obligation - April 1, 2003 $
Interest cost

Actuarial loss

Benefits paid

Benefit obligation - January 31, 2004 $

Fair Value of Plan Assets

Assets - April 1, 2003 $
Actual return on plan assets

Employer contributions

Benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets - January 31, 2004 $
Funded Status of Plan

Projected benefit obligation in excess of plan assets $
Unrecognized actuarial gain

Accrued benefit cost recognized in the balance sheet $

Net periodic pension cost consisted of the following for the period April 1, 2003 through January 31, 2004:

Net Periodic Pension Cost

Interest cost $
Expected return on plan assets
Recognized net actuarial loss $

The following weighted average assumptions were used to determine the benefit obligation and net periodic pension
cost of the Plan:

Assumptions

Discount rate 5.00%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 2.50%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 8.00%

The Plan’s assets at January 31, 2004 consist of 71.5% equity securities, 26.8% fixed income securities and 1.7%
of cash equivalents.
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ite 12. Employee Benefit Plans (continued)

1 Company has defined contribution employee benefit plans in both the United States and certain of its foreign
cations, covering substantially all eligible non-union employees. Contributions to all such plans are principally at
e Company’s discretion except for the Section 401(k) Company matching contributions, which became
ystem, which provides retirement benefits to certain of its employees. The Company has a supplemental pension
cnefit agreement with one of its key corporate executives. Benefits pursuant to the agreement will be provided by
purchased annuity insurance policy. Total expense related to all defined contribution plans for the years ended
anuary 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004 was $3.8 million, $5.0 million and $6.0 million, respectively.

Note 13.  Commitments and Contingencies

I'ne Company utilizes operating leases for a portion of its facilities and equipment. Generally, the leases provide
that the Company pay real estate taxes, maintenance, insurance and other occupancy expenses applicable to leased
premises. Certain leases provide for renewal for various periods at stipulated rates.

The minimum future rental commitments under operating leases are as follows (In thousands).

For the years ending January 31,

2005 3 18,421
2006 14,392
2007 11,427
2008 7,255
2009 4,287
Thereafter 9,830

Total minimum payments required $ 65,612

Rent expense for the years ended January 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004 was $21.6 million, $26.0 million and $21.2
million, respectively.

The Company leases certain office and warehouse space used in its businesses in the Wholesale Creative
Expressions segment from related parties. Under the terms of the leases, the Company is responsible for all real
estate taxes, maintenance and insurance costs. The lease rates were determined based on market rates for
comparable property at the time of entering into the contract. At January 31, 2004 the total future lease
commitments under the related party leases were approximately $3.2 million and the leases expire on various dates
through fiscal 2008.

The Company has contingent liabilities that have arisen in the ordinary course of its business, including pending
litigation. The Company believes the outcome of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on its
consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

On June 2, 2003, the parties agreed in open court to settle and resolve all matters involving or in any way relating
to the previously reported legal proceedings by and between the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Endar
Corp., on the one hand, and Ennio Racinelli, Darlene Racinelli and others, on the other hand, by means of a written
settlement and release agreement, without any payment by any party. On August 25, 2003, the case was dismissed
by the Riverside Superior Court.

The Company has entered into an employment agreement with its Chairman and CEO, Mr. Robert Goergen, dated
as of August 1, 2000, as amended by Amendment No. 1 dated as of June 15, 2002 and Amendment No. 2 dated as
of March 31, 2004 (sometimes herein referred to as “agreement” or “employment agreement”). Pursuant to the
employment agreement, upon the death of both Mr. Goergen and his spouse, the Company will, upon the demand
of the estate of either Mr. Goergen or his spouse, buy back from such estate up to 7,500,000 shares of Company
Common Stock within 90 days of such demand at the fair market value thereof (as defined in the employment
agreement) or register the public offer and sale by such estate of up to 7,500,000 shares of Company Common
Stock.

65

e




BLYTH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 13.  Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

In connection with the employment agreement, the Company and Mr. Goergen entered into a registration ri
agreement relating to the registration of up to 7,500,000 shares of Company Common Stock as described abov
the event that the Company chooses not to purchase such shares upon the death of both Mr. Goergen and
spouse. There is no specified effective date or stock price requirement in the agreements. The Company will
be obligated to purchase or register such shares, notwithstanding the death of both Mr. Goergen and his spouse
the survivor’s estate, or his or her beneficiaries, as the case may be, can then sell all of the shares of the Comp
Common Stock owned by them without registration.

The Company engaged independent consultants to perform a valuation to determine the fair value of the potent
obligation under the share buy back provision in Mr. Goergen’s employment agreement. The results of t
valuation indicated that the current value of the buy back provision was deminimus and therefore no liability h
been recorded.

Note 14. 401(k) and Profit Sharing Plan

During the third quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company became aware of an issue involving its 401(k) and pro
sharing plan. This issue arose effective April 1, 2002 when the Company amended the plan to allow participants t
direct voluntary contributions to be invested in the Company’s common stock, and to permit other investments i
the plan to be transferred into the Company’s common stock. These amendments may have caused the continue
operation of the plan since April 1, 2002 to be deemed to be an offering of securities that should have bee
registered under the Securities Act of 1933 (the “1933 Act”). If interests should have been registered, the failur
of the Company to register interests in the plan may entitle participants to remedies under the 1933 Act, including
rescission or damages. The Company ceased allowing participants to make new investments in Company common
stock effective October 17, 2003. The Company has elected to adopt the so-called “restorative” approach with
respect to persons who invested in the Plan on or after April 1, 2002 and on or before October 17, 2003, the last
day on which participants in the Plan could make investments in the Company Stock Fund. Under the restorative
approach the Company will make additional contributions to the Plan accounts of 179 participants in the total
amount of approximately $3,000. In the case of a limited number of former participants, payments in the amount of
contributions that were due to be made to such participants’ Plan accounts will be mailed directly to such former
participants.

Note 15. Guarantees

From time to time, the Company is party to agreements under which it may be obligated to indemnify a third party
with respect to certain matters. Typically, these obligations arise as a result of leases entered into by the
subsidiaries, under which Blyth agrees to indemnify a third party against losses arising from a breach of
representations related to lease obligations assumed. In these circumstances, payment by Blyth is conditioned on
the other party making a claim pursuant to the procedures specified in the lease. These procedures generally allow
Blyth to challenge the other party’s claims. In addition, Blyth’s obligations under these agreements may be limited
in terms of time and amount. Historically, payments made by Blyth under these arrangements have not had a
material effect on the business, financial condition or results of operations. Blyth believes that if it were to incur a
loss in any of these matters, such loss would not have a material effect on the Company’s business, financial
condition or results of operations. The maximum potential amount of future payments due under these lease
arrangements, approximate $22.5 million. These amounts are included as part of the Company’s consolidated lease
commitments as reported in Note 13, Commitments and Contingencies.

66



BLYTH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ote 16. Income Taxes

‘arnings before provision for income taxes:

"ear ended January 31, (In thousands) 2002 2003 2004
United States $ 90,609 $ 118,912 % 79,809
Foreign 17,680 23,645 57,084

$ 108,289 3 142,557  § 136,893

Income tax expense consists of the following:

Year ended January 31, (In thousands) 2002 2003 2004
Current income tax expense:
Federal b 33,475 $ 36,319 § 28,943
State 4,298 5,739 4,710
Foreign 5,150 6,263 17,308
42,923 48,321 50,961
Deferred income tax expense (benefit):
Federal (2,000) 4,390 (565)
State (300) 775 (160)
Foreign (340) (454) 141
(2,640) 4,711 (584)
$ 40,283 $ 53,032 § 50,377 |

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

January 31, (In thousands) 2003 2004
Deferred tax assets: '
Accrued expenses and other ‘ , $ 114 % 410
Allowance for doubtful receivables 1,967 1,473
Employee benefit plans 1,173 1,052
Inventory reserves 7,156 6,364
Net operating loss and other tax credit carryforwards 5,782 5,756
Restructuring reserves 2,592 3,871
Valuation allowance (1,017 (2,673)
17,767 16,253
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and amortization ~(24,280) (35,835)
Net deferred tax liability 3 (6,513) § (19,582)
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Note 16.  Income Taxes (continued)

The valuation allowance relates to certain non-US tax loss carryforwards, for which the Company believes, du
various limitations in these foreign jurisdictions, it is more likely than not that such benefits will not be reali
and to a US loss carryforward where the benefit is limited by the US tax regulations. The increase in the valuat
allowance from the prior year is due principally to the net operating loss received as part of a recent US acquisiti
At January 31, 2004, the Company has a $16.4 million net operating loss carryforward, which consists
approximately $7.9 million of federal net operating loss that expires on January 31, 2023 and foreign net operati
losses of $8.5 million, which have an indefinite expiration.

As of January 31, 2004, undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries considered permanently invested for whi
deferred income taxes have not been provided were approximately $68.9 million.

A reconciliation of the provision for income taxes to the amount computed at the federal statutory rate is
follows:

Year ended January 31, (In thousands) 2002 2003 2004
Tax provision at statutory rate $ 37,901 § 49,895 % 47913
Tax effect of:

State income taxes, net of federal benefit 2,793 4234 2,958

Foreign rate differential (1,378) (2,667) (2,530)
Other, net 967 1,570 2,036
$ 40,283 § 53,032 § 50,377

Note 17.  Stock Based Compensation
At January 31, 2004, the Company had three stock-based compensation plans, which are described below.

The Company’s Amended and Restated 1994 Employee Stock Option Plan (the “Employee Option Plan™), provides
for the grant to officers and employees of both “incentive stock options” and stock options that are non-qualified
for Federal income tax purposes. The total number of shares of common stock for which options may be granted
pursuant to the Employee Option Plan shall not exceed the sum of 2,880,000 shares plus an additional number of
shares, which were to be added on February 1, 2001, and each anniversary thereof during the term of Employee
Option Plan, equal to the lesser of (x) 0.75% of the total outstanding shares of common stock of the Company on
the applicable anniversary date and (y) 600,000 shares up to a maximum of 5,280,000 shares.

The exercise price of incentive stock options granted under the Employee Option Plan may not be less than 100%
of the fair market value of the common stock at the time of grant, and the term of any option may not exceed 10
years. Options generally become exercisable over a five-year period. With respect to any employee who owns
stock representing more than 10% of the voting power of the outstanding capital stock of the Company, the
exercise price of any incentive stock option may not be less than 110% of the fair market value of such shares at
the time of grant, and the term of such option may not exceed five years. On April 1, 2003, the Board of Directors
of the Company unanimously approved an amendment to the Employee Option Plan providing that no awards will
be made under such plan after May 31, 2003.

The Company has also adopted the Amended and Restated 1994 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors
(the “Non-Employee Director Plan”). A total of 270,000 shares of common stock may be issued through the
exercise of options granted pursuant to the Non-Employee Director Plan. No option may be granted under the
Non-Employee Director Plan after May 31, 2003.
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ite 17. Stock Based Compensation (continued)

stions granted pursuant to the Non-Employee Director Plan become exercisable as follows: each Initial Grant
sts over a two year period at the rate of 50% on each anniversary of the date of grant and each Annual Grant
:sts in full on the sooner of (x) the first anniversary of the date of the grant or (y) the date of the next Annual
eeting of shareholders of Blyth. On April 1, 2003, the Board of Directors of the Company unanimously approved
1 amendment to the Non-Employee Director Plan providing that no awards will be made under such plan after
iay 31, 2003.

m April 1, 2003, the Board of Directors of the Company unanimously approved the adoption of the 2003 Long-
‘erm Incentive Plan (the “2003 Plan™) and the stockholders approved the 2003 Plan on June 4, 2003. The 2003
'lan provides for grants of incentive and nonqualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock,
erformance shares, performance units, dividend equivalents and other stock unit awards to officers and
‘mployees. The 2003 Plan also provides for grants of nonqualified stock options to directors of the Company who
wre not, and who have not been during the immediately preceding 12-month period officers or employees of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

Currently, each non-employee director who is elected to office for the first time is, upon such date, automatically
granted an option to acquire 10,000 shares of common stock (“Initial Grant™). Each non-employee director who is
in office with at least six months of service receives, on the date of the Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Blyth
beginning in June 2003 and thereafter, an option to acquire 5,000 shares of common stock (“Annual Grant). The
price of shares that may be purchased upon exercise of an option is the fair market value of the common stock on
the date of grant.

On March 31, 2004, the Board of Directors of the Company unanimously approved Amendment No. 1 to the 2003
Plan. If the stockholders approve Amendment No. 1 to the 2003 Plan at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders on
June 24, 2004 (the “2004 Annual Meeting”), effective as of such approval, non-employee directors will no longer
receive formulaic option grants. Instead, annual awards will be determined by the Company’s full Board of
Directors, subject to an annual limit of awards of 5,000 shares of Common Stock or share equivalents for new non-
employee directors and 2,500 shares of Common Stock or share equivalents for continuing non-employee directors.
At the 2004 Annual Meeting, if the stockholders approve Amendment No. 1 to the Long-Term Incentive Plan, each
non-employee director with at least six months service will be granted 1,500 restricted stock units vesting in two
equal installments beginning on the first anniversary of the date of grant instead of the Annual Grant.

Transactions involving stock options are summarized as follows:

Weighted

"Option Average

Shares Exercise Price

Outstanding at January 31, 2001 1,833,450 $ 2372
Options granted 504,000 22.71
Options exercised (78,200) 7.49
Options cancelled (349,199) 31.85
Outstanding at January 31, 2002 1,910,051 22.63
Options granted 538,500 27.30
Options exercised (193,906) 17.38
Options cancelled (178,800) 25.05
Outstanding at January 31, 2003 2,075,845 24.87
Options granted 388,000 26.31
Options exercised (253,820) 22.81
Options cancelled (130,700) 25.77
Qutstanding at January 31, 2004 2,079,325 $ 2534

At January 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, options to purchase 764,351, 806,677 and 920,724 shares, respectively, were

exercisable.
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Options outstanding and exercisable as of January 31, 2004, by price range:

Qutstanding Exercisable

‘ Weighted Average \

Range of Remaining Weighted Average Weighted Aver

Exercise Price Shares Contractual Life Exercise Price Shares Exercise Pr

$ 3.60 -14.40 68,500 084 $ 8.56 68,500 $

14.40 - 25.20 657,800 6.09 22.93 326,800
25.20 -36.00 1,353,025 6.95 27.30 525,424
2,079,325 920,724

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the years ended January 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004
$10.53, $11.29 and $9.68, respectively.

Certain members of the Company’s management have been granted phantom stock appreciation rights (“SARS’
These SARs vest in equal installments as of the end of each fiscal year and are subject to a term as specified
each individual agreement. Upon exercise of the SARs, the participant is entitled to receive a payout amount
defined in the agreement. At the expiration of the term, any outstanding portion of vested SARs is deemed to
exercised, and the participant is entitled to a payout. The Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets reflect
liability for these SARSs in the amount of $0.5 million and $0.2 million at January 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Note 18.  Segment Information

Blyth is a global competitor in the gift and decorative accessories market, which the Company calls the hom
expressions industry. Within this category, the Company reports its financial results in five segments — the Direc
Selling segment, the Wholesale Home Fragrance segment, the Wholesale Creative Expressions segment, th
Catalog & Internet segment, and the All Other segment. Miles Kimball, acquired in April 2003 and Walter Drake
acquired in December 2003, are included in the Catalog & Internet segment. Kaemingk, acquired in June 2003, is
included in the Wholesale Home Fragrance segment. Prior to January 31, 2004, the Company reported its financial
results in two reporting segments, the Candles & Home Fragrance segment and the Creative Expressions segment.
The Company has reevaluated its operating segments based on the application of FASB Statement No. 131,
“Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,” and determined that the appropriate
number of reportable segments should have been five in fiscal 2004 and four in fiscal 2003 and 2002 (the increase
in segments in fiscal 2004 was due to the acquisitions that were consummated in fiscal 2004). The Company’s
financial statement footnotes have been restated to reflect the revised segments. The Company’s reportable and
operating segments are based on financial information regularly evaluated by the chief operating decision maker in
determining resource allocation and assessing performance. Revenues are not reported by product or group of
similar products, as it is impractical to do so. The Company has operations outside of the United States and sells
products in the Direct Selling and Wholesale Home Fragrance segments worldwide. The majority of sales in the
Wholesale Creative Expressions, Catalog & Internet and All Other segments are domestically based.

Within the Direct Selling segment, the Company designs, manufactures and markets an extensive line of products
including scented candles, fragranced bath gels and body lotions and other fragranced products. It also designs and
markets a broad range of related candle accessories. These products are sold direct to the consumer under the
PartyLite® brand in North America, Europe and Australia through a network of more than 56,000 independent
sales consultants.
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’ithin the Wholesale Home Fragrance segment, the Company designs, manufactures and markets an extensive line
f products including scented candles, potpourri and other fragranced products. It also designs and markets a wide
mge of related candle accessories. In addition, within its Kaemingk business unit, the Company designs and
1arkets seasonal decorations to independent and specialty retailers. Products in this segment are sold worldwide to
stailers in the premium and specialty wholesale channels under the Ambria®, Carolina®, Colonial™', Colonial
‘andle of Cape Cod®, Colonial at HOME®, Gies®', Kaemingk®', Kate’s™ and Liljeholmens® brands and in the
nass retail channel under the Ambria®, FilterMate®, Florasense® and Gies®' brands.

Within the Wholesale Creative Expressions segment, the Company designs, sources and markets a broad range of
nome décor products under the CBK® brand, seasonal decorations under the Holiday365™, JMC Impact™ and
Seasons of Cannon Falls™ brands, and, until Jeanmarie was sold in April 2004, decorative gift bags under the
Jeanmarie® brand. These products are sold primarily in North America.

Within the Catalog & Internet segment, the Company designs, sources and markets a broad range of household
convenience items, premium photo albums, frames, holiday cards and gifts under the Exposures®, Miles Kimball®
and Walter Drake® brands. These products are sold primarily in North America.

Within the All Other segment, the Company designs, manufactures or sources and markets a variety of chafing
fuel, candles and tabletop lighting products to the Away From Home or foodservice trade under the brand names

Ambria®, HandyFuel® and Sterno®. These products are sold primarily in North America.

Earnings in all segments represent net sales less operating expenses directly related to the business segments and
. corporate expenses allocated to the business segments. Other income (expense) includes interest expense, interest
income and equity in earnings of investees, which are not allocated to the business segments. Identifiable assets for
each segment consist of assets used directly in its operations and intangible assets, if any, resulting from purchase
business combinations. Unallocated Corporate within the identifiable assets include corporate cash and cash
equivalents, deferred bond costs and other long-term investments, which are not allocated to the business segments.

The geographic area data includes net trade sales based on product shipment destination and long-lived assets
(which consists of fixed assets, goodwill and long-term investments) based on physical location.

: Colonial, Gies and Kaemingk are registered and sold only outside the United States.
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Operating Segment Information

Year ended January 31, (In thousands)

2002 2003 2004
Net Sales. Restated (Note 2) Restated (Note 2)
Direct Selling $ 666,036 $ 717,442 $ 764,527
Wholesale Home Fragrance 322,310 310,171 373,527
Wholesale Creative Expressions ‘ 135,968 203,980 203,906
Catalog & Internet - - 110,728
All Other 54,457 56,990 52,885
Total $ 1,178,771 $ 1,288,583 $ 1,505,573
Earnings
Direct Sefling & $ 139,147 $ 149,657 $ 142,296
Wholesale Home Fragrance ("®® (35,093) (24,851) (10,702)
Wholesale Creative Expressions OB 15,674 25,995 17,179
Catalog & Internet - - 5,199
All Other 762 4,716 (895)
120,490 155,517 153,077
Other income (expense) (12,201) (12,960) (16,184)
Earnings before income taxes
and cumulative effect of accounting change $ 108,289 3 142,557 $ 136,893
Identifiable Assets
Direct Selling 3 222,794 $ 246,607 $ 273,900
Wholesale Home Fragrance 298,788 238,829 299,882
Wholesale Creative Expressions 97,584 174,827 165,699
Catalog & Internet - - 160,380
All Other 69,435 61,816 60,552
Unallocated Corporate 116,180 138,005 167,550
Total $ 804,781 3 860,084 $ 1,127,963
Capital Expenditures ‘
Direct Selling 3 6,016 $ 5,321 $ 5,333
Wholesale Home Fragrance 1,758 4,694 7,492
Wholesale Creative Expressions 940 2,140 5,987
Catalog & Internet - - 1,399
All Other 1,087 575 618
Unallocated Corporate 2,100 1,592 1,134
Total $ 11,901 $ 14,322 $ 21,963
Depreciation and Amortization
Direct Selling $ 12,260 $ 12,386 $ 12,174
Wholesale Home Fragrance 16,035 12,888 15,488
Wholesale Creative Expressions 3,738 2,165 2,617
Catalog & Internet - - 2,858
All Other 2,968 1,820 1,785
Unallocated Corporate 1,245 953 1,032
Total $ 36,246 3 30,212 $ 35,954
GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION
Net Sales
United States b 866,916 $ 943,009 $ 1,026,275
Germany 115,967 134,983 177,443
Other International 195,888 210,591 301,855
Total $ 1,178,771 $ 1,288,583 $ 1,505,573
Long Lived Assets
United States $ 258,127 $ 288,617 $ 391,517
International 72,426 77,498 118,183
Total : $ 330,553 3 366,115 3 509,700

(1) 2002 Wholesale Home Fragrance segment includes restructuring and impairment charges of approximately $12.6 million and inventory revaluation
charges of $11.3 million. Direct Selling segment includes restructuring and impairment charges of $0.8 million. Wholesale Creative Expressions
segment includes restructuring and impairment charges of $0.4 million and the All Other segment includes restructuring and impairment charges of
80.3 million. (See Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

(2) 2003 Wholesale Home Fragrance segment includes an impairment charge of approximately $2.6 million as a result of placing Wax Lyrical into
administrative receivership (See Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

(3) 2004 earnings include $23.8 million of restructuring and impairment charges of which 316.7 million relates to the Wholesale Home Fragrance
segment, $6.7 million relates to the Direct Selling segment and 80.4 million relates to the Wholesale Creative Expressions segment (See Note 5 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements).
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ate 19. Stock Repurchase Plan

1ie Company’s Board of Directors has authorized the Company to repurchase up to 6,000,000 shares of common
ock under the share repurchase program. The Company repurchases shares to offset grants of restricted stock and
iares issued upon exercise of stock options and to decrease shares outstanding. During fiscal 2004, a total of
01,000 shares were repurchased for a total cost of approximately $18.8 million. As of January 31, 2004, the
.ompany had cumulatively purchased on the open market 4,345,100 common shares for a total cost of
pproximately $105.4 million. The acquired shares are held as common stock in treasury at cost.

Yote 20.  Earnings Per Share

I'he following table presents the components of basic and diluted net earnings per common share:

2002 2003 2004
Year ended January 31, (In thousands) Restated (Note 2)
Net earnings $ 68,006 $ 57,772 % 86,351
Weighted average number of common
shares outstanding:
Basic 47,056 46,256 45,771
Dilutive effective of stock options and restricted shares 149 259 256
Weighted average number of common
shares outstanding:
Diluted 47,205 46,515 46,027

As of January 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, options to purchase 236,529, 37,395 and 31,954 shares of common stock,
respectively, are not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because the effect would be

antidilutive.

Note 21. Fire Loss

In July 2003, the Company’s manufacturing facility located in Monterrey, Mexico was destroyed by fire. Products
manufactured at this leased facility were primarily for the North American mass market. Customer service
disruptions were minimal as other Company facilities and third party suppliers met the production requirements
and are expected to meet production requirements for the foreseeable future. The Company has decided not to
rebuild the Monterrey facility. The loss of fixed assets and inventory totaled approximately $8.0 million. The
Company incurred additional costs of $1.9 million through Januvary 31, 2004, primarily for the additional
production costs of manufacturing product at different facilities. Some of these costs remain in ending inventory
at January 31, 2004. The Company is insured for losses related to this fire and has received $7.6 million in

insurance proceeds as of February 6, 2004.
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Note 22.  Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

A summary of selected quarterly information for the years ended January 31 is as follows:

2003 Quarter Ended
(In thousands, except per share data)

As Previously

Reported As Restated ¥
April 30 April 30 July31  October31 Janu
Net sales $ 277,896 $ 277,896 $ 268,021 $§ 362,181 8 3
Gross profit 145,008 145,008 137,332 172,487 1
Earnings before cumulative effect of
accounting change 17,304 17,304 18,806 30,474
Cumulative effect of accounting change (4,515) (31,753) - -
Net earnings $ 12,789 § (14,449) § 18,806 $ 30,474 $
Basic earnings per share: ¢ ©)
Before cumulative effect of accounting change $ 037 § 037 § 041 % 0.66 $
Cumulative effect of accounting change (0.10) (0.69) - -
" 028 $ 032) $ 041 $ 0.66 $
Diluted earnings per share: > @
Before cumulative effect of accounting change 037 § 037 § 040 § 0658
Cumulative effect of accounting change (0.10) ~ (0.68) - -
028 $ (031) $ 0.40 $ 0.65 $
2004 Quarter Ended
(In thousands, except per share data)
April 30 July 31 QOctober 31 January 31
Net sales $ 311,991 § 275,268 $ 431,901 $ 486,413
Gross profit 161,396 134,552 196,938 230,789
Net earnings 19,627 11,246 34,774 20,704
Net earnings per common and
common equivalent share:
Basic b 043 $ 025 % 0.76 $ 0.45
Diluted 0.42 0.24 0.76 0.45

@ The sum of per share amounts for the quarters does not necessarily equal that reported for the year because the computations

are made independently.

@ The Company has restated its fiscal 2003 financial statements to increase the cumulative effect of accounting change for the adoption
of SFAS 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets." See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
! Net earnings per share amounts for the three months ended April 30, 2002 do not foot due 1o rounding.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure

(a) Previous independent accountants

On March 16, 2004, the Board of Directors of the Company, acting upon the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, dismissed PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP ("PwC")
as the independent accountants of the Company, effective as of April 26, 2004, the date of its
report on the financial statements of the Company as of January 31, 2004 and for the year
then ended, which financial statements are included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

PwC's reports on the financial statements of the Company for the fiscal years ended
January 31, 2003 and 2004 did not contain any adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion and
were not qualified or modified as to uncertainty, audit scope or accounting principle.

In connection with its audits of the financial statements of the Company for the two
most recent fiscal years ended January 31, 2004, and through April 30, 2004, there were no
disagreements with PwC on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial
statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure, which disagreements, if not resolved to
PwC’s satisfaction, would have caused PwC to make reference thereto in their reports on the
Company’s financial statements for such fiscal years, except as follows: In connection with
its audit of the financial statements of the Company as of January 31, 2004 and for the year
then ended, PwC advised the Company in early April, 2004, that it believed that the
Company’s then current designation of two reporting segments did not comply with the
requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 131 (“Disclosures about
Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information™), a position with which the Company
did not agree. The Audit Committee has discussed the subject of the designation of operating
segments with PwC. The Company has authorized PwC to respond fully to the inquiries of
Deloitte & Touche LLP, the Company’s independent accountants for the fiscal year ending
January 31, 2005, concerning this disagreement.

In response to PwC’s advice that it believed that the Company’s designation of two
reporting segments did not comply with the requirements of SFAS 131, the Company
reevaluated its reporting segments as at the end of each of its fiscal years ended January 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002. As a result of such reevaluation, the Company determined to report its
financial results in five reporting segments in fiscal 2004, and four reporting segments in
fiscal 2003 and fiscal 2002. This revision of segments had the related effect of requiring
changes in the Company’s reporting units for purposes of goodwill impairment reviews under
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 (“Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets”), retroactive to the February 1, 2002 adoption date of SFAS 142. This resulted in the
need to perform impairment reviews of several additional reporting units as of February 1,
2002, and each subsequent year-end balance sheet date thereafter. These impairment reviews
have indicated the need to record additional impairment charges as of the February 1, 2002
adoption of SFAS 142, specifically to write off $20.9 million in goodwill associated with the
1999 acquisition of the Gies Group and $6.3 million in goodwill associated with the 1999
acquisition of the Colony Group. Both of these businesses are components of the Wholesale

75




have been restated to reflect the recording of these $27.2 million in goodwill impairment
charges as part of the cumulative effect of adopting SFAS 142 as of February 1, 2002.

During each of the two years in the period ended January 31, 2004, and through April
30, 2004, there were no reportable events (as defined in Regulation S-K Item 304(a)(1)(v)),
except for the following event: On April 21, 2004, PwC advised the Company that it had
identified an internal control issue which PwC considered to be a material weakness in that
changes in circumstances, internal reporting and management structures appeared not to have
been properly evaluated by management or considered in connection with ongoing
compliance with SFAS 131 and SFAS 142 guidance. PwC recommended that the Company
should (A) have a process in place to evaluate changes in management structure and reporting
to the chief operating decision maker that would effect segment determination, (B) strengthen
procedures to monitor all changes in operations that impact accounting and reporting matters
and (C) ensure that it has sufficient staffing in its financial reporting function, with
appropriate technical qualifications and tasked with ensuring ongoing compliance with
relevant accounting and financial reporting requirements.

(c) New independent accountants

On March 16, 2004, the Board of Directors of the Company, acting upon the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, appointed Deloitte & Touche LLP as the
independent accountants of the Company for the fiscal year ending January 31, 2005.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures.

The Company’s management, with the participation of its principal executive officer
and its principal financial officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act”) Rules 13a-15(e)
or 15d-15(e)) as of the end of the period covered by this report as required by paragraph (b)
of Exchange Act Rules 13a-15 or 15d-15. Based upon this evaluation, the Company’s
principal executive officer and its principal financial officer have concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures are effective as of the end of the period covered by this
report. Nonetheless, in light of PwC’s advice to the Company that it has identified an
internal control issue which PwC considers to be a material weakness, as described in Item
9(a) above, the Company, and its principal executive officer and its principal financial
officer, recognize that the Company may need to make improvements in its internal controls,
particularly insofar as they relate to ongoing compliance with SFAS 131 and SFAS 142
guidance, having in mind the recommendations that have been made by PwC, as described in
Item 9(a) above. However, the Company and its principal executive officer and its principal
financial officer have not yet determined what action, if any, the Company should take in
response to PwC’s recommendations.

(b) Changes in internal control over financial reporting.
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There was no change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
identified in connection with the evaluation required by paragraph (d) of Exchange Act Rules
13a-15 or 15d-15 that occurred during the fourth fiscal quarter of fiscal year 2004 that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.

PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by Items 10 through 14 is incorporated herein by reference to
the Company’s Definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the Commission within 120 days
after January 31, 2004.

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K

(a)(1). Financial Statements

The following consolidated financial statements are contained on the indicated pages of
this report:

Page No.

Report of Independent AUditors.......c.ccovvevuineecnniinceesireennieeaee e eneaens 39
Statements:

Consolidated Balance Sheets (Restated) ........ccceeveeveeivreeviiiencenniennen, 40

Consolidated Statements of Earnings (Restated) .........ccccvvvevevreeennen. 41

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity (Restated) ............. 42

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Restated)............cceccvineenene 43

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Restated)...........ccc........ 44

(a)(2). Financial Statement Schedules
The following financial statement schedules are contained on the indicated pages of this
report:
Page No.

Report of Independent Auditors S-1
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Valuation and Qualifying Accounts = S-2

All other schedules are omitted because they are inapplicable or the requested information
is shown in the consolidated financial statements or related notes.

(2)(3). Exhibits

Exhibit No.

Description of Exhibit

3.1*
3.2%
4.1(a)

4.1(b)

4.1(c)

10.1

10.1(a)

10.1(b)

10.1(c)

10.1(d)

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant

Restated By-laws of the Registrant

Form of Indenture, dated as of May 20, 1999, between the Registrant and First
Union National Bank, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (Reg. No. 333-77721) filed
on May 4, 1999)

Form of First Supplemental Indenture dated as of September 29, 1999
between the Registrant and First Union National Bank, Trustee (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on September 28, 1999)

Form of Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of October 23, 2003
between the Registrant and Wachovia Bank, National Association, Trustee
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on October 22, 2003)

Note Purchase Agreement, dated July 7, 1995 (the "Note Purchase
Agreements"), relating to the 7.54% Senior Notes due June 30, 2005, among
Candle Corporation Worldwide, Inc., Candle Corporation of America, and
PartyLite Gifts, Inc., as Issuers, the Registrant, as guarantor, and the
Purchasers named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended July
31, 1995)

Fourth Amendment, dated as of October 17, 1997, to Note Purchase
Agreements (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended October 31, 1997)
Assumption Agreement, dated as of October 17, 1997, of Note Purchase
Agreements, among Candle Corporation Worldwide, Inc., Candle Corporation
of America, and PartyLite Gifts, Inc., as assignors, and the Registrant, as
assignee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended October 31, 1997)

Guaranty Agreement, dated as of October 17, 1997, by Candle Corporation
Worldwide, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended October 31, 1997)
Form of 7.54% Senior Notes due June 30, 2005 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal
quarter ended October 31, 1997)
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10.1(e)

10.2*

10.2(a)

10.2(b)

10.2(c)

10.3

10.3(a)

10.4*+
10.5+

Fifth Amendment, dated as of May 17, 1999, to Note Purchase Agreements
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(e) to the Registrant’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2000)

Standard Form Industrial Lease dated April 22, 1993, between Carol Point
Builders I General Partnership and PartyLite Gifts, Inc.

First Amendment, dated August 21, 1995, between ERI-CP, Inc., a Delaware
corporation, as successor to Carol Point Builders I General Partnership, and
PartyLite Gifts, Inc., to Standard Form Industrial Lease dated April 22, 1993,
between Carol Point Builders I General Partnership and PartyLite Gifts, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4(a) to the Registrant's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 1996)

Second Amendment, dated August 4, 2000, between Carol Point LLC, a
Massachusetts limited liability company, as successor landlord to ERI-CP
Inc., and PartyLite Gifts, Inc., to Standard Form Industrial Lease dated April
22, 1993, between Carol Point Builders I General Partnership and PartyLite
Gifts, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4(a) to the Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 1996)
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3(b) to the Registrant’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2002)

Third Amendment, dated February 28, 2001, between Carol Point LLC, a
Massachusetts limited liability company, as successor landlord to ERI-CP
Inc., and PartyLite Worldwide, Inc., as tenant, pursnant to Assignment and
Assumption Agreement, dated January 31, 2001, between PartyLite Gifts, Inc.
(assignor) and PartyLite Worldwide, Inc. (assignee), to Standard Form
Industrial Lease dated April 22, 1993, between Carol Point Builders 1 General
Partnership and PartyLite Gifts, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.4(a) to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended January 31, 1996) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3(c) to the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January
31, 2002)

Lease Agreement, dated June 25, 1997, between Carol Stream I Development
Company, as landlord, PartyLite Gifts, Inc., as tenant, and the Registrant, as
guarantor (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 1998)

First Amendment to Lease, dated February 1, 2001, between MP 437 Tower
CS, Inc. by RREEF Management Company, as landlord, as successor to Carol
Stream 1 Development Company, and PartyLite Worldwide, Inc., as tenant,
pursuant to Assignment and Assumption Agreement, dated January 31, 2001,
between PartyLite Gifts, Inc. (assignor) and PartyLite Worldwide, Inc.
(assignee) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4(a) to the Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2002)

Form of Indemnity Agreement between the Registrant and each of its directors
Blyth Industries, Inc. Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K as filed on December 21, 1999)
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10.6+

10.6(a)+

10.6(b)+**

10.7+

10.7(a)+**

10.8+

10.9+

10.9(a)+**

10.10+

10.11+

10.12+

Employment Agreement dated as of August 1, 2000 by and between the
Registrant and Robert B. Goergen (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10
to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended
October 31, 2000)

Amendment No. 1 dated as of June 15, 2002 to the Employment Agreement
dated as of August 1, 2000 by and between the Registrant and Robert B.
Goergen (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6(a) to the Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2003)
Amendment No. 2 dated as of March 31, 2004 to the Employment Agreement
dated as of August 1, 2000 by and between the Registrant and Robert B.
Goergen

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of August 1, 2000 by and between the
Registrant and Robert B. Goergen (incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to
the Employment Agreement filed as Exhibit 10.10 to Registrant’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2001)

Amendment No. 1 dated as of March 12, 2004 to the Registration Rights
Agreement dated as of August 1, 2000 by and between the Registrant and
Robert B. Goergen

Credit Agreement, dated as of August 5, 2002, among the Registrant, the
Banks listed therein, JPMorgan Chase Bank, as Administrative Agent, Bank
of America, N.A. and LaSalle Bank, National Association, as Co-Syndication
Agents and Fleet National Bank and Wachovia Bank, National Association, as
Co-Documentation Agents (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January
31,2003)

Amended and Restated 1994 Employee Stock Option Plan of the Registrant
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant's Report on Form 8-
K filed April 17, 2000) '
Amendment No. 1 to the Amended and Restated 1994 Employee Stock
Option Plan of the Registrant

Form of Non-transferable Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the
Amended and Restated 1994 Employee Stock Option Plan of the Registrant
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended July 31, 1996)

Form of Non-transferable Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the
Amended and Restated 1994 Employee Stock Option Plan of the Registrant
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended July 31, 1996)

Amended and Restated 1994 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors
of the Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant's
Report on Form 8-K filed April 19, 2002)

10.12(a)+** Amendment No. 1 to the Amended and Restated 1994 Stock Option Plan for

10.13*+

Non-Employee Directors of the Registrant
Form of Stock Option Agreement under the 1994 Stock Option Plan for Non-
Employee Directors of the Registrant
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10.14+ 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan of the Registrant (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Report on Form 8-K/A filed April 17,
2003)

10.14(a)+ Amendment No. 1 to the 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan of the Registrant
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Report on Form
8-K filed April 27, 2004)

16.** Letter re: Change in Certifying Accountant
21.%* List of Subsidiaries
23 %% Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent accountants

24, 1%* Power of Attorney

24 2% Certified Resolutions of the Board of Directors of the Registrant

31.1%* Section 302 Certification of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

31.2%%* Section 302 Certification of Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

32.1%* Certification of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2%* Certification of Vice President and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

* Included as an exhibit to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 33-
77458) and incorporated herein by reference.

**Filed herewith.

+ Management contract or compensatory plan required to be filed by Item 15(c) of this
report.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K

The folloWing reports on Form 8-K were filed or furnished during the fourth quarter of the
fiscal year ended January 31, 2004:

Current Report on Form 8§-K, furnished November 12, 2003, attaching the Company’s
presentation at the Wall Street Analyst Forum; management reiteration of full year earnings
per share guidance of in excess of $2.10 press release.

Current Report on Form 8-K, furnished December 5, 2003, attaching third quarter sales
and earnings press release.

Current Report on Form 8-K, filed January 15, 2004 regarding the temporary suspension of
trading under the Company’s employee benefit plans.

Current Report on Form 8-K, furnished January 30, 2004, attaching estimates of fourth
quarter and full year earnings per share; acquisition of Walter Drake press releases.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 193
the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

Date: April 30, 2004 BLYTH, INC.

By: /s/ Robert B. Goergen
Name: Robert B. Goergen
Title: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature

/s/ Robert B. Goergen

Robert B. Goergen

/s/ Robert H. Barghaus

Robert H. Barghaus

/s/ Roger A. Anderson

Roger A. Anderson

/s/ John W. Burkhart

John W. Burkhart

/s/ Pamela M. Goergen

Pamela M. Goergen

/s/ Neal I. Goldman

Neal 1. Goldman

/s/ Philip Greer

Philip Greer

/s/ Carol J. Hochman

Carol J. Hochman

/s/ Wilma H. Jordan

Wilma H. Jordan

/s/ John E. Preschlack

John E. Preschlack

/s/ Howard E. Rose

Howard E. Rose

Title

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer;
Director (Principal Executive Officer)

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

83

Date
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April 30, 2004

April 30, 2004

April 30, 2004

April 30, 2004

April 30, 2004

April 30, 2004

April 30, 2004

April 30, 2004
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April 30, 2004
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Report of Independent Auditors on
Financial Statement Schedule

To the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of Blyth, Inc.:

Our audits of the consolidated financial statements referred to in our report dated April 26,
2004, appearing in the 2004 Annual Report to Stockholders of Blyth, Inc. and Subsidiaries
on Form 10-K, also included an audit of the financial statement schedule listed in Item
15(a)(2) of this Form 10-K. In our opinion, this financial statement schedule presents fairly,
in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the
related consolidated financial statements.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

Stamford, Connecticut
April 26, 2004
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BLYTH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE 11 - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
For the years ended January 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004

(In thousands)

Balance at Charged to

Beginning Acquired Costs and
Description of Period Balances Expenses Deductions
2002
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 2,120 $ 1,835 $ 2,705 $ (3,856)
Income tax valuation allowance 1,730 111 - -
Inventory reserve 9,701 2,290 21,312 (12,801)
2003
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 2,804 § 255 $ 3,853 $ (2,819)
Income tax valuation allowance 1,841 - 500 (1,324)
Inventory reserve 20,502 400 22,709 (16,466)
2004
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 4,093 $ 623 $§ 1,809 § (2,059
Income tax valuation allowance 1,017 1,656 - -
Inventory reserve 27,145 1,343 15,462 (20,970)
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